Page 1
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, January 22, 2026 aEe

-

Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
911 SUNSET DRIVE, HOLLISTER, CALIFORNIA
THURSDAY, JANUARY 22,2026 - 5:00 P.M.
SUPPORT SERVICES BUILDING, 2ND FLOOR, GREAT ROOM
IN-PERSON AND BY VIDEO CONFERENCE

Members of the public may participate remotely via Zoom at the following link https.//zoom.us/join
with the following Webinar ID and Password:

Meeting ID: 991 5300 5433
Security Passcode: 007953

Mission Statement - The San Benito Health Care District is a public agency that serves as a responsive,

comprehensive health care resource for its patients, physicians, and the health care consumers of the
community.

Vision Statement - San Benito Health Care District is committed to meeting community health care needs
with quality care in a safe and compassionate environment.

AGENDA
Presented By:
1. 1 rder / Roll (Johnson)
2. Public Comment (Johnson)

This opportunity is provided for members to comment on the closed session topics, not to exceed three (3)
minutes.

3. Closed Session (Johnson)
See the Attached Closed Session Sheet Information

4. Reconvene to Open Session (Johnson)

5. Closed Session Report (Counsel)

6. Board Announcements (Johnson)



Page 2
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, January 22, 2026 aee

7. Public Comment (Johnson)
This opportunity is provided for members of the public to make a brief statement, not to
exceed three (3) minutes, on matters within the jurisdiction of this District Board, which
are not otherwise covered under an item on this agenda. This is the appropriate place to
comment on items on the Consent Agenda. Board Members may not deliberate or take
action on an item not on the duly posted agenda. Written comments for the Board should
be provided to the Board clerk or designee for the official record. Whenever possible,
written correspondence should be submitted to the Board in advance of the meeting to
provide adequate time for its consideration. Speaker cards are available.

8. nsent nda — General Business (Johnson)
The Consent Agenda deals with routine and non-controversial matters. The vote on the
Consent Agenda shall apply to each item that has not been removed. A Board Member
may pull an item from the Consent Agenda for discussion. One motion shall be made to
adopt all non-removed items on the Consent Agenda.

A. Consider and Approve Minutes:
o Special Meeting of the Board of Directors — December 8, 2025.
o Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors — December 18, 2025.

B. Receive Minutes: District Bylaws / Policies and Procedures Committee -
e December 15, 2025

C. Receive Officer/Director Written Reports
e Physician Services & Clinic Operations
e Skilled Nursing Facilities (Mabie Southside/Northside)
¢ Laboratory and Radiology (No Report)
¢ Foundation
¢ Public Relations
e PMO Project Summary

D. Consider and Approve Policies:
e Development of Board Agenda (Revised)
Fiduciary Responsibility of Board Members (Revised)
Limit of Authority (Revised)
Oversight of Safety, Emergency Management, and Disaster Preparedness (Revised)
Strategic Planning (Revised)
Board Member Identification, Compensation and Benefits (Compensation & Human Resources
Requirements has been integrated) (Revised)
Life Safety - Fire Watch (Revised)
Section 1135 Waiver Compliance (New)
Suicide Assessment/Self-Harm Behavior (Revised)
Emergency Management Plan (Revised)
Patient Safety (New)
Practitioner Code of Conduct (Revised)

E. Consider and Approve Archival of Policies:
e Events Monthly Calendar (direction was to recommend archival)
e Human Resources Requirements (direction was to recommend archival; this was consolidated
with Compensation policy; now named Compensation and Benefits)



. . Page 3
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, January 22, 2026

e Improvements Comments, Suggestions (direction was to recommend archival; this was
consolidated with Area of Concern policy)

e Meeting with the Administrator (direction was to recommend archival)
Office Assistance for Board (direction was to recommend archival)

e Time Lines (direction was to recommend archival of policy; and consolidate terms with the
Development of Board Agenda policy)

Relationship to Management (direction was to recommend archival)
e Use of Letterhead by Directors (direction was to recommend archival)

Recommended Action: Approval of Consent Agenda Items (A) through (E).
9. Receive Informational Reports
A. Chief Executive Officer (Verbal Report) (Casillas)

e Community Needs Assessment Update
e Alliance for Aging

» Public Comment

B. Chief Nursing Officer (Descent)
e Dashboard - December 2025

» Public Comment

C. Chief Financial Officer (Robinson)
e Facilities - Project Dashboard — December, 2025
¢ Financial Statements — December, 2025
e Finance Dashboard — December, 2025

Supplemental Payments — December, 2025
Update Cashflow Budget FY 2026

» Public Comment

10. Action Items

A. Consider and Approve Purchase of Digital Mobile Ergo C-Arm ESP (Expanded Surgical Platform), and
1-year Warranty in the Amount of $187,960.50.

Recommended Action: Approval of the Purchase of Digital Mobile Ergo C-Arm ESP (Expanded
Surgical Platform), and 1-year Warranty in the Amount of $187,960.50.

Report

Board Questions

Public Comment
Motion/Second
Action/Board Vote-Roll Call

vVVvVvVvVvyYy



Page 4
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, January 22, 2026 age

B. Consider and Approve Incentive Goals for the Chief Executive Officer.
Recommended Action: Approval of Incentive Goals for the Chief Executive Officer.

Report

Board Questions

Public Comment
Motion/Second
Action/Board Vote-Roll Call

vVVVyYVYyY

C. Public Hearing and Consideration of Resolution No. 2026-08 Modifying the NUHW Bargaining Unit at
San Benito Health Care District Regarding Laboratory Clerks.

Recommended Action: Approval of Resolution No. 2026-08 Modifying the NUHW Bargaining Unit at
San Benito Health Care District.

Report

Board Questions

Public Comment

Close Public Hearing
Motion/Second
Action/Board Vote-Roll Call

vVVvVVvViVVYY

11. Adjournment (Johnson)
The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for Thursday, February 26, 2026 at 5:00
p-m., Great Room.

The complete Board packet including subsequently distributed materials and presentations is available at the
Board Meeting, in the Administrative Offices of the District, and posted on the District’s website at
https://www.hazelhawkins.com/news/categories/meeting-agendas/. All items appearing on the agenda are
subject to action by the Board. Staff and Committee recommendations are subject to change by the Board.

Any public record distributed to the Board less than 72 hours prior to this meeting in connection with any
agenda item shall be made available for public inspection at the District office. Public records distributed
during the meeting, if prepared by the District, will be available for public inspection at the meeting. If the
public record is prepared by a third party and distributed at the meeting, it will be made available for public
inspection following the meeting at the District office.

Notes: Requests for a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or
services, to attend or participate in a meeting should be made to District Administration during regular
business hours at 831-636-2673. Notification received 48 hours before the meeting will enable the District
to make reasonable accommodations.

Please note that room capacity is limited and available on a first-come, first-served basis.



Page 1 of 2
SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS
January 22, 2026

AGENDA FOR CLOSED SESSION
Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54954.2 and 54954.5, the board agenda may describe closed session agenda

items as provided below. No legislative body or elected official shall be in violation of Section 54954.2 or 54956 if the closed
session items are described in substantial compliance with Section 54954.5 of the Government Code.

CLOSED SESSION AGENDA ITEMS

g DE A
(Government Code §54956.7)

Applicant(s): (Specify number of applicants)

O CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS
(Government Code §54956.8)

X WITH LEGAL INSEL- T ON
(Government Code §54956.9(d)(1))

Name of cases:

1. PERB Case No. SF-CE-2231-M

2. PERB Case No. SF-CE-2232-M

3. Savista, LLC vs. Hazel Hawkins Medical Center, File No. 6337918

] CONFERENCE WITH LE "OUNSEL-ANTICIPATED LI TION
(Government Code §54956.9)

0 LIABILITY CLAIMS
(Government Code §54956.95)

Claimant: (Specify name unless unspecified pursuant to Section 54961):
Agency claimed against: (Specify name):

a THREAT TO PUBLIC SERVICES OR FACILITIES
(Government Code §54957)

Consultation with: (Specify the name of law enforcement agency and title of officer):

] PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT
(Government Code §54957)

Title:

O P L NT
(Government Code §54957)

Title:



a

X

Page 2 of 2
UBLIC LOYEE PERF NCE EVALUATION

(Government Code §54957)

(Specify position title of the employee being reviewed):

Title:
PUBLIC EMPL SCIPL MISS E
(Government Code §54957)

(No additional information is required in connection with a closed session to consider discipline,
dismissal, or release of a public employee. Discipline includes potential reduction of compensation.)

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR
(Government Code §54957.6)

Agency designated representative: Anne Olsen
Employee organization: NUHW

CONFE EW ABOR NEGOTIAT
(Government Code §54957.6)

Agency designated representative: Anne Olsen
Unrepresented employees

CASE REVIEW/PLANNING
(Government Code §54957.8)

(No additional information is required to consider case review or planning.)

REPOR VOLVING TRADE SE T
(Government Code §37606 & Health and Safety Code § 32106)

Discussion will concern: (Specify whether discussion will concern proposed new service, program, or
facility):

1. Trade Secrets. Strategic Planning. Proposed New Programs, and Services.

Estimated date of public disclosure: (Specify month and year):

HEARINGS/REPORTS
(Evidence Code Sections 1156 and 1157.7; Health and Safety Code Section 32106)

Subject matter: (Specify whether testimony/deliberation will concern staff privileges, report of medical
executive committee, or report of quality assurance committee):

1. Report — Credentials

CHARGE MPLAINT INVOLVING INFORMATION
BY FEDERAL LAW (Government Code §54956.86)

(No additional information is required to discuss a charge or complaint pursuant to Section 54956.86.)

ADJOURN TO OPEN SESSION



-

Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
SUPPORT SERVICES BUILDING, 2"°-FLOOR, GREAT ROOM
IN PERSON AND BY VIDEO CONFERENCE

MONDAY, DECEMBER 8, 2025
5:00 P.M.

Directors Present
Bill Johnson, Board Member
Devon Pack, Board Member
Victoria Angelo, Board Member
Nick Gabriel, Board Member - (Absent)
Josie Sanchez, Board Member — (Absent)

Also Present
Mary Casillas, Chief Executive Officer
Mark Robinson, Chief Financial Officer
Karen Descent, Chief Nursing Officer
Amy Breen-Lema, Vice President, Ambulatory & Physician Services
Suzie Mays, Vice President, Information & Strategic Services
Heidi A. Quinn, District Legal Counsel

1. Call to Order/Roll Call
Director Johnson called the meeting to order at 5:03 PM. A quorum was present, and attendance was taken
by roll call. Directors Johnson, Pack, and Angelo were present. Directors Gabriel and Sanchez absent.

Director Johnson stated that circumstances have arisen since posting of the agenda for the special meeting,
which require immediate action by the Board of Directors (“Board”). Under the Brown Act, the Board
may add an item to the agenda in the event of an emergency related to work stoppage (Government Code
section 54956.5). To add an item to the agenda under Anticipated Litigation — Initiation of Litigation, the
Board must unanimously approve a motion to amend the agenda. If approved, there would be two cases
under Anticipated Litigation: Initiation of Litigation (Government Code section 54956.9(d)(4), and the
emergency provisions would apply to both items.

An opportunity for public comment was provided, and there was no public comment.

Director Johnson made a motion to amend the agenda to add one additional case for Anticipated Litigation
— Initiation of Litigation (Gov’t Code section 54956.9(d)(4) t, and seconded by Director Pack.

Moved/Seconded/ Carried. Ayes: Directors Johnson, Pack, and Angelo. Approved 3-0 by roll call.
Directors Gabriel and Sanchez were absent.

2. Public Comment

An opportunity for public comment was provided to members to comment on the closed spéig)étqpics,
not to exceed three (3) minutes.




There was no public comment.

. Closed Session

President Johnson announced the items to be discussed in the Closed Session, as listed on the posted
Agenda: a) Conference with Legal Counsel-Existing Litigation (Government Code §54956.9)(d)(1), two
cases; b) Conference with Legal Counsel-Anticipated Litigation — Initiation of Litigation (Government
Code §54956.9(d)(4)), and c) Conference with Labor Negotiator (Government Code §54957.6) with
NUHW.

The members of the Board entered into a closed session at 5:10 pm.

. Reconvene Open Session/Closed Session Report

The Board of Directors reconvened in open session at 6:14 p.m. Counsel stated that two (3) matters were
discussed: a) Conference with Legal Counsel-Existing Litigation (Government Code §54956.9)(d)(1), b)
Conference with Legal Counsel-Anticipated Litigation (Government Code §54956.9), and ¢) Conference
with Labor Negotiator (Government Code §54957.6).

Under items a) Conference with Legal Counsel-Existing Litigation (Government Code §54956.9)(d)(1),
and c) Conference with Labor Negotiator (Government Code §54957.6). regarding NUHW, the Board
was provided a report but no reportable action was taken.

Under item b) Conference with Legal Counsel-Anticipated Litigation — Initiation of Litigation
(Government Code §54956.9), relating to NUHW’s Notice of Intent to Strike, the Board was notified
right before the meeting, that the strike was canceled. The Board received a report, but no reportable
action was taken.

. Adjournment:

There being no further regular business or actions, the meeting was adjourned at 6:16 p.m.

The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for Thursday, December 18, 2025, at
5:00 p.m.

Page 2



-

Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
SUPPORT SERVICES BUILDING, 2"°-FLOOR, GREAT ROOM
IN PERSON AND BY VIDEO CONFERENCE

THURSDAY, DECEMBER 18, 2025
5:00 P.M.
MINUTES

Directors Present
Bill Johnson, Board Member
Devon Pack, Board Member
Victoria Angelo, Board Member
Nick Gabriel, Board Member (Absent)
Josie Sanchez, Board Member

Also Present
Mary Casillas, Chief Executive Officer
Mark Robinson, Chief Financial Officer
Suzie Mays, Vice President, Information & Strategic Services
Heidi A. Quinn, District Legal Counsel

. Call to Order/Roll Call

Director Johnson called the meeting to order at 5:07 PM. A quorum was present, and attendance was taken
by roll call. Directors Johnson, Pack, Angelo, and Sanchez, were present; Director Gabriel was absent.

. Board Announcements

Director Johnson stated that he attended an Aging and Long-Term Care Commission Meeting. He will be
meeting with Phillip Geiger on Friday, December 19, 2025.

. Public Comment

An opportunity for public comment was provided, and individuals were given three minutes to address
the Board Members and Administration.

No public comment received.

. Consent Agenda - General Business

A. Consider and Approve Minutes:
e Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors — November 20, 2025.
e Special Meeting of the Board of Directors — December 8, 2025.

B. Receive Minutes: District Bylaws / Policies and Procedures Committee —
e November 10, 2025.

Page 3



C. Receive Officer/Director Written Reports - No action required.
Provider Services & Clinic Operations

Skilled Nursing Facilities (Mabie Southside/Northside)
Laboratory and Radiology (No Report)

Foundation Report

Public Relations

PMO Project Summary Report

Director Johnson presented Consent Agenda items (A-C) to the Board for consideration.

MOTION: By Director Sanchez to approve the Consent Agenda, Items (A-C) to include the corrections
to the minutes for the regular meeting; Seconded by Director Johnson.

Moved/Seconded/ Carried. Ayes: Directors Johnson, Pack, Angelo, and Sanchez; Nays; None. Approved
4-0-1 by roll call, with Director Gabriel absent.

5. Receive Informational Reports
A. Chief Executive Officer (Verbal Report)

Ms. Casillas provided a verbal update on the visits from Senator Laird and Congresswoman Lofgren, labor
negotiations, rebranding and the community needs assessment.

An opportunity was provided for public comment; no public comment received.

B. Chief Nursing Officer
e Dashboard — October 2025

Ms. Casillas provided a verbal report in Karen’s absence; documentation is included in the packet.
An opportunity was provided for public comment; no public comment received.

C. Facilities and Finance Committee — November 17. 2025
e Facilities Update — November, 2025
¢ Financial Statements — November, 2025
¢ Finance Dashboard — November, 2025
e Supplemental Payments — November, 2025

Mr. Robinson provided his CFO report, which included an update on Facilities, financial statements,
and dashboard. These reports are included in the Board packet.

An opportunity was provided for public comment; no public comment received.

6. Action Items
A. Consider and Approve Resolution NO. 2025-07 Fixing the Times and Dates of the Regular Meetings

of the San Benito Health Care District Board of Directors, from February 26, 2026 through January
28, 2027.

Mr. Casillas provided a report, which is included in the packet.

An opportunity for public comment was provided; no public comment received.

Page 4




MOTION: By Director Pack to Approve Resolution NO. 2025-07 Fixing the Times and Dates of the
Regular Meetings of the San Benito Health Care District Board of Directors, from February 26, 2026
through January 28, 2027.; Seconded by Director Angelo.

Moved/Seconded/ Carried: Ayes: Directors Johnson, Pack, Angelo, and Sanchez; Nays: None.
Approved 4-0-1 by roll call, with Director Gabriel absent.

B. Consider and Approve Professional Services Agreement with Mostafa Sadek, M.D.
Ms. Casillas provided a report, which is included in the packet.
An opportunity for public comment was provided; no public comment received.

MOTION: By Director Pack to Approve Professional Services Agreement with Mostafa Sadek,
M.D.; Seconded by Director Angelo.

Moved/Seconded/ Carried: Ayes: Directors Johnson, Pack, Angelo, and Sanchez; Nays: None.
Approved 4-0-1 by roll call, with Director Gabriel absent.

7. Public Comment

An opportunity for public comment on the closed session items was provided; no public comment
received.

8. Closed Session

President Johnson announced the items to be discussed in the Closed Session, as listed on the posted
Agenda:
a) Conference with Legal Counsel-Existing Litigation (Government Code §54956.9(d)(1)

1. PERB Case No. SF-CE-2231-M

2. PERB Case No. SF-CE-2232-M

3. Savista, LLC vs. Hazel Hawkins Medical Center, File No. 6337918

4. Nick Hadrian Gabriel v. San Benito Health Care District; Does 1-100, San Benito County Superior Court;
b) Conference with Labor Negotiator Government Code §54957.6 (NUHW); and
¢) Hearing/Report, Credentials, Evidence Code Sections 1156 and 1157.7; Health and Safety Code
Section 32106(b).

The members of the Board entered into a closed session at 5:47 pm.

9. Reconvene Open Session/Closed Session Report
The Board of Directors reconvened to open session at 6:54 p.m.

Counsel reported that the Board met regarding several items:

e Conference with Legal Counsel-Existing Litigation on four separate matters. As to all, a report
was provided to Board; the Board provided direction but there is no reportable action.

e Conference with Labor Negotiator regarding NUHW -a report was provided to the Board with no
reportable action.

e The Board also received the credentials report, which was received and approved on motion of
Director Johnson, second by Director Pack. Ayes: Directors Johnson, Pack, Angelo, and Sanchez;
Nays; None. Approved 4-0-1 by roll call, with Director Gabriel absent.

Page 5




10. Adjournment:
There being no further regular business or actions, the meeting was adjourned at 6:55 p.m.

The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for Thursday, January 22, 2026, at 5:00
p.m.

Page 6




Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

DISTRICT BYLAWS / POLICIES AND PROCEDURES COMMITTEE
DECEMBER 15, 2025 - 1:00 PM
HORIZON CONFERENCE ROOM-2, 2¥P.FLOOR, WOMEN’S CENTER

IN PERSON ONLY
MINUTES

Mission Statement -The San Benito Health Care District is a public agency that serves as a responsive,
comprehensive health care resource for its patients, physicians, and the health care consumers of the
community.

Vision Statement - San Benito Health Care District is committed to meeting community health care needs
with quality care in a safe and compassionate environment.

Committee Members Present
Josie Sanchez, Board Member (Chair)
Devon Pack, Board Member
Mary Casillas, Chief Executive Officer (Absent)
Laura Garcia, Executive Assistant

Also Present
Heidi Quinn, Legal Counsel

1. Call to Order
The meeting of the Bylaws/Policies and Procedures Committee was called to order at 1:03 p.m. by
Director Sanchez.

2. Consider and Approve Minutes of the District Bylaws/Policies and Procedures Committee —
November 10. 2025.

Motion: By Director Pack, to approve the minutes of the District Bylaws/Policies and Procedures
Committee — November 10, 2025, Seconded by Director Sanchez, and unanimously approved.

Page 7



3. Review of Policies for Recommendation

Development of Board Agenda — Policy will be brought to the next scheduled meeting
for review.

Fiduciary Responsibility of Board Members - Policy, with revisions, will be brought to
the next scheduled meeting for review.

Human Resources Requirements (Archive - Combined with Compensation and
Benefits) — Direction to recommend archival of the policy.

Improvements, Comments, Suggestions (Archive — Similar to Area of Concern) —
Direction was to recommend archival of policy.

Limit of Authority — Policy, with proposed revisions, will be brought to the next
scheduled meeting for review.

Meetings with Administrator — Direction was to recommend archival of the policy.
Office Assistance for Board Members — Direction was to recommend archival of the
policy.

Potential Conflicts of Interest - Policy, with proposed revisions, to be brought to the
next scheduled meeting for review.

Relationship to Management Company - Policy, with proposed revisions, will be
brought to the next scheduled meeting for review.

Safety and Disaster Plan — Policy will be brought to the next scheduled meeting for
review.

Strategic Planning (Archive) — Policy, with proposed revisions, will be brought to the
next meeting for review.

Suggestions for Change to Board Policy/Procedures — Policy was reviewed with no
recommended changes.

Time Lines — Direction was to archive policy; and consolidate terms with the
Development of Board Agenda policy.

Updating — Policy, with proposed revisions, will be brought to the next scheduled
meeting for review.

Use of Letterhead by Directors — Policy, with proposed revisions, will be brought to the
next meeting for review.

Compensation and Benefits (Replaces Compensation & Human Resources
Requirements) - The Policy will be brought to the next scheduled meeting for
recommendation of approval.

4. Consider and Approve Schedule of Future Meetings (Committee)

The Committee is not available to meet at its next scheduled meeting on Monday, January 12,
2025 at 1:00 pm. January meeting is pending until confirmation of date and time.

5. Adjournment
There being no further regular business, the meeting was adjourned at 1:25 p.m.

Page 8



To:
From:
Date:
Re:

-

Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

San Benito Health Care District Board of Directors

Amy Breen-Lemaq, Vice President, Clinic, Ambulatory & Physician Services
January 12, 2026

All Clinics — December 2025

December 2025 Rural Health and Specialty Clinics' visit volumes

Total visits prior
Clinic Location Total visits month
° current month| (November
2025)
Orth i
rthopedic 504 490
Specialty
Multi-Specialty 558 598
Sunset 706 795
S & Pri
urgery rimary 395 088
Care
San Juan Bautista 323 320
st Street 533 513
4th Street 1,006 981
Barragan 523 437
Total 4,478 4,422

Provider recruitment activities with anticipated start dates by specialty:

>
>
>

Urogynecology: Dr. Katherine Volpe - February 2026

Pediatrician: Dr. Carmelita Raymundo-DeVera - February 2026

Family Practice: Stephanie Smith has been working as a locum

physician assistant (PA) and recently transitioned to an employed
PA. She has been a great asset to the clinics.

Vanessa Bojorquez, PA-C joined our clinic care team as a family
medicine locum tenens provider. Her addition has been
instrumental in bridging a critical coverage gap and has enabled
the San Juan Bautista clinic to maintain consistent family practice
services five days per week, ensuring continued access to care for
our patients.

Page 9



=~

Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSFITAL
Mabie Southside/Northside Skilled Nursing Facility

Board Report — January 2026

To:  San Benito Health Care District Board of Directors

From: JayLee Davison, Interim Director of Nursing, Skilled Nursing Facility

1. Census Statistics: January 2026

Southside J 2026 Northside 1 2026
Total Number of Admissions 16 Total Number of Admissions 7
Number of Transfers from HHH 16 Number of Transfers from HHH 5
Number of Transfers to HHH 7 Number of Transfers to HHH 0
Number of Deaths 1 Number of Deaths 1
Number of Discharges 17 Number of Discharges 0]
Total Discharges 18 Total Discharges 1
Total Census Days 1324 Total Census Days 1393

Note: Transfers are included in the number of admissions and discharges. Deaths are included in the number of discharges. Total
census excludes bed hold days.

2. Total Admissions: January 2026

 Southside From _Payor Northside From _ Payor
11 HHMH Medicare 5 HHMH MEDICARE
2 HHMH Re-Admits Medicare 1 SALINAS VALLEY MEDICARE
2 HHMH Re-Admits CCA 1 NATIVIDAD MEDICARE
1 HHMH Re-Admit PVT
Total: 16 Total: 7

3. Total Discharges by Payor: January 2026

- Southside 2026 Northside 2026
Medicare 13 Medicare 0
Medicare MC 0 Medicare MC 0
CCA 4 CcCcA 1
Medical 0 Medical 0
Medi-Cal MC 0 Medi-Cal MC 0
Hospice 0 Hospice 0
Private (self-pay) 1 Private (self ay) 0
Insurance 0 Insurance 0
Total: 18 Total: 1

1

Page 10



4. Total Patient Days by Payor: January 2026

Southside
Medicare
Medicare MC
CCA
Medical
Medi-Cal MC
Hospice
Private (self-pay)
Insurance
Bed Hold / LOA
Total:
Average Daily Census

2026
270
0
931
31
0
62
30
0
14
1338
43.16

Northside
Medicare
Medicare MC
CCA
Medical
Medi-Cal MC
Hospice
Private (self-pay)
insurance
Bed Hold / LOA
Total:
Average Daily Census

2026
170

1078
62

83

1393
44.94

Page 11



-

Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

To: San Benito Health Care District Board of Directors
From: Bernadette Enderez, Director of Diagnostic Services
Date: January 2026

Re: Laboratory and Diagnostic Imaging

Updates:

Laboratory

1. Quality Assurance/Performance Improvement Activities
- Update on chemistry analyzer project = Assay validation completed. Interface validation on going.
- Phase 2A construction update > Phase 2A to be completed 1/23/26. Phase 2B estimated to start on
1/26/26 and be completed on 4/7/26.

2. Laboratory Statistics

December 2025 2025 YTD
Total Outpatient Volume 4161 51295
Main Laboratory 1246 15571
Mc Cray Lab 885 11197
Sunnyslope Lab 356 4997
SJB and 4™ Street 86 1056
ER and ASC 1588 18474
Total Inpatient Volume 183 1969

Diagnostic Imaging

1. Quality Assurance/Performance Improvement Activities
- Preparation for multi-modality trailer pad proposal
- Preparation of the C-arm proposal for Board approval
- Imaging space planning to resume

2. Diagnostic Imaging Statistics

December 2025 2025 YTD
Radiology 1924 22247
Mammography 738 8239
CcT 1025 12168
MRI 223 2468
Echocardiography 99 1325
Ultrasound 716 9085

Page 12



>N
Hazel Hawkins Hospital

FOUNDATION

Caring for Our Community

TO: San Benito Health Care District Board of Directors
FROM: Liz Sparling, Foundation Director

DATE: January 2026

RE: Foundation Report for January

The Foundation Board of Directors met on January 8 and one presentation:

e Jorge Ramirez, Certified Healthcare Emergency Professional (CHEP),
Director of Emergency Management; Security; Life Safety; EVS;
Engineering at HHMH presented a request for Utility Carts for the Engineering
and Security Departments.

Finance Committee

a. Financial Report December
1. Income $ 49,502.98
2. Expenses $ 73,233.76
3. New Donors 4
4. Total Donations 195
Allocations:

1. Up to $22,000 for two Utility Carts for Engineering & Security Departments

2. $90,250 for the Workstation on Wheels Equipment (WOWSs) from funds
raised at the Dinner Dance dedicated to this purpose

3. Our clean audit was presented to the Board

Directors Report:

e Welcome to our new Board Members: Amy Gill, Danielle Nino and Ashley Rule.
e Welcome to our new Executive Committee: Brynn Gho - President, Salina Chacon -
VP, Amy Breen-Lema - Secretary and Irene Recht - Treasurer.

e Processed all the wonderful gifts we received from the Dinner Dance. Leal has been
booked for 11.7.26. Please mark your calendars!

e Working on the Tranquility Rooms in the Skilled Nursing Facilities. Decided to redo
an old cabinet in Southside to go with the room design and the construction is
underway.

e Our end of year letters to all donors for tax purposes will go out the week of 1.19.26.
¢ Kyle Sharp will be reviewing our Edward Jones accounts with us in February.

Fundraising Committee:
e Asof]anuary 7, there have been 2,590 total donations raising $1,537,242.60

Scholarship Committee:

e Our 2026 Scholarship application is now posted on our website and available in the
front lobby of the Hospital in hard copy form. Applications are due April 1.

Page 13



Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

MARKETING
o Social Media Posts

Title

M HHMH CELEBRATES OUR 2026 FIRSTBA...|

o. Multimedia » @ Hazel Hawkins Hospital

-..; Cough, cold, too much bubbly, too many ho...

"06 Photo « @ Hazel Hawkins Hospital

g Cough, co!d, too much bubbly, too many ho..

S | i tal
_0. Photo * @ Hazel Hawkins Hospita

_— Cough, cold, too much bubbly, too many ho...|

Iﬁﬁ Photo * @ Mazel Hawkins Hospital

_-’ Cough, cold, too much bubbly, too many ho..

GQ Phaoto ¢ @ Hazel Hawkins Hospital

-

-._;. Cough, cold, too much bubbly, too many ho..

- -ib Photo » @ Hazel Hawkins Hospital

HAPPY NEW YEAR! Sending out best wish.... -
(5] a Photo « @ Hazel Hawkins Hospital

! Ail outpatient Lab, Radiology and Commur... i

- 0 Photo * @ Hazel Hawhins Hospital

!’ j HOLLISTER ORTHOPEDIC SPECIALTY CE...

nq Photo » @ Haze!l Hawkins Hospital

__- All outpatient Lab, Radiology and Commun...

-é@ Photo « & Hazel Hawkins Hospitai

.—.._,:_ Cough. cold, too much bubbly, too many ho. ..

= -0 @ Photo » & Hazel Hawkins Hospita:

S——
E_‘, HOLLISTER ORTHOPEDIC SPECIALTY CE. ..

n Photo » & HazelHawkins Hospita!

2 'aa Photo « @ HazelHawkins Hospita!

g Cough. cold, too much eggnog, too many ¢...

= ~~6 Photo « @ HazelHawkins Hospital

—3 Cough, cold, too much eggnog, too many c...

—-OQ Photo » @ Hazel Hawkins Hospital

. Cough, coid, too much eggnog, too manyc...

Boost

. Boost

Boost

Boost

Boost

Boost

Boost

Boost

Boost

Boost

ves

Board of Director's Report January 2024

Marketing/Public Relations

Date published .

FriJan 2, 1:15pm

FriJan 2, 11:00am

FriJan 2, 7:.00am

Thu Jan 1, 8:00pm

Thu Jan 1, 1:00pm

Thu Jan 1,10:00am

Thu Jan 1, 8:00am

Thu Jan1, 7:00am

Dec 31,2025

Dec 31,2025

Dec 31,2025

Dec 31,2025

Dec 26,2025

Dec 25,2025

Dec 25, 2025

Reach @ 1! :::;:"n: @1l Views® 1i
20,907 219 39,939
288 1 529

248 0 387

279 2 426

241 1 387

295 3 456

73 9 404

362 2 527

297 504 5626

2,427 from ads 49C from ad 4.613 from ads
603 5 962

441 6 709

3192 22 4,761

233 1 431

246 2 423

285 3 465

0 from ads Gtronade G tomads

Page 14




%Hozel Hawkins

Title

Wishing everyone a very Merry Christmas! ...

Boost
Q Photo + @ Hazel Hawkins Hospital

e ough, cold, too muclh eg?(nog to? r:-lany S Boost
—-o . Photo » @ Hazel Hawkins Hospita

Thank you to our community partners and f...: Yoost ) ‘
F: (3] @ Hazel Hawkins Hospital : i

¥2=% CHRISTMAS HOLIDAY HOURS FOR CLINI...

o@ Photo » & Hazel Hawkins Hospital

===~ Today, we had the pleasure of celebrating t...
0 ‘ Multi media «+ @ Hazel Hawkins Hospital

§ ©Today San Benito County joyfully welco. ..
0 . Multi media = @ Hazel Hawkins Hospital

" The HHMH Foundation is forever grateful ...

'i'-.{;.,-ﬁ Photo « @ Hazel Hawkins Hospital

Hollister Orthopedic

Specialty Center

Exceptional Orthopedic Care.
An Oufstanding Team of Physicians.

Boost - ..

Board of Director’'s Report January 2026-

page 2
Date published Reach® 1! :::.:: @ Views® 1
Dec 25,2025 329 19 606
Dec 24,2025 813 6 1288
Dec 23,2025 228 3 389
Dec 23,2025 929 4 1,450
Dec 19, 2025 1157 7 2,365
Dec 18, 2025 3299 45 5,858
Dec 17,2025 689 22 1,281

HOLLISTER ORTHOPEDIC SPECIALTY CENTER

Your care is in expert hands.

At Hollister Orthopedic Specialty Center, our experienced orthopedic
physicians work together to provide comprehensive, personalized
care — from sports injuries to joint, hand, shoulder, and pediatric
orthopedic conditions.

Whether you're staying active, recovering from an injury, or
managing chronic pain, our team is here to help you move better
and live better.

The two highest viewed posts for the month.

HHMH CELEBRATES OUR 2026
FIRST BABY OF THE NEW YEAR!

'_ i HHMH is proud to welcome the first
= baby of the New Year, arriving at
10:25 am on January 1, 2026.

Baby girl Namina, was born weighing 6
Ibs. 14 0z. and measuring 20 inches
long. Proud parents Evelyn Rivera and
Kalisto Alik were all smiles as they rang
in the New Year with the arrival of their
newest family member.

Page 15



HOZG' HOWkiﬂS Board of Director's Report January 2026 -

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL page 3

|
EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT

Employees:

¢ Hazel's Headlines

o Employee Years of Service Recognition program

MEDIA

Press Release:

 HHMH Welcomes First Baby of the New Year

COMMUNITY

Public:
Working with Wipfli on the 2026 Community Needs Assessment

There are 33 community leaders/stakeholders that have been identified to be interviewed by Wipfli. Intro-
ductory emails were sent by Frankie Gallagher with a follow up email sent by Wipfli inviting stakeholders so
schedule an interview. To date, 10 interviews have been scheduled.

Promoting Community Needs Assessment questionnaire to the community.

Page 16



WV 90:8 920Z/¥1/T

opaia zoispu3 a1 Iwgns josodoy apoIbd
pajwqgns josodold ABOJOIPDY/ADT ayepoUIeg PIOH UO aat asl pajiwgns | d P nI1I¥W
‘papiwgns uoyoonddo
1uouB ¥ DH aulpoap SPIDPUDIS
92/1/1 syt sopea| SO cwm_m% zouDY 9BI0f aal agl| A1eyos 3 92UDIdWOD DSBS owsies
papugns A||nysseoons 1281 Joluss IVOH 188w 04 sppnibdn
uo|d 8ouodwo)
XY JusIoyns
J @35 O} juswadp|dal
$901A198 |1D2IBINS DINJUBA sjuswalnbay
Hod Jadpayd/ie|ows ~ 0Y| Sc0T/1E/TL yZ0oz/0T/ 1L Jod Bulopd [epoway JO
10} UOHOBYSOAUI 0 JO}o3iQg Jagngs IpUSKW QdHSO YO buyopan
joussju Buipuad
‘gz aspyd Joy 8jpgo
‘dOW [Dund |p2uDale 10}o8ig za19pu] jusueoD|day opoWwaN ab
Buipuad (s Judy yun|  ABOJOIPDY/qDT sjjspoulag £99 sEa veoz/els JazZApUY 1T 8sDUd o1 1°p 490}
papuajxa s|npPayos
{uoyo20) Jusuounad
O} BA0W O} SISZAIDUD
ApD8) puon pPaaIdwosd
SI Z 9sDy4 qo J042381Q zaiopug UOUOPIDA P ———-
JUN §NO BSO[D A||DIDI4O ABojoIpDY/qD1 ayeppulag geoe/L/y 19ZA|DUY | 95DYd qo1 5P 4901
10U ||im jo3loud)
'$5920.d UCHDPIIDA
B4} JO %G8 UOC Ajjusund
USSIPOW J0)081Q
puo ag yim sbulyesw ASDUIDU D|SADY USSADN asl $20z/v1/1 1| uoypoyuaa BuipunodwoD Al Jedaay Aopwioyd g
|0oIuYys84 Bulobup 4d
uoyp||ojsul Joy a1odaid
O} WD3} I0f SI00Y sop081Q
8y} UDDS ADI-X PUD ASDUIDU D|3ADY USSADN 0 agl (2 AL Al SOUIYODW SIXAd MON uoyo|IP}suUl g
Z1/1 JO Jo9Mm 8jIsuo 8q 4d
0} P3|INP3YDS JOPUSA
‘uoypZIWIAO UOIDDO|
wiopuad und SOND8S
81049Q HIOM JO $H8aM S9DINISS
¥-C P{IoWYST "OM 8I0D 8iNdY Zopunuied d0r 0 adt yeoz/TLly Ajundas juoju SDJUND8S/SONH
2y 1oy syuswannbal| Jo Jojoaiq Jouss
Buyqoo poys
O} T1/1 SHSUO JIOPUSA
"MO[PHIOM
auyai o} siosialadns S9DIAIOS
85NOY PUD S,UIPD O} EYloloX-1late}" ZopuDUISH DD 0 agl y202/9/Z 1 aIomjos Buiinpayos asinN UOJDACU|
aA| Sl }onpoid ‘BuioBuo| jo 1o40auQg JoIuss
Buiuipy 100813/1HDIS o )
awpdn 910¥| s9ploudnois AdN| IYOH snipis| uoyoing JAI] 09 940Aa ULIS asodind SWDN joafol

pinog 9Z0z Albnupr - pipoqysp jo3foid

Page 17



WV 90:8 920Z/vT/T

“joAoIddD ¥ DH Japp
HIDJS [iM UOHDNISUOD
‘Papiwgns usaq

soy josloud (s) Joinbay

‘Jo2IWaYD
snopiozoy o Bueq of anp

J40 ubts |ouy Bulpuad mmL_M_MMw twm_m“m zaswpy ablor a4l SToT/vi/L no pasoyd aq o} paanbai podieH a3
'9/Z1 pajedwod 12810 Jouss S| VD Ul pamo||o Jabuoj ou
SOM |DACWS) PUD Wa4SAS 444V UD SI LUSJSAS
ppis/uoliowsp yosloid
IvOH Aouabisws3 (3)
‘ssasboid
Ul SISPIO HOM PaUUDId
saDIAeS poddng WwiaysAs Bulyayol
PUD SADIUSADId JOJoBIIJ JoIuas ZONLBHEOIB §eoe/6e/6 §e0z/1/1 BuuasuiBua juaund eop|day upIBIos
‘SI9PIO NIOM SAI}OBLOD : :
104 6T/6 SOM BAI 0D
UOIJDD0| MaU pubwap 50oWS
suy 10 Apnys Ajiqispey| AGPIRUL I02KsAud opPOs3 unr PIOH UO aat SZ0e/1/9 BUIOBUO Yym diay O} rdoieu oo
lePleltel-Ylg] 21D Adpiay] |PaISAYd
wijopad o} Buyoo : uolDO| JusuNd Bulipuodx3
‘WD3} |d SND04 pup
s80I1AI8S poddng 2IUO Adpusy; spods
$}084Y2ID ypm ubisap PSR zanwoy abior agl ST0e/ /L $n20. PUOCXKS PED-BIOROUSY Adpiay] spods snoo4
oipWayos BuloBuo : :
"g34 JO Y88M JSilj 1O NVI Juswpodag Buissasold 9jusis
JO pus uibaq o} ssaooid mwMMMm_ twnnv__mm,u. 3o 39.3%0@> qasl SZ0Z/91/6 10} Juswdinba gs 8y 00r| 1uswaoD|day 19zi|usls
PIq IO} JUSWISSILIBADY IRSHguAkog ANSHPUSHY QOSWY M3U JO UOYDHDISUI
"SJIOA0IAAD J8)SH||CH
_w%ow_womm___ﬂwh JousIp au)
: | seomies poddng 0} 50D OU D $IB408Y IS}DM
o Ewmﬂwu_&ﬁwm 10108IQ JOIBS zaawoy abior asdl S202/62/8 MOU SADY UDD om siaym|UOHNIOS ABi1aug uoplim
SUOIDDO ¢ WDIBO)
joIBuab sy} puo " 16 d 2O
|ouIBUl Yyim Buluupid
9T/TL/1 Jo deam
mczmmE HOX2D} IO ANINDSS g 1B . -
BuluuD|d "UODNYSUOD BB 10 1058 zawny abior adl SZ0Z/11/€| ss@oov Jooq + OSS / Ajinoes DPONIBAL
HOJs 0} dnoig) 810D :
Byl O} panss! jODJUOD
|oACIddD 10}23iQ Zai8puj SLIDJS ApDay 30W
josodoud Buipuad ABojoIpDY /gD ajlspouleg Lunpsw PIOH UO asl asl dW uaym diay oy Joupasij pod Jo|bi| Bulbouwi,
sjuswalnbat
: JleYiet=Yg| za19puU] [BPOWRIPUD| | 0 o ABOIOIOD
mm:um_umwnﬂmn_wﬂﬂwwu_\_” KBOJoIPOY/GDT ayepDUIg yoiH PIOH UO asal §ToT/i/ 1L Juawidinba JO JUBSSBSSY |QIS{SOW [OIPOY.

pipog 9Z0z Aipnupf - pipoqyspq jo3foid

Page 18



WV 90:8 9Z0Z/vT/1T

Page 19

%001 €2 V101
%6 [4 MO
4 %L S WNIPSW
%04 9l UybiH
% INNOD ALRNON4
% ALINOINd 1D3rOdd
%001 {4 V101
%0 0
%6 4
%CT S PIOH YO
%0 0 aNPIBAQ
PSLD}S : %0L 91
/, |
aAl 06 pauupid %0 0 [ ]
SAI-OB Pajowss % INNOD SNLVIS
% SNLVIS JSVL
_ [ st
D ERTEMEE .
ABojouyoss) asundx3 yosypaw
OF UOSIOH uoKOWIOJU] ORRIoU ast|  szoz/el/s| of peipiBiw 8q Jouuod oy SUOH IO
PUD $59220 WIUOD S OBl UOWOo|DS - 5 BAIUAID (1M USID SIDDY}DBH UBIDD)
lIM WDS} USIDD 102410 HOP MDD Y n 9]
‘sipdal poau Jo)oaig Zaiapu]
SADY &M |DY} $,1D Yjog ABojolpoy/qo1 8)jspouiag el € so0iday ASUIDILI
'seoDyIaUl J0§ sseiboad SODIAIBS IGICTB eI SOl
ui sBuisaw ‘ssaiboid 21684D14S pUD SADW 81zng 9z0C/ /L SZ0Z/L1L16 PIOD3Y Y}DSH DIU0ID3|3 Ho4 JaW SODW
, asupdx3 yoaypaw
ul Buippng Aiouoyo1qg UODWLIOU “dA
‘ADMIBPUN "$BI|1004
oM UCHD|(DsUl BuisinN pajins spisyinos
uoHOPUNOS
PUD PSALLD SADY swia|) frnts Bupods zn adl sToe/ve/L pUD SPISYHON SIOW Zau| swooy Aglinbuoig
palepIO "3INPaYDs Uo 12810 *2 WDH|JiM }O SWOOJ AIOSUSS
Buissaibo.d swools yiog MOj dynadoisy} pajooipag
'SPUILS3IDS Yoay
. 's8INSOAXS ‘SUOIDZIUNWIWI
o 9Z/51/1 SM/ULOSH k'S oz !
J[FSIRpSUDEEA] 09 83A0|dwl| N UOA yeqozil3 920Z/S1/1 §202/42/9 1O AllasiA Snc.dul SIOMHOS UHIRSH
puo 3491dwod Buuip.) . } : ¢ Buiodal aoup)dwod|  8sAo|dw3 siomnuuw|
‘g19|dwod asoyd 1284d 81pWoIND ‘Buonly
Buiddouw aoopsy| Yioay asiojdwa auljuwnals
*MBIABI 10} pajuasald S9OINISS
PUD PB8}09)|0D 2IDD) 9NdY Zopupbuled J0f ybiH PIOH UQ aai ¥Z0Z/01/6 2oD|day WIBYSAS (IDD 8SINN
sinjap Budid| o Joposug Jouss

pipog 9Z0zZ Albnupr - pipoqyspq joafoid



BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL
Committee Approval: 7/20/22

Policy # BOD-10

<. Reviewed:

s oo REVISE: 7/20/22
Board Approval: 9/21/00, 8/25/22

Pg. 10f2

SUBJECT: Development of Board Agenda
POLICY:

The San Benito Health Care District Chief Executive Officer (CEQ). in consultation with the Board President,
Administratar_and Administrative Assistant are to develop the menthly-regular Board meeting agendas based
on Board committee reports, consent agenda _items, and old, and new business proposed by the CEO and/or
other Board members.

PROCEDURE:

ltems necessary for the Board business are to be prepared with sufficient time for Directors to adeguately
review and prepare prior to the monthly Board meeting.

Draft minutes from a Thursday Board meeting are due the afternoon of the Fridav of the following week.

Department and committee reports that are to be included as part of the Bboard packet are to be given to the
Administrative Assistant by noon Tuesday the week before the Board's reqular Thursday meeting.

All information provided for the board packet is considered public knowledge, and rules of confidentiality
should be of the highest priority.

Board packets are to be distributed no later than Monday of the week of the Board’s regular Thursday
meeting.

Board packets are available hardcopy or email for:
Board members (5)

Executive Team ——{45) CEO, €CO CNO; CFO, GOO-VP, Ambulatory and Physician Services,
VP. Information and Strategic Planning.

Chief of Medical Staff (1)
Administrative Assistant (2) (one for Admin-Executive- Assistant; one desk copy)
Board Counsel (1) (email-and-hardeepy-at-mesting)

Page 20



DIRECTOR’S AGENDA

DATE:

QUALITY ISSUES: Community Accountability and Values

Patient Care / Physician and Hospital

FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

PLANT / FACILITY UPKEEP AND SAFETY

PLANNING / STRATEGY VISIONS

Page 21



MISCELLANEOUS QUESTIONS / CONCERNS

Page 22



San Benito Health Care District
Board of Directors
Policy Manual

Fiduciary Responsibility

SUBIECT Of Board Members

WRITTEN BY | Board Ad Hoc Committee on Policy & POLICY 2000 - 14
Procedures NUMBER

APPROVED San Benito Healthcare District Board of
BY Directors EFFECTIVE May 24,2001

Resolution #

REPLACES September 21, 2000
Other

POLICY

The Board of Directors holds the Healtheare Health Care District (District) in trust for the community. The
Board of Directors have fiduciary duties of Care, Loyalty and Obedience. requiring them to act in good
faith. prioritize the District’s mission and community interests over personal gain. follow laws and Bvlaws.
manage fi inances Drudentlv and oversee quality of care. It-isrespensible for its financial welfare and for

TV Wwidiea w CAline AL

PROCEDURE

Duty of Care: Acting with the diligence and prudence of a reasonable person in a similar position. staying
informed about the District’s operations. finances. and risks. This involves asking questions. reviewing
financial statements. seeking expert advice. and making informed decisions.

While financial operation of the District is entrusted through the Administrator to the Chief Financial
Officer, the ultimate responsibility for sound financial management lies with the Board of Directors_
(Board). Therefore, careful consideration of monthly financial reports, the annual operating budget, and
requests for capital expenditures is imperative. Careful monitoring of the following indicators will keep
the Board aware of areas of service that may need attention.

. Medical Staff Reports
. Patient Satisfaction Survey Reports
. Risk Management Reports

Strong support should be given to all efforts to provide efficient, high quality patient care.

Duty of Lovalty: Prioritizing the District’s interests above personal. financial. or other competing
interests. avoiding conflicts of interest. This duty involves disclosing potential conflicts and recusal from
related decisions. acting for the good of the District. not personal benefit.

Duty of Obedience: Ensuring decisions and actions align with the District’s mission. purpose. bvlaws,
and applicable laws and regulations. This duty involves upholding the District's commitment to patient
care, community health. and its foundational principles.

Page 23



San Benito Health Care District Board

of Directors
Policy Manual
SUBIECT Limit of
Authority
WRITTEN BY | Board Ad Hoc Committee on Policy & POLICY 2000-17
Procedures NUMBER

APPROVED San Benito Health eare-Care District Board
BY of Directors EFFECTIVE May 24, 2001

Resolution #

REPLACES September 21, 2000
Other

POLICY

The San Benito Health Care District (District) Geverning-Board_of Directors (Board) is the unit of
authority for the District. Apart from the normal function as a part of the unitBoard, a Board member
has no individual authority.

PROCEDURE
1. Individually, a Board member may not commit the District to any policy, act, or expenditure.

2. A Board member cannot do business with the District-served, nor should the-any Board
member have an interest in any contract or agreement with the District in general.

3. A Board member does not represent their zone. nor any factional segment of the

community; rather -butsather is-a-part of the bedy-thateach member represents and acts for
the community as a whole.

4. No individual member of the Board, by virtue of holding office, shall exercise any
administrative responsibility aeitherwith respect to the District, nesas-anand shall
not. as an individual, command the services of any District employee.

Se No member of the Geverning-Board shall become an employee of the District while serving
on the Board.

4914-9070-3494, v. 2

Page 24



San Benito Health Care District
Board of Directors

Policy Manual
SUBJECT .
safetyand Disaster Plan
SAFETY. EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT. &AND
[DISASTER PREPAREDNESS
WRITTEN BY | Board Ad Hoc Committee on Policy & POLICY 2000 — 22
Procedures NUMBER -
APPROVED San Benito Healthcare District Board of
BY Directors EFFECTIVE May-24-2001
Resolution #
REPLACES
Other

To define the governance responsibilities of the San Benito Health Care District

(Dlstnct) Board of Directors (“the-Board”) in providing oversight of Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital’s (Hospital)

Safetv Program and Emergency Management/Disaster Preparedness Program, in accordance with applicable

federal and state laws and regulations governing Critical Access Hospitals (CAHs).

The Board affirms its duty to ensure that systems are in place to protect patients, staff, visitors, and the

communitv before, during, and after emergencies.

4905-2997-6966. v. 2

30

Page 25



POLICY STATEMENT

The Board ef-Birectors-shall provide strategic oversight, governance, and accountability for the Hhospital’s

Safety Program and Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Operational responsibility resides with the Chief

Executive Officer (CEQ) and delegated hospital leadership (e.g., Director of Emergency Management).

The Board ensures that the Hhospital maintains compliance with:

CMS CAH Conditions of Participation (42 CFR §485.623 & §485.625 — Physical Environment &
Emergency Preparedness)

CMS Emergency Preparedness Final Rule (All-hazards approach; training; communication plan; annual
review)

California Health & Safety Code; and California Code of Regulations, Title 22 (CAH requirements for
safety, disaster planning, and emergency operations)

National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) 99 & NFPA 101 (Life Safety Code)

National Incident Management (NIMS)/Incident Command Svstem (ICS) requirements

OSHA / Cal-OSHA safety standards

The Board’s role is policy governance, ret-rather than operations or dav-to-day management. The Board holds

the CEO accountable for ensuring the Hhospital is prepared and compliant.

PROCEDURE

1. Annual Review & Approval

The Board shall:

1.

Review and approve the Emergency-Onerations-Rlan{EOP) and associated hazard vulnerability analysis

(HVA) at least annually.

Review the organizational Safety Management Plan, including goals, incident trends, and annual

evaluation.

Verify that the EOP addresses CMS-required elements:

4905-2997-6966. v. 2

o All-hazards risk assessment

o Communications plan

o__Policies/procedures for subsistence, evacuation, shelter-in-place

o Roles and responsibilities

30

Page 26



o __Training and exercises

4. Ensure that annual disaster drills/exercises (full-scale or functional + tabletop) are completed and
evaluated.

2. Reporting to the Board

The Board will receive regular updates through the CEO or designee:

Quarterlv Reports

o Safety metrics and incident trends

¢ Environment of care rounds summary

e Workplace violence data {per SB 553 & California Code of Regulations, Title 8, §3342)

e Corrective actions and follow-up

e Status updates on emergency preparedness initiatives

Annual Reports

e Annual evaluation of the Emergencvy Management Program

o HVA results and mitigation strategies

e Compliance with CMS EP requirements

e Review of communitv partner engagement (EMS. Public Health. County QES)

3. Authority & Accountability

The Board shall:

e __Ensure the CEO assigns responsibility for safety, environment of care, and emergency preparedness
functions to qualified individual(s).

e Hold leadership accountable for implementing corrective actions, regulatory compliance, and
maintaining emergency readiness.

e Ensure adequate resources (equipment, staffing, training, communications systems) for emergency
preparedness.

e Support Hhospital participation in regional planning coalitions (e.g.. Medical Health Operational Area

Coordinator — MHOAC).

4. Governance During an Emergency

4905-2997-6966. v. 2

Page 27

30



During activation of the Emergency Operations Plan:

e _The Board retains governance oversight, not operational control.

e The CEO or Incident Commander provides timely briefings as appropriate.

e The Board mav be asked to support:

o__Resource allocation decisions

o__Community coordination

o __Emergency declarations as required by Ddistrict law

5. Compliance Monitoring

The Board ensures:

e The organization completes required CMS training, exercises, and after-action reviews (AARs).

e Gaps identified during drills or actual events are resolved.

e Policies and procedures remain updated and compliant with:

o CMS CoPs

o__ CDPH reguirements

o Local, state, and federal emergency response standards

6. Documentation

Documentation submitted to the Board shall be maintained in accordance with hospital policv and regulatory
reauirements, including:

e Minutes reflecting review/approval of EOP and Safety Plans

e Annual evaluations

e HVA assessments

e Exercise summaries and AAR/IPs (Improvement Plans)

RESPONSIBILITIES

30
4905-2997-6966. v. 2

Page 28



Board of Directors:
Provides governance oversight, approves plans, and ensures compliance and readiness.

Chief Executive Officer:
Responsible for operational implementation of plans and ensuring preparedness.

Director of Emergency Management:
Ensures plan maintenance, completion of reauired training and exercises, tracks compliance, and provides
reports to leadership.

REFERENCES (APA Format)

Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services. (20203). State Operations Manual Appendix W: Survey Protocol.,
Regulations and Interpretive Guidelines for Critical Access Hospitals. CFR 485.625 — Condition of Participation:
Emergency Preparedness Retrieved on December 12, 2025 from https://www.cms.gov/regulations-and-
guidance/guidance/manuals/downloads/som107ap w_cah.pdf-h

California Department of Public Health (CDPH). (No Date). Title 22, Division 5, Chapter 1, Article 7, Section
70741. Disaster and Mass Casualty Program. Retrieved on December 12, 2025 from
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs

National Fire Protection Association. (2021). NFPA 99: Health Care Facilities Code.

National Fire Protection Association. (2021). NFPA 101: Life Safety Code.

U.S. Department of Homeland Security. (2020). National Incident Management System (NIMS).

U.S. Department of Homeland Security. (2018). Incident Command System {ICS).

4905-2997-6966. v. 2

Page 29



BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL
Committee Approval: 7/20/22

FEYEET Policy #: BOD-23
«iiedii. Reviewed: 5/2001, 7/20/22

s o REVISEd: 5/24/2001, 7/20/22

Board Approval: 5/24/2001, 8/25/22
San Benito Health Care District Bylaws — Section X.B (1)

Pg. 1 of1

SUBJECT: Strategic Planning

POLICY:

The District recognizes the importance of ongoing strategic planning process by which it translates its mission
and values into actionable and measurable goals, strategies. initiatives. and proarams. The plan will provide
direction for both long and short-term decision-making by the San Benito Health Care District (District) Board of
Directors and Executive Leadership to fulfill the mission of the District and make choices among competing
demands for capital investment. philanthropy. facilities, and human resources.

PROCEDURE:

The President of the Board of Directors (Board) shall appoint all members of the Strategic Planning Committee
to include at least: two (2) members of the Board, Chief Medical Officer. one (1) representative of the Medical
Staff, one (1) representative of the Hospital Auxiliary, one (1) representative of the Directer of Nursing Chief
Nursing Officer, one (1) representative of the Foundation Board, VP. Ambulatory and Physician Services and/or
their desianee. VP, Information and Strategic Services and/or their designee, and the Chief Executive Officer
and/or kisthertheir designee.

BROCEDURE:

The Strategic Planning Committee shall meet as necessary during the year to propose to the Board specific
goals and objectives for a minimum three (3) year period. Such proposal shall be made no later than the second
quarter——————of each the fiscal year. The long-range strategic plan shall be revised and updated no less
than annually. The current Provider and Community Health Need Assessments will be referenced to identify
priorities.

Page 30



DoclD: 12531
. Revision: 1
HO Zel HOWkl ns Status: Pending Committee

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL ) Approval

Department:Board of Directors
Manual(s):

Policy : Board Member Identification, Compensation & Benefits
Policy

PURPOSE

To establish guidelines for servimg compensation, en expense reimbursement, and benefit participation for the Board of
Directors in accordance with applicable state laws and San Benito Health Care District (District) policy .

POLICY

! ers District has established the following requirements for Board of Directors (Board) identification, Human
Resources comphance expectations, and guidelines governing compensation, expense reimbursement, and participation in
District-sponsored benefit programs, in accordance with applicable laws and District policies.

PROCEDURE
Identification Badges

* Directors are required to obtain and wear District-issued identification (ID) badges issued by the Human Resources (HR)
Department.

o The HR Department will issue an identification badge to each Director.
o Directors must display badges as required while on District premises.
o Lost badges must be reported to HR immediately for replacement.

Human Resources Policy Familiarity

* Directors must familiarize themselves with the District's HR policies and procedures. All questions or concerns from
hospital personnel regarding HR matters must be referred to the HR Department.

Compensation

¢ Directors shall not receive any stlpend or per—meenng compensatmn unless specifically authorized by resolution of the
Board shalt in serve accordance w t with eompe m Health exeept and that Safety saeh Code shalt §32103.

Expense [l Reimbursement

e Directors atewed are entitled to reimbursement for “actual and necessary expenses mcurred while conducting official
District business, including travel , meals, and tretdentat lodging, expense consistent ireurred with Government Code §
53232.3 and Health & Safety Code § 32103.

. The_follomng types of oceurrences quahfy for rclmbursement when attended in the performance of theofficial bust

t duties as # : Fhe-members Directors of the Board sha#t and when prior apprd§hl is
obtamed. These examples are mtended to be enh&u! illustrative and not exhaustive and include, but are not limited to ,
the following:
Page 31

Pane 2



o Training workshops, seminars, and conferences.
o Educational workshops, seminars, and conferences.
Meetings of or sponsored by ACHD (Association of California Health Care Districts), CSDA (California Special

Districts Association), CHA (California Hospital Association), and other state or national organizations relevant to
the purposes of the District.

Meetings of local governmental entities and bodies and ad hoc committees thereof.

Meetings of local nonprofit organizations.

Meetings of community or civic groups or organizations.

Meetings of advisory groups and ad hoc committees organized or conducted by District staff.

Meetings with District consultants, advisors, and other professionals.

Any other activity that the Board determines in advance to be necessary or appropriate to the conduct of District

business, whether the request for attendance is initiated by the Board or by a Director.

» Expense claims must include itemized receipts and a brief description of the business purpose and must be submitted
within thirty (30) days of incurring the expense.

 The Chief Financial Officer shall review and verify all claims prior to approval.

[}

o 0 0 0 0 o

Health and Life Insurance Benefits

¢ Directors may participate in District-sponsored health and life insurance programs pursuant to Government Code §53201
and under the same terms and conditions applicable to District employees, as determined by wittae Board resolution.

¢ The HR Department shall coordinate enroliment, maintain documentation of their participation, status and as ensure
compliance with eligibility and reporting requirements.

Transparency and Reporting

¢ Directors shall provide brief reports on meetings attended at the expense of the District at the next regular meeting of the
District (Gov. Code §53232.3). If the Director is not in attendance at the next regular meeting, a written report may be
submitted and read aloud by another Director.

¢ All reimbursements and benefit participation are subject to inspection in accordance with the California Public Records
Act (Gov. Code §7920.000 et seq.) and other applicable laws.

¢ The District shall maintain all records of Board members member reimbursements and benefits in accordance with
public record retention requirements .

MFG_lumde/hs -sect-32103 Accessed: instiranes November &
aftment: 2025

California Government Code §§53201-53208, §53232.3 | hitps:/codes.findlaw.com/ca/government-code/gov-sect-
53201/ Accessed: November 10, 2025

Ralph M. Brown Act (Gov. Code §54950 et seq.) | hitps://codes findlaw.com/ca/government-code/gov-sect-54950/
Accessed: November 10, 2025

California Public Records Act (Gov. Code §7920 et seq.) |

https:/leginfo.legislature.ca. gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch xhtm|?
tocCode=GOV&division=10.&title=1 & part=&chapter=&article= Accessed: January 8, 2026

Page 32

Pane 3



Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

MEMORANDUM
To: Board of Directors
From: Suzie Mays

Vice President, Information & Strategic Services

Date: January 13, 2026

Re: Policies for Approval

Please find below a list of policies with a summary of changes for Board of
Directors approval. All revised policies are available for review upon request.
New policies are included in the packet.

Policy Title

Summary of Changes

Life Safety — Fire Watch

Revised policy approved 12/1/25
via expedited route to align with
current process, including updated
state and federal fire watch
requirements.

Section 1135 Waiver Compliance -
SNFs

New policy approved 12/1/25 via
expedited route to meet CMS 1135
waiver requirements for skilled
nursing facilities.

Suicide Assessment/Self-Harm
Behavior

Revised, converted from
Emergency Department policy to
house-wide.

Emergency Management Plan

Revised, reviewed at October 2025
Emergency Management meeting
and approved via expedited route.

Patient Safety Plan

New policy.

Page 33




Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

Section 1135 Waiver Compliance - SNFs

Disclaimer

PDF DISCLAIMER LEGAL NOTICE: This PDF was requested on 1/12/2026. PDFs should not be used as
official documentation. Contents of official documents are subject to change without notice. Lucidoc
makes no representation or warranty whatsoever regarding the completeness, accuracy, "up-to-dateness",

or adequacy of the information or materials contained herein. Please refer to Lucidoc for the most up to
date information.

CONFIDENTIALITY LEGAL NOTICE: This PDF may contain confidential information and is intended
solely for the addressee. The information may also be legally privileged. This transmission is sent in trust,
for the sole purpose of delivery to the intended recipient. if you have received this transmission in error,
any use, reproduction, or dissemination of this transmission is strictly prohibited. If you are not the
intended recipient, please immediately notify the sender and permanently delete this file.

Approvals

o Committee Approval: Chief Nursing Officer approved on 12/1/2025
« Committee Approval: Safety Committee approved on 12/1/2025

Revision Insight

Document ID: 12547
Revision Number: 0

Owner: Shonna Avant,
Revision Official Date: 12/1/2025

Revision Note;

Created to meet CMS 1135 waiver requirements for Skilled Nursing Facilities. Approved 12/1/25 via
expedited route. Approved by Policy Committee 1/12/26.

Fage Page 34



DoclD: 12547

HOZG' HOWk'ﬂS Revision: 0

Status: Official
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL Department: Regulatory

Manual(s):

Policy : Section 1135 Waiver Compliance - SNFs

PURPOSE

The purpose of this policy is to ensure that the Skilled Nursing Facility (SNF) maintains full
compliance with federal emergency preparedness requirements, including planning for operations
under a Section 1135 waiver issued by the Secretary of Health and Human Services (HHS). This
policy outlines the facility’s procedures, responsibilities, communication processes, and
documentation standards to be followed when an 1135 waiver is activated during a federally
declared emergency.

POLICY
1. An 1135 waiver may be activated only when BOTH of the following declarations are in place:
a. A Presidential emergency or disaster declaration under the Stafford Act or National
Emergencies Act.
b. A Public Health Emergency declared by the Health and Human Services (HHS)
Secretary.
2. When these criteria are met, CMS may issue either blanket waivers or facility-specific
waivers applicable to SNFs.
DEFINITIONS
1. 1135 Waiver: A temporary federal waiver allowing Centers for Medicare and Medicaid
Services (CMS) to modify or waive specific Medicare, Medicaid, or Children's Health Insurance
Program (CHIP) requirements during a declared emergency.
2 Alternate Care Site: A location approved by emergency management officials for provision of
care during a disaster response.
3. Presidential Declaration: Emergency or disaster declaration issued under the National

Emergencies Act or Stafford Act.

4. Public Health Emergency (PHE): A declaration issued under Section 319 of the Public Health

Service Act.
PROCEDURE
1. Activation Criteria

Page2 DocumentID 12547 Revision 0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital Page 35



a. An 1135 waiver may be activated only when BOTH of the following declarations are in
place:

i A Presidential emergency or disaster declaration under the Stafford Act or
National Emergencies Act.

ii. A Public Health Emergency declared by the HHS Secretary.
2. Responsibilities

a. Administrator or designee
i Ensures implementation of this policy.

il Serves as the primary liaison with CMS, the State Survey Agency, and local
emergency management.

b. Director of Nursing (DON) or designee:
i Oversees clinical operations under waiver conditions.

ii. Ensures required documentation and resident care standards remain
compliant.

c. Director of Emergency Management or designee:
i Activates emergency procedures.

ii. Coordinates communication with residents, family members, and staff.

d. All Staff:

i Follow modified operational standards as directed.

ii. Document care provision in accordance with waiver requirements.
3. Verification of Waiver Status
a. The Administrator or designee will verify CMS Section 1135 waiver activation.

i Retain official CMS guidance as evidence.
ii. Clinical and Operational Adjustments
Examples may include:
« Suspension of the 3-day qualifying stay.
« Waiver of the 60day wellness period.
« Extension of Minimum Data Sets (MDS)or care plan deadlines.
« Use of non-traditional spaces if authorized (e.g., activity rooms).

4. Resident Rights and Notifications

a. Inform residents and families when operations change under a waiver.

Page 3 Document D 12547 Revision 0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital

Page 36



i The facility must continue to protect resident rights at all times.

5. Communication Plan
a. Communicate waiver activation to all staff via email, text alert, or overhead
announcement.
b. Notify families using the facility’s emergency contact system.
c. Notify contracted providers and vendors.
d. Coordinate with local emergency management and public health.

6. Recordkeeping

a. Maintain all documents related to waiver activation, including CMS memos,
operational logs, and communication to staff and residents

b. Document all deviations from standard regulations

i. Include dates, staff involved, care provided, and citation of federal waiver
authority

c. Maintain records for a minimum of seven years after the end of the emergency

declaration or longer if required by state law.
7. Return to Normal Operations
a. The administrator or designee will direct all departments to resume standard

operations upon termination of the waiver.

b. Conduct a post-event evaluation to review compliance and identify improvement
opportunities

REFERENCES

1. Social Security Administration (SSA). (2024). 42 U.S.C. 1320b-5 Title 11 Sec. 1135. Retrieved
11/20/2025 from https://www.ssa.gov/OP_Home/ssact/title11/1135.htm.

2. Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS). (2021). 42 CFR § 483.73: Emergency
Preparedness Requirements for Long-Term Care Facilities. Retrieved 11/20/2025 from

https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/CFR-2021-title42-vol5/pdf/CFR-2021-title42-vol5-sec483-
73.pdf.

AFFECTED DEPARTMENTS

This policy applies to all facility departments, contracted service providers, licensed staff,

administrative leadership, and any personnel involved in the delivery of care, resident services, or
emergency operations within the SNF.

Page4 DocumentID 12547 Revision 0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital Page 37



Page 5

Document ID 12547 Document Status Official

Department Regulatory Department Director Avant, Shonna
Document Owner Avant, Shonna Next Review Date 12/01/2027
Original Effective Date 12/01/2025
Revised [12/01/2025 Rev. 0]
Keywords 1135
Attachments:

(REFERENCED BY THIS DOCUMENT)

Other Documents:
{WHICH REFERENCE THIS DOCUMENT)

Paper copies of this document may not be current and should not be relied on for official purposes. The current version
is in Lucidoc at

http://hzh-iis.hazelhawkins.com/?returnto=%2Fcgi%2Fdoc-gw.pl%3Fref%3Dhhmh%3A12547%240.

Document ID 12547 Revision 0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital Page 38



Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

Patient Safety

Disclaimer

PDF DISCLAIMER LEGAL NOTICE: This PDF was requested on 1/14/2026. PDFs should not be used as
official documentation. Contents of official documents are subject to change without notice. Lucidoc
makes no representation or warranty whatsoever regarding the completeness, accuracy, "up-to-dateness",

or adequacy of the information or materials contained herein. Please refer to Lucidoc for the most up to
date information.

CONFIDENTIALITY LEGAL NOTICE: This PDF may contain confidential information and is intended
solely for the addressee. The information may also be legally privileged. This transmission is sent in trust,
for the sole purpose of delivery to the intended recipient. If you have received this transmission in error,
any use, reproduction, or dissemination of this transmission is strictly prohibited. If you are not the
intended recipient, please immediately notify the sender and permanently delete this file.

Approvals

« Committee Approval: Policy Committee approved on 1/12/2026
 Signature: Shonna Avant signed on 1/6/2026, 4:06:32 PM

Revision Insight

Document ID: 12552

Revision Number: 0

Owner: Shonna Avant,
Revision Official Date: No revision official date

Revision Note:
New patient safety plan due Jan 1, 2026.

Page 1 Page 39



DoclID: 12552
Revision: 0
Pending Committee

Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL Stats: yooroval
Department:Quality
Manual(s):

Policy : Patient Safety

PURPOSE

The purpose of the Patient Safety Subcommittee Policy is to establish a structured framework for
the oversight, evaluation, and advancement of patient safety initiatives within San Benito
Healthcare District. This policy ensures alignment with Assembly Bill 3161 and California Health &
Safety Code 81279.6 by defining the operational structure through which patient safety activities
are reviewed, analyzed, and coordinated.

POLICY

San Benito Healthcare District shall maintain a Patient Safety Subcommittee as an integral element
of its Quality and Patient Safety Program. The subcommittee is responsible for the systematic
review of patient safety events, near misses, adverse events, system vulnerabilities, and potential
disparities related to sociodemographic factors. The subcommittee oversees implementation of all
aspects of the Patient Safety Plan as required under AB 3161, including anonymous reporting
mechanisms, evaluation of patient safety events for discrimination or inequity, and ensuring the
organization maintains a structured process to address racism and discrimination. The

subcommittee meets no fewer than three times per year, as required under Health & Safety Code
§1279.6.

DEFINITIONS

1. Adverse Event: An injury caused by medical management rather than the patient’s
underlying medical condition.

2. Annual Patient Safety Evaluation: A comprehensive annual assessment required by AB 3161
that evaluates safety program activities, outcomes, and recommendations.

3. Apparent Cause Analysis: A structured method for reviewing events that do not require a
full root cause analysis but necessitate evaluation of contributing factors.

4. Event Reporting System: The platform used to report safety events, near misses, hazards,
and suspected discrimination.

5. Failure Mode and Effects Analysis: A proactive assessment used to identify potential
weaknesses or vulnerabilities in a process before harm occurs.

6. Just Culture: A framework that distinguishes between human error, at-risk behavior, and
reckless behavior, promoting fair accountability and organizational learning.

Page2 Document D 12552 Revision 0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital Page 40



7. Near Miss: An event that could have reached a patient and caused harm but did not.

8. Patient Safety Officer: The designated individual responsible for managing patient safety
activities, including compliance with AB 3161 reporting and analysis expectations.

9. Performance Improvement Project: A structured initiative to improve processes and reduce
risks.

10. Root Cause Analysis: A methodical investigation used to determine underlying causes of a
significant safety event.

RESPONSIBILITIES

A description of the process for carrying out tasks related to the policy implementation. This
section should indicate how the requirements of the policy would be carried out.

REFERENCES

California Department of Public Health. (2025, November 25). AFL 25-31: Assembly Bill (AB) 3161 -
Health care facility patient safety and antidiscrimination [All Facilities Letter].

California Department of Public Health. (2025). AFL-25-31 Attachment 01: Patient Safety Plan
Checklist [PDF].

AFL-25-31-Attachment-01

California Department of Public Health. (n.d.). Health and Safety Code §1279.6: Patient safety plan
requirements.

California Department of Public Health. (n.d.). Health and Safety Code §1279.1: Adverse events
reporting requirements.

Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services. (n.d.). QAPI: Quality Assurance and Performance
Improvement—How-to guide. https://www.cms.gov/Medicare/Provider-Enrollment-and-
Certification/QAPI/Downloads/QAPI-Plan-How-to-Guide.pdf

Institute for Healthcare Improvement. (n.d.). Plan-Do-Study-Act (PDSA) cycle. https://www.ihi.org

Joint Commission Resources. (n.d.). Root cause analysis and proactive risk reduction strategies
[Standards & guidance]. https://www.jcrinc.com

Marx, D. (2001). Patient safety and the Just Culture: A primer for health care executives. Columbia
University. (Foundational reference for Just Culture principles used in the policy.)

San Benito Health Care District dba Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital. (2025). Organizational Quality
Assessment and Performance Improvement (QAPI) Program 2025-2026 [Internal document].

AFFECTED DEPARTMENTS

Page 3

This policy applies to all departments, services, and care settings within San Benito Healthcare
District.

Document ID 12552 Revision 0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital Page 41



Attachment 1

ORGANIZATIONAL PATIENT SAFETY PLAN
SAN BENITO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT dba Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital

1. Patient Safety Committee

Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital maintains a Patient Safety Subcommittee that functions as
the facility’s Patient Safety Committee as required under Health & Safety Code §1279.6 and
Assembly Bill 3161. This interdisciplinary group reviews and approves the Patient Safety
Plan, receives reports of patient safety events, monitors corrective actions, and
recommends strategies to prevent future events. The committee reviews the plan at least
annually or more often as needed to incorporate regulatory updates and advancements in
patient safety practices.

2. Patient Safety Events Reporting

The hospital maintains a reporting system that allows any individual—including staff,
practitioners, contracted providers, patients, families, and visitors—to report patient safety
events. Anonymous reporting is available, and all reports are handled confidentially. The
reporting structure supports a culture of safety by promoting transparency, non-punitive
reporting, and learning from events.

3. Analyses Process

Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital uses Root Cause Analysis, Apparent Cause Analysis, and
other systematic review tools to analyze patient safety events. Analyses include review of
sociodemographic factors when voluntarily provided: age, race, ethnicity, gender identity,
sexual orientation, preferred language, disability status, payor, and sex. This process
identifies disparities, system vulnerabilities, and inequities. Patient safety events also
include all adverse events defined under Health and Safety Code §1279.1, including
preventable health care-associated infections.

4. Team of Facility Staff to Conduct Analyses

A multidisciplinary team conducts analyses of patient safety events. This team includes
nursing, medicine, risk management, quality and patient safety staff, allied health
professionals, and operational representatives as appropriate. Members will possess training
in Just Culture, RCA/ACA methodology, equity analysis, and human factors.

5. Patient Safety Training

The facility provides ongoing patient safety education for all personnel and practitioners.
Training includes the use of the reporting system, anonymous reporting, Just Culture
principles, recognition of safety risks, and reporting suspected racism or discrimination.

Page4 DocumentID 12552 Revision 0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital Page 42



Education is provided at orientation, annually, and in response to identified trends or
regulatory changes.

6. Racism and Discrimination

Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital actively evaluates patient safety events for racism,
discrimination, and inequitable treatment. The hospital monitors disparities, identifies
trends, and develops interventions to eliminate inequities. Staff are encouraged to report
suspected discrimination through standard or anonymous pathways. Findings are escalated to
the Patient Safety Subcommittee and QAPI Committee for further action.

Plan Evaluation and Reporting

Page 5

The Patient Safety Plan is evaluated annually by the Patient Safety Subcommittee and QAPI
Oversight Committee. The Annual Patient Safety Evaluation summarizes patient safety events,
analyses, corrective actions, disparities monitoring, and recommendations for improvement. In
compliance with AB 3161 and AFL 25-31, updated Patient Safety Plans are submitted to CDPH at
each license renewal beginning January 1, 2026.

Document ID 12552 Revision 0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital Page 43



Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

Practitioner Code of Conduct

Disclaimer

PDF DISCLAIMER LEGAL NOTICE: This PDF was requested on 1/8/2026. PDFs should not be used as
official documentation. Contents of official documents are subject to change without notice. Lucidoc
makes no representation or warranty whatsoever regarding the completeness, accuracy, "up-to-dateness”,

or adequacy of the information or materials contained herein. Please refer to Lucidoc for the most up to
date information.

CONFIDENTIALITY LEGAL NOTICE: This PDF may contain confidential information and is intended
solely for the addressee. The information may also be legally privileged. This transmission is sent in trust,
for the sole purpose of delivery to the intended recipient. If you have received this transmission in error,
any use, reproduction, or dissemination of this transmission is strictly prohibited. If you are not the
intended recipient, please immediately notify the sender and permanently delete this file.

Revision Insight

Document ID: 12417

Revision Number: 1

Owner: Brittney Slibsager, Director
Revision Official Date: No revision official date

Revision Note:
Changing the wording for impairment

Page 1 Page 44



. Doc'I]?: 12417
HCIze| HOWk| NS Revision: 1

Status: In preparation
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL . .
ORI o3 Department:Medical Staff Services

Manual(s):

Policy : Practitioner Code of Conduct

POLICY

The purpose of this policy is to promote a culture of safety, respect, and professionalism
throughout Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital (HHMH). This policy establishes expectations for
behavior that supports effective teamwork, high-quality patient care, and a respectful environment
for all employees, providers, patients, and visitors. All members of the Medical Staff, Advanced
Practice Providers, and Allied Health Professionals are expected to conduct themselves in a manner
that upholds the hospital's mission and values. HHMH does not tolerate disruptive, abusive, or
unprofessional conduct that undermines team performance or compromises patient safety.

All Medical Staff, Advanced Practice Providers, and Allied Health Professionals will review this
policy upon initial appointment and reappointment. Education regarding professional conduct
expectations may be included in orientation, ongoing training, or remedial education as needed.

PROCEDURE

Practitioners are expected to:
* Treat all patients, staff, and colleagues with respect, courtesy, and professionalism.
 Communicate in a clear, constructive, and non-hostile manner.
 Collaborate with all members of the healthcare team to ensure quality patient care.
» Refrain from disruptive, abusive, or retaliatory behavior including but not limited to:
» Verbal outbursts or use of abusive language.
o Threatening, intimidating, or demeaning behavior.
» Refusal to carry out reasonable care responsibilities or cooperate with staff.
¢ Uphold patient safety and confidentiality as a top priority.
« Comply with hospital policies, bylaws, rules and regulations, and applicable regulatory requirements.

» Engage in professional conflict resolution when disagreements occur, using appropriate reporting and
communication channels.

Practitioners will NOT engage in the following behaviors:
¢ Sexual harassment or inappropriate sexual remarks.

¢ Abusive or foul language, shouting, or repeated sarcasm.

Page 2 Page 45



Threats of violence, retribution, litigation, or financial harm.

Racial, ethnic, or other discriminatory slurs.

Intimidating or bullying behavior.

Publicly criticizing or shaming staff, especially in front of patients.
Blaming or shaming others for negative outcomes.

Medical record entries that disparage the Hospital, staff, or colleagues.

Physical or verbal threats or slander against other physicians or healthcare professionals.

Practitioners are expected to:

Never treat patients while impaired by alcohol, drugs, or illness.

Follow hospital policies and procedures, addressing concerns through proper channels.
Use constructive conflict management and direct communication to resolve disagreements.
Show respect and cooperation with all providers and staff.

Be honest and truthful at all times.

Impairment:

The Hospital maintains a zero tolerance policy for physicians and allied health professionals who practice
while impaired. A practitioner may not provide patient care, be on call, or perform pmfessxonal duties while
under the influence or while consuming alcohol or drugs. Additionally, if a practitioner is experiencing a
medical condition or is using prescribed medication that compromises or has the potential to compromise
judgment, motor skills, cognitive function, or patient safety, the practitioner may not provide patient care, be
on call, or perform professional duties. Any level of impairment, suspected or confirmed, that poses a potential
risk to patients and staff, or the practitioner themselves, is strictly prohibited.

Any concern regarding impairment must be reported immediately to Medical Staff leadership. The Medical Staff

leadership will take immediate action to protect patient safety, which may include removal from clinical duties and/or
call responsibilities.

Impairment while being responsible for patient care may result in corrective or discplinary action in
accordance with the Medical Staff Bylaws, Rules and Regulations, and applicable fair-hearing rights.
Corrective actions may include, but are not limited to:

o Formal collegial intervention with written warning.

o Formal monitoring or conditions on practice.

o Suspension or restriction of clinical privileges.

o Mandatory evaluation or treatment and referral to the Physician Wellness Committee.

o Suspension or revocation of privileges (as outlined in the Medical Staff Bylaws).

Reporting and Resolution:

Page 3

Page 46



Any staff member who witnesses or experiences disruptive or unprofessional behavior may report it to their
supervisor, the Medical Staff Office, or Department Chair/Chief of Staff. A Midas report of the incident is
encouraged. Reports will be handled promptly, confidentially, and in accordance with due process.

* The Medical Executive Committee (MEC) will review allegations and take appropriate action, which may
include:

o Informal counseling or coaching.

o Formal collegial intervention with written warning.

o Mandatory behavioral training and referral to the Physician Wellness Committee.

o Suspension or revocation of privileges (as outlined in the Medical Staff Bylaws).
Confidentiality and Non-Retaliation
All reports of inappropriate behavior will be treated confidentially to the extent possible. Retaliation against anyone
who reports a concern in good faith is strictly prohibited. Retaliation includes, but is not limited to, intimidation,
threats, exclusion from committee activities, negative peer references, altered work assignments, or any adverse
action taken as a consequence of reporting or cooperating in good faith. Anyone found to have engaged in retaliatory
behavior will be subject to corrective action, up to and including suspension or termination of privileges, in
accordance with the Medical Staff Bylaws. All reports will be handled with discretion, and HHMH will take

appropriate steps to protect the confidentiality of individuals involved, consistent with applicable law and due
process requirements.

REFERENCES

¢ Joint Commission Leadership Standard LD.03.01.01: Code of Conduct
¢ Medical Staff Bylaws and Rules & Regulations

e American Medical Association Code of Medical Ethics

Page 4 Page 47



Document ID 12417 Document Status In preparation

Department Medical Staff Services Department Director Slibsager, Brittney
Document Owner Slibsager, Brittney Next Review Date

Original Effective Date 12/01/2025

Revised [12/01/2025 Rev. 0]

Attachments:

(REFERENCED BY THIS DOCUMENT)

Other Documents:

(WHICH REFERENCE THIS DOCUMENT)

Paper copies of this document may not be current and should not be relied on for official purposes. The current
version is in Lucidoc at

http://hzh-iis.hazelhawkins.com/?returnto=%2Fcgi%2Fdoc-gw.pl%3Fref%3Dhhmh%3A 12417%241.

Page 5 Page 48



e Flu and RSV on the rise over last 3 weeks — not to late to get vaccine

Chief Nursing Officer Report

January 2026

e |DDSI (International Dysphagia Diet Standardization Initiative) standardization across
hospital and SNFs

Within 10% of Target |

CNO Dashboard December 2025
December December YTD Total YTD Total

Description 2025 Actual | 2025 Budget Actual Budget
ED Visits 2,342 2,546 13,780 13,927
ED Admission % 10%:> 10%:>
LWBS % <2.0% <2.0%
Door to Provider <10 min <10 min
MS admissions 91 640
ICU admissions 15 102
Deliveries 35 196
OR Inpatient 34 251
ASC/OP Cases 36 227
Gl 9] 544

Page 49




OR Cases By Service Line

2025 OCTOBER | NOVEMBER | DECEMBER
TOTAL SURGERIES ** 201 210 181
GENERAL SURGERY 28 a7 28
ORTHOPEDIC TOTAL 43 41 41
PODIATRY 0 0 0]
TOTAL JOINTS 6 3 4
UROLOGY L] 4 3
OB/GYN TOTAL 18 16 35
C/SECTIONS 6 6 9
ENT TOTAL 3 1 0]
GITOTAL 104 109 74
Gl ASC 99 104 71
GIINO 1 1 0
GI INPT 4 4 3
GI CANCELS* 0 0 0]
*Cancel: not included in GI Total
**These totals include GI
OR Cases By Service Line
2024 OCTOBER | NOVEMBER | DECEMBER
TOTAL SURGERIES ** 228 180 134
GENERAL SURGERY 40 33 26
ORTHOPEDIC TOTAL 28 25 36
PODIATRY 1 1 0
TOTAL JOINTS 0 0 0
UROLOGY 6 3 2
OB/GYN TOTAL 24 21 15
C/SECTIONS 8 0 s
ENT TOTAL 1 1 0]
GI TOTAL 129 96 5§
Gl ASC 125 95 54
GIINO 0 0 0
GIINPT 5 1 1
GI CANCELS* 3 1 0]

*Cancel: not included in GI Total

#**Theze total: include GI

Page 50



-

Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

REGULAR MEETING OF THE FACILITIES AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
911 SUNSET DRIVE, HOLLISTER, CALIFORNIA
MONDAY, JANUARY 19, 2026 - 4:30 P.M.
SUPPORT SERVICES BUILDING, 2" FLOOR - GREAT ROOM

San Benito Health Care District is a public agency that serves as a responsive, comprehensive health care
resource for its patients, physicians and the community.

1. Call to Order

2. Update on Current Projects
e Project Dashboard — December 2025

3. Review Financial Updates
e Financial Statements — December 2025
e Finance Dashboard — December 2025
e Supplemental Payments — December 2025
e Updated Cashflow Budget FY 2026

4. Consider Recommendation for Board Approval of Purchase of Digital Mobile Ergo C-Arm ESP
(Expanded Surgical Platform).
e Report
o Committee Questions
e Motion/Second

5. Public Comment

This opportunity is provided for members of the public to make a brief statement, not to exceed
three (3) minutes, on matters within the jurisdiction of this District Board Committee, which are
not on this agenda.

6. Adjournment

Page 51



The next Facilities and Finance Committee meeting is scheduled for Monday, February 23, 2026 at
4:30 p.m.

The complete Facilities and Finance Committee packet, including subsequently distributed materials and
presentations, is available at the Facilities and Finance Committee meeting and in the Administrative Offices of
the District. All items appearing on the agenda are subject to action by the Facilities and Finance Committee. Staff
and Committee recommendations are subject to change by the Facilities and Finance Committee.

Notes: Requests for a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, to
attend or participate in a meeting should be made to District Administration during regular business hours at 831-
636-2673. Notification received 48 hours before the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable
accommodations.

Page 52



WV 05:9 9Z0Z/€T/T

"82uppInB H4aD
pPaau Osjy "Xy JUBIDYYNS|
)1 985 0} juswasojdel
jiod 1adpayd/iejows
Jo} uolDBIsBAUl
jowiaut Buipuagd

$32IAJBS JDIIBING
JO Joyo8iq

DINJUBA
-1eqns PuUa

0¥

sTOZ/1E/TL

yzoz/oz/tt

sjuawainbay
QdHSO $2d ¥O Buyopdn

pingay 30

‘gz aspyd Joy ajpqo
‘dOW jaund |Douosfe
Buupsd fys udy un

papuaxa ainpayods

Jo4094Q
ABojoipoy/ap

Zosepu3
ayepouseg

£99

9z0Z/1/¥

yzozT/e/9

juswopjday JazApuy

Z asoyd qo17

(uolo20| jusubwsed
O} 8AOW O} SISZAIOUD
ApD31 pup pajsiduwiod
S1 Z @s0yd g1

|JuUN }NO 35012 AIDIDYO
{ou jIm joslosd)
‘ssa@d01d uoROPHOA

3Y} JO %G UO AyusuND

jooaiq
ABojoipoy/qol

zesopu3
ayjopoulag

699

9zOT/ L /¥

vzoz/L/9

(AuO uoyoPIDA}
siazAipuy BulpoiBbdn

| 850yd qo1

uoyDyID§sul 10} diodeid
O} WD} 10§ SI00}

By} UDIS ADI-X PUD
Z1/1 J0 Y99m ajisuo 8q
0} PajNPayYos JIOPUBA

Jop004q
AdDULIDUd

DISADY USSADN

asl

yzoz/v/iTt

SBUIYDDW SIXAJ MBN

Uoyo||Disui Qg

ajopdn

8j0y

19pIoyeDIS Ao

snjois| uopoing

AN 09

8{bq yojs

o-o&:.__

SWDON .uo_o._m_

SalIon,

- piIpoqyspq }29foid 90T NV

Page 53



WV 05:9 920Z/€T/T

‘uoyoZIUYdo U0l
woyled UDD SOUND8S
3J0§2Q YJOM JO SHSM
¥-C PRIDWIYS] "OM
3y} loy suswennbal
Buiqos poys

O} Z1/1 S4iSuO JOPUIA

$BOINISS
U0 9YNDY
1O JOjoauN( oIS

Z8pUDWIR JOf

# josloid] |YDH o}
paIwIgns SjUBSWNI0Q

UOIINYSUOD KOS DI

92/Z1/1 40 Aoom Bupssubuz
Buyasw Joxon 10y ”m>“q_ “Asjos
. 9y :Aundag
BuuuD|d "UOINLSUOD , zewoy abior ybiy
o1 0} dNoIS 8107 Juswabouow
] to BNSSI §ODLHUO Asusbiour
YL Of P 1 {ODL4UOD 10 Jogoeuq
ioy081Q za19puz
uoIsioep Buipuad ABojoipoy/qo] ey apouiag wnipevy
[XX074
pajaidwod aq O} oM Bunesubug
puajx@ o} uoipbojddo ) X
UOISUe, 'SA3 ‘Ajejos
isueix3 Jlusias ¢
' 8yl ‘Aundas
paiugns uoyobdddo , zanwoy abior yb6iH
uD.B |YDH ‘BulpL3P JuswaBOUOW
* 9T/L/ 1 3y .m_ouon AausBieus
PaRILIgNSs A|njssadons joJopoexa
upjd 8duodwod)
"934 JO N@3M IsIly IO NI
jo pua uibaq o} ssso0id
Pq ;o*.ﬂcmEmm_tw%( S9IAIBS [PIBINS DINJUBA 61
00-5€-5v0Z5S JO Jopoauq -1egns IpUaw 4YOH

asi ¥ToT/TlLY AJin2as juoyul SDINDS/SONH

qal SZ0Z/t1/€| 55820V 100Q + OSS / Aundas DPONIOA,

SHDYS Appay aNOW

asl §zoz/ /01 N usym ey QuITEE] 004 soH0n, BulBown,
SPIDPUDYS

£60Z/1/1 qgl| Aieyos 3 8ouoidwo) JIWsias ITTIEIN
IVOH }8aw o} apoibdn
juswppdaq Buissad0id 8|usjs

asi STOZT/91/6 104 yuswdinba s gy 00r| Jusweaonidey Jez|uss

ODSWY MBU JO UoYDjDIsUl

sal|1oD4 - pIooqysnq §>3fold 9Z0T NV

Page 54




WV 059 9ZOZ/ET/T

%001 1 1101
%0 0 MO
924 £ WnNIpew
%€L 8 [72]
% INNOD ALYONNd
% ALNON 1D3r0dd
%001 Ll 1vi0l
%0 0
%6 t
%0 0 PIOH VO
%0 0
*%lé ol
aall 06 pauuoid %0 0
an|-0b pajowyss % INNOD SNIVIS
% SNLVIS JSV1
s|ojoy
Buyassuibug
SA3 ‘Ay8yoS
‘ubisap oyDWaYs UC 9y ‘Aunoag oiuyo Adoalay) spods snoo4
$}094IYSID Yijm Bupjiopm ‘Juswaboupw 23wy SB.0r| wWipew aal seoe/1/L pupdxs pup 3joAocuusy Adoiay siods sn304
Asusbiewy
Jo Jopdanq
‘(DACIAdD (WOH I8j0
| 'SA3 ‘Ajajos o
soy joaloid (§) 4onbay ancAlies snopiozoy o Buleqg o} anp
"Ho ubis jouy Buipuad , chaomco 3 zaiwny abior ybiH 9z0C/ 1Y szoz/vL/1|  ino pasoyd aq o} pasnbal podiisH Q3
'9/Z1 pPayadwond) + >ocom._.wE<< S| "V Ul pamojjo Jabuoj ou
SDM |DAOWSI 3 PUD WSISAS 444V UD SI WBISAS
0 Jo)oauNQg
piys/uoyowsp osloxd
IVOH Aousbiewsy (3)

sayliIoDy - pIpoqyspq §22[01d 9Z0Z NI

Page 55



e
P
=
. - -
- San Benito Health Care District
HQ Zel A Public Agency

Hawkins 911 Sunset Drive
SAEMATREAL RCAPRAL Hollister, CA 95023-5695

SKILLED NURSING FACILITIES {831) 637-6711
HOME HEALTH AGENCY

Sun Benito Health Care District

January 19, 2026

CFO Financial Summary for the District Board:

For the month ending December 31, 2025, the District’s Net Surplus (Loss) is $2,331,831 compared to a
budgeted Surplus (Loss) of $517,026. The District exceeded the budget for the month by $1,814,805.

YTD as of December 31, 2025, the District’s Net Surplus (Loss) is $7,326,968 compared to a budgeted
Surplus (Loss) of $5,965,472. The District is exceeding its budget YTD by $1,361,496.

Acute discharges were 153 for the month, exceeding budget by 10 discharges, 7%. The ADC was 14.77
compared to a budget of 12.87. The ALOS was 2.99. The acute I/P gross revenue exceeded the budget
by $1.03 million or 16% while O/P services gross revenue exceeded the budget by $2.06 million or
7%. ER I/P visits were 109 and ER O/P visits were under budget by 135 visits or 6%. The RHCs &
Specialty Clinics treated 3,416 (includes 523 visits at the Diabetes Clinic) and 1,062 visits respectively.

Other Operating revenue exceeded budget by $847,452 due mainly to:

1) $204,992 in DSH payments.
2) Additional accruals for various supplemental payments.

Operating Expenses were under budget by $14,541 due mainly to: overages in Registry of $185,978
and Professional Fees of $119,575 being offset by savings in Employee Benefits of $163,473 from
health insurance costs and Salaries & Wages Expense of $215,261.

Non-operating Revenue was exceeded the budget by $109,770 due to the timing of donations from the
Foundation.

The SNFs ADC was 87.65 for the month. The Net Surplus (Loss) is $922,074 compared to a budget of
$100,082. YTD, the Net Surplus (Loss) is $1,596,462 exceeding the budget by $985,575.

We bring you... Health, Compassion & Innovation

Page 56



9zT'LLL'Y 1€ ZER'ZETT 9LT'E99°E 809°G6L°Y £E0“ETL 6LT°T SE0'SOL'T oTE'EET SPE'BES 'Y (SS0T) EWOONI ONILWNEJO 18N
LTL'S52T°'SL 0 (Z6E'TET) 0¥ ‘¢80 ‘€8 Z10°'9589 28 ¥S0°LTH'TT (v (Z0T'¥9) SLL'T6L'ET €L9LTLET SISNIAXS TYIOL
L8L'v89°C {8) (€14 28:14] bS8 °SEEE 90¥°Z91°¢€ £€0°62Z¥ (s) (tez‘se) SO0T ‘825 vZE 66V WHAHLO
¥6Vv'882 (9T) (E9E°6T) SLE 'BIT €T0'66 z6€'9 (8s) (zzy'tU) 885°61 99189 LSHAALNI
6ZT'916°Y ¢ vov 0ET 8TZ'T68'T 289°'120°2 VL ETE ot 918 °ZE €0Z°STE 6T0'9%E LMOWY ¥ NOILVIDEY4SQ
»¥0'€E6 9 LST'SS 0€S°8T0°T L8B3 €080 Y €90°£91 [14 0s9°8Y¥ SSL'69T S0¥'8TIZ TEINES
68L°0EB’L (z) (9L0'0ZT) 605 €ST'8 EEV'EE0’D Leziese’t (0 (06€°6T) 9EL TLE'T 9¥E ' ESE'T $82TAYSS AQISVHOUNd
¥30'85¥°9 Q TE€8°YT €9%'0L9 L Y6Z'589°L ¥96°99T°1 9 668°LL 002°822°'T 680°90€°T S31I44ANS
134:8 44 2 8 8v0'€9L ¥Z€'896°6 ZLE'TEY 0T LEE'SPL T ¢t S8T 61T veL ¥¥9 ‘T 6€90°¥9L'T SEF4 TYNOISSEAOUd
ELT'SZ6'ZT (€} (TLE YY) Z16°LLS ¥T TYS'IET T 6ZT6°T66°T (6) {SET’0TT) ¥00°SLE'T oL8'¥3T’2 SIIJEN3Y SSAOTINI
989 °'€50°€ 14 EL6°TLL 90€ ‘ZST'E 6LZST6'E 9 L6¥ Le ZSZ'S6T vBE °STS 9€9'0ZL XULSIOTY
6¥L‘25L 6T (€) (609°€TT'T) £16°'061 ¢€E $OE‘LLO'ZE ¥ 'Eve 'y (s) (95£°'992) 9T0‘€T9'S 0ST '¥¥E’S SEOVYM 3 SHTAVTIVS
:SASNIIXS ONILVYAIO
¥SE'ZE0'Z8 1 0v0 ‘106 085 '05L 98 0Z9'159°L8 L80°0¥T €1 [44 €E6°0¥9°T S80°576 €1 810°995°ST BNNFATY ONILV4Ed0 LIN
SSH'E8E‘D 69 YLE'LOG'Y 963°201 L 0L0‘0t0zT 9%0 ‘tEL L9 zZS¥'LY8 65¥‘€LZ T 1160212 ANNBAZY ONILVIEJO dAHLO
668 €YY LL (s) (EEE‘900 ') ¥88°LY9 6L TS5 1¥9°S¢L T¥0'LOV'TT 9 zeY'€6L 9Z9°159 21 80T SYY'ET SONEASY INZIIVS LIN
TOE'S6E'¥ST S 6VE'BYI ‘L ZLY 99V 19T 128°¥TT 691 L60'€91'S2 0t 6T5°005°2 0S'T¥Y'SZ €20°29¥6 LT SNNIATY WO¥d SNOILONAEA TYIOL
0 TT9°SST [} 119 ‘SST 0 zY0'TE 0 zZv0 1€ MOTTVY TVALOVAINGD SAHA\LSITYLIdSOH
697°'999 LT S 8IT LeY'Y ETL'88L°8L TE6 'SEL 0F 998 °'95¥'Vy 8 ¥10'89¢ BOO'TES 'V ZTO'668'Y SINHWLSOCAY ANY STVALOVIINGD YHHLO
995’891 18 156 °0ST £92°981 ¥Y1ZLEE BLT 2T €LT 0T8°0S T0E'62 108 A ALIYVHD
6ET'LSL'Y (£2) (L10'L9€'T) ¥%9°'850°9 LTI TE9'Y ¥S1'ZV6 A9 869297 06€°'L96 880 '0ET'T ISNEdXE LE8A avd
SLL'998°6S S »¥6'BIE'E L9Z'0S5°'T9 1TZ°'698°99 ZyL'yLe’s [3 8ze’ers S00°683°6 €E€°ZES ' OT SEINYMOTTY TYALOVHLINOD TYD- IAEN
TES'PEE'TY 9 ™we'zve 't 585°788°¥9 9z '528°89 LSL LLR'E 2 LTI'YYO'T 008°vZZ 0T LTH'692' 1T SEONYMOTTY TYALIVELNOD IUYDIGHW
TEANNIASY WO¥d SNOTLONAEa
00Z '6€0 'ZET z STO'Z¥9'E 9SE‘PTT T¥E TLE'9SL ¥¥T 8ET'0LS LE 6 000°'¥6Z°€E 0ET €60’ 8E 0ET'LBE’TY ANNIASY INHILVd SSOAD TYLIOL
0TO'TTL ELT z 625'€98°Z $.8°96L 'Z81 £0¥°099°681 8LE'OL6 ‘BT 3 €86°950°C 9€9°¥81'62 619°T¥Z 1€ SNNFAZY LNEILVALNO SSO¥D TYIOL
0 S60'L99 0 560 °L99 [} 8Z°¥0T 0 82°¥0T SNNZASY d\O SAFd\ILSITYLIdSOH
0TO"TTL ELT T YEW'96T 2 ¥L8'96L°281 80€ ‘€66 ¥8T 8LE'0L6 ‘8T L z0L'2TS6'T 9€9 V8T '6Z BEE'LET'TE ANNIASY INESILVYILAO ANVTTIONY
681 °8Z€'8S 1 98Y'BLL z8Y ' LTE'BS 896 'S60'66 09L'665'8 129 910°LET'T v6y'806°8 ZIS'SYT 0T BNNBAZY INITLVANI S50¥D TYIOL
0 LEO'EOT'T 0 LEO'EOT Y 0 ¥¥8°STT 0 »¥8STZ INNSAFYE d\I SAII\LSITY.LIISOH
169°LVL ST (6) (9€9°¢€LT'2) LLB'669°52 T¥Z'928°€T S¥Z'ZL9’C A4 860°9ST LSB'SZL'E S56°188°€ ANNFASY INSILVANI ANVTIIONY
0SL bLE TT € 805 'SEE 000026 2T 80§ °55L°2ZT ovY‘vL0‘Z z €99°TE 005°260°2 £9T°¥2T°2 FNNIAHY ENILAO¥ dANS
E¥L°50L'02 8 BLS'ETS'T 509 L6102 €8T 11’12 SLO'E58°Z Lz 44 2811 LET'060°E 055 ‘€26 '€ SONEASY SNILOOY HLODY
‘EONSASY INIILVE $S0¥D
ye/1e/en LWRVTAVA TIAVIAVA st/re/T sT/TE/TT sz/te/CT IORVIEVA LORVTEVA sz/te/TT sT/TE/TT
WX HOI¥S INTIURS o=/ 80d igoang TYDIOV WYX WOTEL R~ 2 oaIN/80d iwoang TNRIDY
femmmmmee e -HIVA-OL-UVER- - --=msmsmmmessenm e eeemnaos | fo=meccmem s aac o CHINON IMSMMOD-------=c-m-mommseace -
$T/1E/TT QOIURL WOZ
€20S6 W ‘¥ILSITION
QENTGNOO - TVLIISSON TVINOMEN SMIMNVE TIZVH

T gova

VEOVTIQS I3sn
LTYT ® 9Z/9T/T0 :33eq

Page 57



158°0T $65°12 (11284 18879 19€°8 $66°L 295 €0€E LT TT L€ 386" VT NIDWWK (SSOT) SNTI¥NS LaN
192°8 $95°6Z 52°1 ATT'V [YAN sEV'S 299 €ET'T $58°0T 3$96°0 AT8°TT NIDAVW ONILWNHAO
186" 21 LT 6T 229°1 18€°8 200°0% 36L°6 36E°¥TZ $ZE°TT 18275 265 9T NIDYVH Yares
6EL'9ITE’OT $ 3TS°0Z EST'Z6Y'T § ZTHTL'ELZT’L § G6T°S9L’B €L0°982°T § ¥V IST TH0°8¥8'T §  TLEBEL ZT0°€8S°T wyargs
6£L°'868°8 [34 96¥°19€'T ZLY'S96°S 896°92€°¢L SO0E'6%0°T 15¢€ S08°Y18°Y 9Z0° LIS T€8'TEE'T (S901) SATINUNS L8N
€1S°12T°¢C ot €90'62Z 962°'20€°2 65E'1€5'2 LT 9EE 62 0LL 60T 91L'€8E 98Y€6¥ (SSNEdXH) /3ONAASY ONILYEIJ0-NON TYIOL
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 SNOLLOGININGD NOILYHOHVTIOO
¥S0°‘9 s BSY 0SL'6 80z ‘01 (069°¢) (z91) (B€9'2) sz9't (€EX0'T) SWOONT INHWLSIANI
(1L8°991) 0 (€6T) (Z5¥'3€T) (S¥9°9€T) (198°'L2) z (ozy) (zye'ze) (z91°€2) BSNIIXE MEJO-NON YIHLO
60L°'S6 ) (6zz'v) 6E 86 S9T'¥6 998°ST (2} (662) 66€°91 00191 FNNIAGY HAJO-NON HIHLO
(68%'06€) 0 € (¥89°99€) {z89'99¢) (180 °'s9) 0 [} {»I1°19} (¢TL’'19) ISNEAXE\BANSASY INI QROE 0D
68¥'SS0'Y o (€) 839801 z99°980°1 S16'SLT 0 0 YIT'I8T YT T8T SEXVYL dO¥d anog 09
TEL VYT [} 0 ¥09°06¥'Y Y09°06%'T (44904 14 0 [ YEV'G¥Z YEV OVZ ANNIASY XVL ALYESO¥d
688°pL ¥61 LZ0 €T 000’021 LZTO'€SE 0 995 LTT'ETT 600°02 LZT'EET SNOILYNOQ
- SNIAXE\BNNIATN ONILVAIIO-NON
se/ie/et SORVIRVA TORVTEVA ST/TE/TT sz/te/et vz/ie/eT SORVTUVA RVIAA sz/re/Te sz/te/en
X ¥oTHd pT T DER/80d Ixoand TNOLOV TR WOTEL IREDUNA oan/god

R e

- - == -2LVQ-OL-UVRA--

$Z/1€/21 QOTURA XOd

€Z0§6 WO ‘ERLSITION
CENKITNOD - TYLIASOH ITVISOMEN SKIMMVE TXIVH

¢ Fovd

WIONTIIAS :X98n
LIPT @ 92/9T/T0 :938qQ

Page 58



L' TIYL'9 S 8958991 TYV'S¥ZE 662°Z68'€E TS V6 Y 0SE’T €¥0'€B8 [ 14281 ] €9Y'8%6 (SSOT) BWODNI ONILWNEdO 1IN
6LE'ZTT VS 0 (€TL '982) SES'€BZ'TL z28°966 0L 0L L¥S'OT 0 (TPS '¥1) 999008 ‘1Y SZT’'98LTT SESNFAXE ‘TYLOL
YT ¥EE‘T (1) (606 ‘682) 8€6 'BYD '€ 6Z0°6SL°T STT'8LE (&) (€0€ ' 9€E) *oL'09Y j4 128 244 HYAKLO
v6¥ ‘BBZ (91} (€9€°6T) SLE'8TT €10°66 z6€'9 (8s) (Zzy 1) 885°6T 9919 LSHYIINI
€T9°289°'T 8 ¥ez’ szt ZL6°959°T 9SZ°ZBLT £L9%'082 134 S85°'TE 291'9LZ L¥L'LOE LYOWY 7 NOILYIOH3dSd
691906 0 11728 4 ¥18°896 §S5TL6 L6L 8P zz £L0'9€ 6€8 19T ZT6'L6T TN
6LB9¥VT L (§3] (809°v0T) 678 ¥ES ‘L TYZ0EY ‘L ZEY'LET'T [£4] (088 °12) £0€°892°1 £ZY'9VT'T SEDIANAS AESVHOAN
8ZS‘6LB°S [44] (v9¥'g8) 8EC'S80°L ¥.8°966°9 QEE'#90°T s 985 '09 199°6Z1°T L¥YZ'06T'T SAITEANS
¥SS66€°6 8 86L V9L YZE'ESB’6 ZTT'8T9 0T (BT EVL'T L SLS'6TT ¥82°299°T 658°T9L T SE84 TYNOYSSEJ0dd
LLT'S66°6 (s) (9€9°TES) zTLL'€55°1T 9€T°ZTZ0'TT L90°6Z5°T (6) (EL¥'€9T) 00¥’¢98°T LZ6‘EoL'T SLI4aNgd SEXOTIHE
zZTIV 6LL'Z 114 ZTZ'v89 096'958°'Z LT TYS'E 6€8°'¥9¥ 6€ 8L6°G8T 09T'9LY BET 299 XLLSTORY
06€°009°€2 {(€) {(8sL’'628) €61°'909°9Z 9EV9LL ST §50°S6L°¢€ (S} {192'S12) STS'86Y 'Y ¥9Z°'€8Z°V SHOWM 3 SHINVIVS
1SASNEANT ONLLVEEdO
YT ¥SZ 0L 0 (SS8°6ET) 9L6°825 VL TZT'68E YL LIZ'ZY0 1T L T05°'898 980 ‘998 'TT 885 vEL ‘2T SONEASY ONILVYEdO ELOOV LAN
SSY'88E’'Y 69 YLELOE Y 9697201 L 0L0°0T0°2T 9%0 ' EEL L9 Z5v'Lv8 6S¥ELZ'T T16°021°2 ANNIAFY ONILVYSSO UIHLO
699598 '§9 8) (6ZZ°L¥0'S) 08Z'9Z¥‘LY 150°6LE'29 TLT's0€°0T 0 150°'1Z LZI'Z6S 0T BLY'€T9'0T SNNIASY LNATIY] ZLNOY LAN
0T0 960 °ZST S Z9T'1L0'8 €16 °500 ‘65T SLT'LL0 LIt 650°00L‘¥2 zt 80E'§90°¢€ 8L8°'920's2 981'260°8Z FNNIASE WOY¥d SNOILONAHA HLODV TYIOL
0 TT9°SST [} TI9°6ST [ ZVo'TE 0 290 T€ MOTTY TYNIDVHLNOD SUAd\LSITYLIZSOH
POE’SEV LT s 9¥SLZS 1 $65°085°8T TYT'80T°0F tvz'ovr‘ey 6 896 'TBE S¥E'SEY'Y ET6'LLB 'Y SINHWLSNLAY ANV STYALOVALNGD dHHLO
995'99T 6L S6Z 9VT €92°981 855 '2EE ETA SR 41 89t 8LT'6¥ T0€°62 6Ly'8BL D ALINVID
€LyY'vig'y (€2} (LTT'ELE'T) »¥3°'820°9 LTP'SS9 'Y 159196 (13 sLzezet 06€'296 S99 T ASNIANE LEEd aAve
9T19°'6¥Z'6S 9 8£5°698°€ §52'Z56°09 €E6L°1ZB Y9 ¥BZEEL’E 91 88L°06%'T €57'88S°'6 T¥0°6L0°TT SEONYMOTTY TVALOWALNGD Ted-1aSK
150°'89€°09 ] B6V'SYL'E 95T '8SZ ‘€9 ¥59°€00°L9 Y06 2SS ’6 6 950 '0€6 6860566 5%0°'188'0T SEONVMOTTY TYALOVALNOGD SAVOIOEW
:ALOOV SONFASY WO¥E SNOILOOAZa
089°196 'L1Z T €€0°¥20 '€ g6t 'TEY 92T 92295V 62T 6ZZ'600°S¢E 6 85€'980 ¢ 505°'619'S€E €98°'S0L'8€ HONBASY INHILYE 10OV SSOMD TYIOL
0TO'TTL ELT z 675°¢98°C ¥L8'96L°T8T €0¥’'099 'S8T 8LE°0L6°8Z L €86 °'950°C 9€9 78162 619°T¥Z’TE ANNINHA LNEILVALNO SSO¥D TYIOL
0 S60°L99 0 560°L99 [ 182°¥0T 0 182 90T aNNIAgY d\O LSTTYLIASOH
0TO0'TTL “€LT T YEY'IET L ¥L896L ‘TBT 0€ ‘€66 P8T 6LE‘0LE ‘8T L TOL'ZG6'T 9£9'¥8T 62 BEE'LET 1E HNNIASYE INFIIVALOO KYVTIIONY
699°0SZ " ¥¥ o $0S°091 6TE'SE9'EY €Z8°S6L"EY z58°9€0°9 3t 9LE'6Z0°T 698 9¥EY ‘9 SHZ Y9V L FNNEAZY INIJILVANI SSO¥D TYIOL
[ LED'EOT'T 0 LE0'EOT T 0 Y¥e 'STZ 0 Y8 'STZ FNNFAZY 4\I ISITVLIISOH
TZ6'¥¥S ‘€T (§49] (TTT’9sv°2) YIL'LEV'EZ €09°'186 02 LLL'SBT'E (1 (188 ‘6T) ZEL'YYE'E 158°'92€’'¢€ ANNIASY INHILVANI AUVTTIONY
6bL7°S0L°0T ] 9LEETS T S09°L6T'0Z €8T TTL T2 SLO'ESB ‘T Lz [34 M 1%] LET'060'E 0SS'€Z6 '€ ENNBAZY BNILNO¥
TANAASY INIILVd SSO¥D
yZ/Te/2T TDRYIYVA TORVIAVA sz/ie/en sz/te/et se/1e/21 TORVIUVA TOMVIEVA se/te/2t sz/te/er
¥X ¥0I¥d R~ T oar/80d lgoang TOIOY AX HOTUS IRIDERE oKR/504 moand TYOLOV
I T LT T 2 B R et T e £ 1 T e S R g |

ST/1E/TT AOIENd ¥Od
€20S6 YO ‘WALSITIOR
ALITIOVA EL0OV - "TVII4SON ‘TVNINOMEN SMIXNVE TIZVH

WHNYTIQS ‘X380

e LIYT @ 92/9T/10 :93®d

Page 59




08E'E€80'8 L 126 'SLE $85'¥SE°S 905'0€L’S 808008 124 £€18°266 ¥¥6 9TV LSL'60Y'T (SSOT) SN1d¥NS LEN
SEI'T¥E'T TT £90°6ZC ¥PU'60T°2 Loz '9EE’L 262 '90€E 1€ 0LL'60T ¥ZS'1SE 62 I9Y (SSNSdXE ) /SANBATY ONLLVHEdO-NON TYIOL
0 0 0 0 [ 0 0 0 0 0 SNOTLOEIXINGD NOILWNOEVTTIO0O
¥50°9 5 8sY 0sL’6 80Z'01 (069°€) (z91) (8€9°2) §29°1 (€T0'T) SWODNI INEWLSIARI
(T¥L°621) 0 (¥671) (¥91°90T) (8SE'9017) (zTLs'tz) z (ozv) (¥69°LT) (»TT1'8T) ISNAAXE ¥AJO-NON JIHLO
60L°'S6E (v) (62Z'y) v6£'86 S9T'v6 998°ST (T) (662) 66€°91 001’91 SNNIASYH YEJO-NON ¥IFHLO
(68¥'06¢) ()] € (v89'99¢) (z89'99¢) (180°59) 0 0 (¥Tr'19) (¥1T°19) HSNBIXE\ENNIASY INI QNOE 0D
68¥°SS0°T 0 (€) ¥89°980°1 z89°'980°T ST6°GLl [ 0 YT T8 (2448 €1 SHXYL 40dd aNod 09
veL'eze’t 0 0 $9TL92'T ¥9T’LIZ’T ¥56°¥OZ 0 0 (1348 4 £4 ¥6T'T1IZ SONSASY XVI ALNEJ0¥d
688 °'vL 6T L2Z0 ‘EET 000°02T LZ0'ESE 0 935 LTT ETT 600°'0Z LZT'EET SNOYLLYNOA
t ESNEAXE\SNNIATS ONILWNIZO-NON
yz/te/ct TOMVTUVA TOMVIAVA sz/Te/Tt sg/is/et ¥Z/18/2T SONVIUVA TORVIAVA (17447244 sz/te/et
X worNa LNEDEd ox/80d lavang TNDIDV R wOTWX INEOURS 5aM/50d agpand TYIOY
B R L L R A4 L Al L O | R R R 2 R T R |

£Z0s6 W

ST/1E/TT GOYIEEd ¥OL
‘¥RISITION
ZLITIOVA SINOV - TVYIISON TVINOMEM SMIMAVE TRIVE

Jovd

WEOYTIAS < x3en
LIYT ® 9Z/91/10 :S3eq

Page 60



=sme ma R

6SE'STH 91 $L5'586 LB9'0T9 Z9¥'965°T LEY YL TZ8 z66°128 z80 00T ¥L0°226 (SS07) SNIIUAS LAN
8L8'6LT [} 0 ZST €61 ZST°€61 086 °'62 0 [} TET'ZE zZ61'2E (ASNAAXH) /BONBAHY ONLIVEHdO-NON TY.LOL
(0ET "LE) 0 0 (88z '0¢€) (882" 0€) (881'9) [ 0 (8%0°'S) (8%0's) HSNHAXE YBJO-NON USHIO
800°LTZ 0 0 [ 228414 ovy'€zz 89T’ 9¢€ 0 [ vz LE 0vZ'LE ANNSASY XVI AI¥HdONd
[ o 0 [} [ 0 [ 0 0 o SNOILYNOQ
: ISNEAXE\SNNIASH ONILWHE30-NON
8%'S€9 9€Z SLS’586 SEL'LTY oTE’ €01 LTS BTZ Tt z66°128 068°LY z88°'688 (SSOT) SWOONI ONIIWNHdO LaN
6¥L°ZTYT'TT T TZE S5 698 €08°TT 06T'658'TT €SE‘6LB'T (€) (195 '6¥) 60T T66'T 8vs 'TvE ‘T SISNIAXY 'TYIOL
£09'0SE z z9v'9 916 '96€ 9LE €0V 816°'0S zt zzo's 9€°L9 €8€°SL YAHLO
0 0 [} 0 0 0 0 0 o 0 LSTMALINT
9TS "€E€Z z 08T'S 9vZ '¥ET 9TV 6ET YLZ'6E € T€T°T Y0 '6€ ze'ov NOILLYIDEY¥JEd
$68°9Z 9zt 9T¥°Z9 91L°'6Y ZET'TTT 59Z°81 6ST LLS'TT 916 ‘L €6V 0T TEINTY
016 €8S (€) (89%°'ST) 099819 €61°'€09 ST8’0ZT z 06%°Z EEV'VOT £26 901 SEHDIAYES QEISYHOUNd
9€5'8LS 81 s6Z'€01 sZ1'S8S 0z ‘889 ¥€9°'Z0T 81 €0€°LT 6€5'86 Zve'STT $411d406
09Z €1 (21) (ove't) 000°ST 09Z°€T otz‘z (zt) (062) 005°Z ote'z S884 TYNOISSZ4Oud
966 '626°C € S$9Z°06 0¥T'¥20’E SO ¥PIT'C Zve €9y ) {9999} »09°'L0S £96 09 SLIAENAY FIXOTANT
LTE A8 TR 4 (13 29L'88 9¥¢ 'S6T 80T’ ¥8E z08°Z€ [1 vLL'6 yZz'6Y 86%'8S AULSIONY
09L°TST'9 (v} (158'€82) 0zZL'¥8S'9 698°008'9 €65°8%0°1 (s) {905°€S) T6¥ PIT'T 986°090°1 SHOVM 9 SIIYVINS
:SHSNE4XE ONILWYIdO
6TT 'BLL'TT 6 S68°000'T 09 ‘122’21 66¥°Z9Z €T TLB'L60°T 8¢ TEPTLL 666°'850'C [ 28 &334 4 AONRIAHY ONILVHEJO NS LIN
[ 0 0 0 [\ 0 0 0 0 [\ ANNSASY ONILYMEdO ¥IHLO
622'9LL TT 6 $68°0%0°1 ¥09°'122'21T 668292 €T TLB'LED'T (13 TEV'zLL 666°850°¢2 oEv'TE9 ‘2 FNNAASY LNHILVG INS LaN
T6Z'662°C (L) (€16 ‘2Z¥) 655°09¥°Z 9¥3'LE02 8€E0'E9¥ (9€T) (68L'¥95) 9z9°'v1¥ (£9T°0ST) ANNIASY WO¥A SNOLLONAEA 4NS TYIOL
§86°2ZLT (6€} (8Z€'08) 8TT'80C 06L°'L2T 529'9T (o¥ (956 '€T) €90 'SE 60T'TZ SINFWLSANQV ONY STYALOVALNOGD ¥IHIO
0 959y o 959°% 0 z€9°1 0 Z€9'T FYYD ALTHVHD
(5EE"LS) 1z 01Z’9 000°'0¢ 0Tz 9¢ (L6Z'6T) (Z6€) (LLS'6T) 000°S (LLs'vT) #SNSAXd L3 avd
6S1°LT9 (z6) {¥65'0SS) ZT0 ‘865 8Ib LY LS8°00T [{44:)] (097 °LY9) ZSL ‘001 (80L°'9°S) SHONVMOTIV TYALOVHELNOD TYD-IQTW
zZ8Y°995 T zT EVI'L6T 62V ¥29°t [0 410 § £58°¥Z€E zy 0L5'¥IT 118’ €L 18¢€'88¢€ SEONVMOTIV TYALOVELROD FHVOIASW
‘NS SONEAHY WO¥d SNOILOAGAA
0ZS'LLO’ YT v €86'LT9 €91°289°'¥T 9¥1°00€ ST 6060952 8 Z¥9°L0Z SZ9'ELY'2 L92°'189°2 SNNEATY INSILVE 4ANS SSO¥D TYIOL
oLL'zoT’T €T LA D414 €9T°'29Z°2 BEI'P¥S'Z 69%'98% 9y 086 'SLY STT'18¢ SOT'LSS SONHAHY NS AdVITIONY
0SL PLRTT € 805 °‘SEE 000°0Z¥°ZT 805'ssL’'TT o¥y’'¥LO'L z £€99°1¢E 005°'T60°C €91 vTT'T ANNIAZY dNS ENILNOY
‘BONAARY INIILVd 4ANS $SOD
vz/1e/T1 ZONVIEVA ZORVINVYA sz/1e/et sT/te/zt vZ/te/TT SDRYIUVA HONVIAVA sz/te/eT sz/te/Tt
¥R AOINA INEOURS AR/ 808 asoang TEOIOV ¥R worWd IHEDURS DEAN/S0d lavang IOV
S emem oo - HINQ-OL-UWER - - ~-ssssesessosccsncsmnennana] |mmcemmmmeeemencccac oo - HERON LEUMOD - = === m = emmmcsmscmencme e

S$T/1€/21 aOINAd ¥Od
VO 'YELSITION
SEILITIOV ONISYON GITTIIXS SKRIANVE TAZVE

WNYIIgs ‘X380

T 3ovd LTIV ® 9Z/9T/T0 :33eq

Page 61




Date: 01/16/26 @ 1416
User: SDILAURA

PAGE 1

HAZEL HAWKINS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
HOLLISTER, CA

For the month ended 12/31/25

CURR MONTH PRIOR MONTH POS/NEG PERCENTAGE PRIOR YR
12/31/25 11/30/35 VARIANCE VARIANCE 06/30/25

CURRENT ASSETS
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT 42,001,600 40,373,180 1,628,420 4 46,670,217
PATIENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 67,843,853 66,292, 346 1,551,507 2 66,556,290
BAD DEBT ALLOWANCE (6,138,977) {6,054,999) (83,978} 1 (7,062,672}
CONTRACTUAL RESERVES (40,510,534) (39,268,554) {1,241,980) 3 (40,404,377)
OTHER RECEIVABLES 9,397,125 12,269,443 {2,872,318) (23} 4,952,401
INVENTORIES 5,032,572 5,011,606 20,965 0 4,981,471
PREPAID EXPENSES 2,748,231 2,614,086 134,145 5 2,599,584
DUE TO\FROM THIRD PARTIES (181, 860) (181,860} 0 0 {181, 860)
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 80,192,012 81,055,250 (863,239) (1) 78,111,054
ASSETS WHOSE USE IS LIMITED
BOARD DESIGNATED FUNDS 7,634,354 6,599,270 1,035,084 16 5,666,884
TOTAL LIMITED USE ASSETS 7,634,354 6,599,270 1,035,084 16 5,666,884
PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT
LAND & LAND IMPROVEMENTS 3,370,474 3,370,474 0 0 3,370,474
BLDGS & BLDG IMPROVEMENTS 100,124,163 100,124,163 0 0 100,098,374
EQUIPMENT 48,051,255 47,687,636 363,619 1 46,216,122
CONSTRUCTICON IN PROGRESS 6,643,561 5,757,51% 886, 046 15 4,324,808
GROSS PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT 158,189,454 156,939,789 1,249,665 1 154,008,779
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION (100,504,323) (100,141,391) (362,931) 0 {98,393,920)
NET PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT 57,685,131 56,798,387 866,734 2 55,615,859

zoss=szass=xa =z=zzw=ss=aa szassenzmmnm mmmzmmanan zzzmaszazmza
OTHER ASSETS
UNAMORTIZED LOAN COSTS 292,765 298,507 (5,742) (2) 327,215
PENSION DEFERRED OUTFLOWS NET 5,277,892 5,277,892 0 ] 5,277,892
TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 5,570,657 5,576,399 (5,742) 0 5,605,107

swmmmsazzzax zzzzzzzmazz= mammzzaszaze sswmzazzax =xmzazesesze
TOTAL UNRESTRICTED ASSETS 151,082,153 150,029,316 1,052,838 1 144,998,904

sszxzzasxmoax zez=z=zzzza== sarxamzazazz aszzemcezs smz=xzsrazs=
RESTRICTED ASSETS 128,348 128,295 53 ] 127,208
TOTAL ASSETS 151,210,501 150,157,611 1,052,890 1 145,126,112

Page 62




Date: 01/16/26 @ 1416
User: SDILAURA

PAGE 2

HAZEL HAWKINS NENMORIAL HOSPITAL
HOLLISTER, CA
Por the month ended 12/31/25

CURR MONTH PRIOR NONTH POS/NEG PERCENTAGE PRIOR YR
12/31/25 11/30/25 VARIANCE VARIANCE 06/30/25

CURRENT LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 6,841,683 7,398,654 556,971 (8) 6,221,841
ACCRUED PAYROLL 4,141,118 3,524,303 (616,216) 18 3,467,229
ACCRUED PAYROLL TAXES 271,933 183,910 (88,023) 48 257,552
ACCRUED BENEFITS 4,813,062 4,503,647 (309,416) 7 5,074,320
QTHER ACCRUED EXPENSES 37,741 43,406 5,665 (13) 80,907
PATIENT REFUNDS PAYABLE 4,388 1,310 (3,078) 235 1,310
DUE TO\FROM THIRD PARTIES 4,339,018 4,339,021 3 0 5,056,186
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 706,441 1,204,034 497,593 {41) 777,080
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 21,155,385 21,198,884 43,499 0 20,936,425
LONG-TERM DEBT
LEASES PAYABLE 4,757,602 4,764,576 6,974 0 4,799,273
BONDS PAYABLE 28,363,761 28,392,281 28,520 0 28,534,881
TOTAL LONG TERM DEBT 33,121,362 33,156,857 35,494 0 33,334,154
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
DEFERRED REVENUE ] 0 0 0 0
LONG-TERM PENSION LIABILITY 24,688,121 25,888,121 1,200,000 (5) 25,888,121
TOTAL OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 24,688,121 25,868,121 1,200,000 (S) 25,888,121
TOTAL LIABILITIES 78,964,868 80,243,862 1,278,994 (2) 80,158,700
NET ASSETS:
UNRESTRICTED FUND BALANCE 64,915,019 64,915,019 ] 4 64,817,839
RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE 100,826 100,773 (53) 0 149,573
NET REVENUE/ (EXPENSES) 7,229,788 4,897,957 (2,331,831) 48 0
TOTAL NET ASSETS 72,245,633 69,913,749 (2,331,884) 3 64,967,412
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 151,210,501 150,157,611 (1,052,890) 1 145,126,112

czzznz=zazas ==z scsswxn= sRImEETTITITED z==zrzzzoaza Tcomsxazzzze

Page 63



s

Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIA OSPITAL San Benito Health Care District
Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital
DECEMBER 2025
Description MTD Budget MTD Actual YTD Actual YTO Budget FYE Budget

Average Daily Census - Acute 12.87 m 14.02 14.44 15.00

Average Daily Census - SNF 90.00 87.65 87.72 90.00 90.00
Acute Length of Stay 279 299 ” 2.80 280
ER Visits:
Inpatient 178 0 846 1,638
Outpatient 2,368 2,233 13,060 13,081 27,053
Totat 2,547 2342 13,780 13,927 28,691
Days in Accounts Recelvable 50.0 52.2 52.2 50.0 50.0

Productive Full-Time Equivalents s T v 575.17

Net Patient Revenue 12,651,626 B 75,641,551 79,647,884 157,730,532
Payment-to-Charge Ratio 33.2% 32.5% 30.9% 33.0% 32.4%
Medicare Traditional Payor Mix 28.02% 8 9.76 29.29% 28.71%
Commercial Payor Mix 23.54% 22.49% 22.67% 23.36%
Bad Debt % of Gross Revenue 2.50% 2.50% 2.53%
EBIDA 734,971 2,583,012 8,765,295 7,273,142 13,769,729
EBIDA % 5.28% 16.59% 10.00% 8.38% 7.98%
Operating Margin 0.96% 4.22% 3.79%
Salaries, Wages, Registry & Benefits %:
by Net Operating Revenue 61.14% 58.70% 59.06%
by Total Operating Expense 61.73% 61.29% 61.39%
Bond Covenants:
Debt Service Ratio - 1.25 471 1.77 136
Current Ratio - 1.50 2.00 2.00 2.00
Days Cash on hand - 30.00 90.70 90.70 110.00

Met or Exceeded Target

Within 10% of Targe

Nat Within 10%

Page 64



auepen

puey uo ysed paradpng

e T I T T et g e S N L e e RS L T e (T e R

0%

SE0'1LL5'CS

595'0€Y'6€S

——
009'L00°ZY$

Sb'S6

B T
009'1L00°Z¥S

712°029'0¥ 081 €22 OF
(219'899'Y) 0zy'sz't
{sse'er) 0
{L8LTIY'L ver'sez L)
Aurqen uojsuag wisy Suot fooa0oz +) 1000002 1)
spuog TTOT YUm spuoy ET0Z jo Jupueuay 3 18dpuLY 09 YIOT AON —. b va AONm.wNv
(12919 (y26'9)
(TR 1200'822°2)
uopezILOWY ZSh'PE vi's
$puog 1207 ‘2 (S00T) ¥TOT - 1uswAsd 1u) '3 (#dpuld puoy (oL¥'298't) (¥80'S£0's)
0 0
(sL9'6LL'Y) (s99'692't)
(TR 060°'L18'Z
SPUOG ANUIAY TZOZ B O S00T - "Il (BNUUY-|WIS 885'02 e85 267)
(wei'2vd) (5]
8.0'c 8.0'c
(soi'cy) (s99's)
08.'s€E pS9'€L0'L
0 0
£0€'029 (126'98S)
0 0
(avo'syl) (SpL'vel)
(1L01'18) (596'02)
(L'syr'y) 81£'228'2
(101°501°2) (8¥s's2T)
20¥'041'2 1£6'29€
896'92¢'LS 168°LEE'TS
SZTOZ/VERL STOT/LERL
oje(-01-Je0) fuonW
eund jueund
SANIWWOD MOTd HSVD

puel uo yse) skeq jeuonesado

1PUISIg @y unu o) Aep Jad 150D

pouad jo pu3 ‘ysed
poudd jo BuuuiBeg 'used
yseo uj (esvesdaq)/esealdau] JON
S13SSV A3LOMLSIY NI 3SYIHOIANISYIUONI

sapapov Bupueulg 10) pesn yseD 18N
sapuiqer] wsay 6uo Byl Ul (eseasaq)eseaau
19eQ @BeBuoyy puog vl (eseassaq)/esealcu}
198 @sea [ende) u) (esesrsq)/eseasu;
'SAILALLOY ONIONVYNIZ WOYS SMO1d HSVYD

sapIARdY Bupseau) Aq pesn ysed 19N
S1988Y JOYIQ Ul aseaaq/(aseasauy)
SI9SSY IS POUWIT JOO LI esBR8(Q/(9sRAIOUI)
$)USUASIAU| PUB YSBY) BS() PAIWI U) asBADIQ/(esEAUY)
awdinb3 pue jueld ‘AQuadoid Jo aseyund
'SALLIAILOY ONLLSIANI WOY4 SMOTd HSYD

segARav BupesadQ Aq pepiaoud ysed 19N
SaniIger] jusLn JBYIO W (aseaida()asealdu]
sanyiqerysaoueApy Alred payL U} (aseasoaq)/eseacut
eiqeied spunjoy Jusied uj (eseasseq)/aseaiou|
sesuadx3 peniooy ul (eseasoeq)eseasu
S|yaueg pue loshed PANIXdY ul (95E8109Q)/e58aUIY)
ajqeded SueoT pue S3JoN Ui (asessse())Pseanu)
siqeied SUNCY i (9583I09()/AsBAOU]
saned PAYL Woid 8nq uj aseasaq/(aseasou))
sesuadx3] pied-ald Ul aseaneq/(eseasu))
SSLIOJUIAU| U| aseRF/(IseaRU|)
SIIGRAISIY JBYIO I asea:09()/(ase8udul)
3lqenasady SINCIDY jualjed JaN W aseanagy(asessour)
uopewaidag
‘sapAtoy BupessdQ Aq pepmoid
ySED 19N O} SWOSU| 19N 8{1ou0d8Y 0} sueunsnipy
(ss07) awodu} 18N
'STILINLIVY ONILYYIHO WOYL4 SMOTd HSVD

§Z0Z ‘L€ Jequiedeq Bujpue yuow yxIg
V9 1618)1|0H
|[endsop feuowep sunjme |ezeH

$MO[d ySeD JO JusWwelelg

Page 65



LITZ8Y'YT 168'686'T
{980°060°€) 5
029°98Z°TT
£0T'TLS LT LLT'EOL'E
LIT'T8Y'YT 168’6861
L6L'85Y'8 6T9°08E"Y
"6Z0Z/T0/0T 2A13Y3 %09 Jo uoINPAI T 'Y'H  TST'09ZT €19°018 SJHQ
‘3Juaiayip 1503 |enjoe uo paseg - -
'970Z 439010 8 ‘AInf ‘Aeiy ‘YaJe paradxa sjwd AlND 900'0LS’E SJOHQ
“Q1A siuawhed 51D pIE B ‘PUT ST PY  E9B'VVTE S SOHQ
"GZ0T ‘0 3unf Aq JuawAed 1nb yip -39y 03 pardadx3 1791801 2 SOHG
‘20T ‘v 43S 3 ££S'690'T - SJHQ
"HYD) J9puUn mou AJuno) °S44 uo paseg ‘SZOZ ‘LT Y2JBN UO PanRddy  S8S'Z08‘T - SOHQ
'syuawieq 121G
0ZE'€Z09 8.2°609°0T
‘¥Z07 ‘6 29quaaq uo pled  (980°060°€) - PuUISIq
‘G2, AON/10 Ul Juawihed 193dx3 "80°TRO6LES ‘PUZT “Bnv Lo 19| papuny  ESEOTL T60°€Y9 SJHQ
‘9707 Aep/idy Suipuny 33y ‘970Z JeN/qa4 3N 1O} papuny ELS'BPL'T HVJD
"SZ0Z WO U1 pI3Y "ST'PEP'006$ ‘PUZZ "Bnv uo 19| papuny €L5'6YT°T MV
"Aepy Ul 33y "YIJB Ul 6LETYE'TS SO 1D1UBS  09T'TIE'Y - SOHQ
- Tr0'206°T HVJD
'6T07 Adenuqag u) paa@ddy  THT'6EE'T - wauy
‘Aely Ul 33y judy UL E6T'L90'TS 4O LOI Pled  9S0°L0Y‘T 000°091°C HVYID
'GZ0T aunf Aq Juawihed padx3 970z (Mdv NP D] ZOE'SOE 005207 SJHQ
'570T aunr Aq Juawded padx3 ‘970z (Mdy NP 191 S6L'6E 00S°702 SJHQ
‘uan3as Suiydjew oy Jlem pue wesdosd puny 03 PINSI] s3anbay
:$310N SZ0Z Ad 9707 Ad loAed
lenpy lenpy

O

sjuawdiey (pruawalddng 9N (O
Pled B0L

Suipuagd jerzol O)

paAia3ay |eroL ©

o

sjejo] puein wesdoid

[2303-gns 19}-uoN

(HSQ) 24eys ajeuoipodosdsiq (e)-1paN -

(4N/dq) Apoed Buisany ‘Ded puRsIQ -

XI (4¥DH) pund asueinssy Ayjenp [endsoH 6€Z 95 -
11IA (4WOH) pund 3>uesnssy Ayjeny |endsoH 6€2 95 -
1A (VOH) pung @sueinssy AyjenD jeldsoH 6€Z 45 -
(4WOH) pung 3auenssy Aujenp jendsoH 6€Z 8S -
STYZOT AS ST6 8V -

:sweifoud Jagsuel ] [EIUBWLIBADEIDIU-UON

1€203-qns 19}

jJuawAeday ueo] g Ad diD -
¥20Z A (daHQ) s3udwAeg pardang |endsoy 121asiq -
$20T AD 10} WawWAed ,|euly,, JUBWIINAS £ Ad dID -
¥20Z AD 10} JuawAey , WLIBIUY, JUBWINAS £ Ad dID -
£207 AD JUBWINAS 9 Ad dID -
¥70Z ‘T€ 220 Y8noyy $20Z ‘T "uer aBuey ey -
€207 'T€ 280 YSnouyy £20T ‘T "uer aduey ajey -
5707 A (4VDH) pung asueinssy Ayjenp (endsoH 6€2 95 -
9702/S2Z0T A4S WU STOZ/YTOT A4S
SZOZ/PZOT A4S JudWARd [BUI PZOZ/ETOT A4S
(HJAN) (endsoH dqng pajeudisaqg-uoN €1T 8V -
:swiesdoud Jgsues] [RIudwUIRA0ZINU|

9707 ‘0€ Aunf IA4

SZ0T ‘1€ 43qwad8Q Jo se QLA
sweiSoid JuawAhed [ejudwa|ddng
|eldsOH |elJOWRIN subimeH |[9ZeH



Loz

OO OQuw

‘pe1deooe S| opowes qe| ey} Jo aseyd [Euy O} JO) PIG G} UaYM BUIpUNy Ly Lo €°£$ BBl By} J0j Adde M JOMISIQ BUL "dTHG BUI WO UMBIP UOKIW £'Z$ oY) JO) SjudwiABd - |
“Pysiq) eyl Jo} yBnospssed & s1 Bupun; sl eouls pepnpu ou ese sawAed puoq |0’ GO0Z T SINSESY BUL "Spuoq enusaay eBeBuonBD - H

“uswdmbe pue syefoxd d1HQ-VOU 10} seupuadxe Euded - O

"AIUnoD ey} woJj peasdal sexes Auedold - 4

‘sinpayos Buipuny Jeak-0) sAienioe oY) Jed ueid uoisuad Jjeusq peuyep uezoy sy) Joj Bupund - 3

“PUISI 8y} Joj sasuadxe do o} pejetas mogno yse9 - g
‘suewAed |ejuswerddns Joj suogonpes pereBpng 000°'000'€S SePOU| - O
‘sjuewded jpweweyddng oy uogonpes & pue esuedxd 1geq peg W pelebpng asem sUORINPAJ IED-PSN BUL "PEjUGLIBIdW J0U I0M SUDRONPAS HSQ Pue ) uopassend PO 8yl - €
‘saoines uened Bupiaoid 10§ 1OOIOD am BNUBARI BY | - v
SYZ'sYe £YZ'srs (zve'ssc’z)  (evo'cez’s)  (e£7'996) (os¥'cho’s)  co9'ssc’d SE0'1L8'T [1 754 4% ZoL'08¥'T  (800'882) (s11'c82) Zer'ors's eousiEn
695’ LPZ'6¥ GYE'LYZ'6F  8SO'00Y'YF  ¥IG'Z8S'MY  PEL'988'IY  09S'€0S'TY  GHO'ZE6'BE  SOS'OCY'6E  0GE'688'8E  LL9'EET'MY  SS0'ZZ9°Ly  999'¥YOETY  S95'998°2y 1eBpng 9Z0Z '0¢ Bunf* IAd
26508105 S 26598, 068 OLZ000CZrS 9IS 6YCOrS LOSL680PS OSLOGY'LYS @ro'lec'Sk§ 009'100Zk$S SL1Z/C0pS ECYIZLCYS Ovv'esc'ivs [#S180Tv$S Ilyo'civ'ovs sousjeg yse) Buipuz
(000’0527 {000°05) {000°05) {o00°05) (000°05) (000’05} E 3 - - - - {spunj feuoyessdQ woy) wewhedsy 8597
- - - - - - - - d'1HQ Jo ebesn
C - - - - - 3 S = - - - - ("pov euedeg) ueo - Bupund 41HA
18€'99L'¢ 948'691'8 061°29L' (gLe'86Y) (0sz'zre) (86¥'L¥8'E)  6Y0'08E'E 189'829'} (oze'ise'e)  eee'ses’z  (1o01'EzL) (gey'iee’y)  (v91'152) MmolJ USED JON
L1Z'020'8Y § 912990°Zr$ 9ZS'OYCOPS L0G'Z69'0FS OGL'OGY'LPS SYOLET'SYS 009'L00'Z¥ S QLLTIC'OVS GSYYZLTYS OWY'RSCiv S  I¥S'IS0T¥S IvO'tiv'ors LiZ'0le'er$ esuvjeg yse) BujuuiSeg
%2 %€ %2) % %t %0 %64 %L %65~ %51 %9- %i0- %Z- snuemey Jo %
19'99.'E S 9/069L8 S 0612911 § (5.c86y) § (0sZZyS) $ (s6viye'e) § eypoecs § 180820t § (0Tlisce) § tee'socs § (10i'czl) ¢ {eev'icey) § (voL262) § MOl US®D 10N
{oog'sse’l) (oss'0s1) [ (059061} {ces'sst) (ce6'sSH) (ce6sS1) (ce8'sst) (e8s'sst) €86'sS1) (ces'sst) (c86'sS 1) (ce8's51) ssuadx3 spuog anueAdy 1202
(519'6LL'S) (000'052) (000°052) (000'052) (000'052) (000'052) (000'05¢€) (soo'er2't)  (166°L18) (seo'ers) wsi'vi) (z80'g0€) (508'2ye) saxypuedx3 Ended
026'608'€ - rov'esy'l - - - - 9sY'oze’L - - - - anuaAsy - sexe} Auedosd
: 3y Y BunesedQ-uoN Jeul0
9£68'160'¢ 9250488 9.c'028 (szL'L8) (99Z'9c1) (S16'sEr's)  Zeo'gne's vio'viz's  {ovl'lie'?) 118'0L2'c 680°LpL (rzr'son's)  vzi'uve oy yseo Bupsiedo
0000072 000'00Z 000°002 000002 000'00Z 0007002 000002 000°002'F = = - - - Buipunj uofsuad 1eueg peuyeq
1¥8'0rL'651 ISE'2IS'CL LOC'EI6'EL  PLO'WBS'SL  LOZ'BLB'CL  606'S88'ZL  PIS'006'CL  ELL'EO8'ZTI  BZL'6E'LL  696'SSO'ZL  9BY'ZER'ZL  LIVISEWL  ZPOGEEE sjuewesings|q used BunesedO
1L1'28T 04 £OR'TOZ'TT  ISL1ELYL  63T'969'CL  L¥6'Les'sL  ¥sv'0te's 900'986°L0  182°LIT'SL 7869156 082'926'sL  $96'6t0'tL  Zee'zev'ol  99.'teg'th ndjessy ysed 801
18L°G1E°LL 19€'e6Y'6 £0E'86v | 19€°CEE 19€'80€ 6£9°1SL'7)  626°156'F 0S6'9¥SL  (LLE°L6¥1)  S0LZBLE 0¥8'86L (1907196) 166 +LE anuaAsy 'Jed0 WO 7 IEUBWISdNG J8N
- - - - - - - 3 = o = - - SUORINPOY [RD-IPON B SIEIPOI | “H'H
168'916'26L $ 1Z5'66L'Z1 S VIC'EHZ'ELS GZ6'ZTOL'CLS BIS'CLOELS €60'ZBE'TLS OLO'VED'EL S LEB'OEL'SHS 6SE'PRE'OLS SLO'WEL'TIS STLOYZ'TIS 8KO'ESY'ELS SLLIZTELS SNUIARY BULINOBY

it _.._
153 pasinay

§202
snfinyg
ey

9202 ‘0€ eunf" JAd
Mmol4 yseo petebpnganenioy
1o38IQ 8le) Yeasy ojluag ueg

Page 67



[esodod ] uue-)

IVIIdSOH 1VIJOWdW

SUINMDH [9ZPH

\ 7

Page 68



*(Surddiys 29 Y311y ‘Ajueirem 1K | JO SAISN[OUL) 0S°096°L8T$ -2oLId aseyoind
‘sorwreuApoan (p) pue ‘suoroafur yuswadeuew ured (9) ‘saje[d pue ‘Spol ‘smai1os
Jo juowaoeld (q) ‘uononpar aimoely (B) 91 sampaooid Jurdeuwr]/orpadoyuQ «
‘Awiojeue oy}  3urssang,, INOYNM -A[dJes pue A[9)eIndoe
sjuswinnsut Jo ‘sjuepdwin ‘saxm  ‘s9[pasu ping 0} SOIPIA ABI-X SAI[ [orem
0] SUBIOTUI[D SMO[[® OS[B 901A9p 9[IqOW SIY], JIom A3} S[Iym Apoq SU} 9pIsul 99s
0] $10100p SUIMO[[e ‘SaInpadoid Juump saewn Ael-¥ dwn-[edl sIPIA0cId uLe-) v«
"SIKGT 10J oSN UI U22q SeY YoIym ULe-)) JUSLIND
soejdal 01 (yonoy DHO YHM wiofiv]d [vI13ing papuvdXiy wiv-)) 0343 d[1qQOW
1onSiq wors (D a1 DFO0 7H) wae-) mau e aseyamnd o) st [esodoid SIyy «

Arewuing 9AIINIAXH

Page 69



//N

@n Quotation # 20112334963
é@) GE Healthcare 12/0}!202?
age

Quotation Summary

ISSUE PURCHASE ORDER/ REQUISITION TO:
GE Healthcare - OEC Medical Systems, Inc
Tax ID #94-2538512

GE Healthcare - OEC 384 Wright Brother Drive Salt Lake City, UT 84116
Payment remit to address: GE Healthcare OEC 2984 Collections Center DriveChicago, IL 60693

To: Kristina Harwood Quote Expiration Date;  01/30/2026

Supervisor of Medical Imaging Direct Inquiries To:  Rob Rasmussen

Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital TIPLADY IMAGING PARTNERS, INC.
911 Sunset Or 13 Heatherwood

Hollister, CA95023-5606 Trabuco Canyon, CA,92679
Phone: 831-207-8985 Work Phone:  925-451-4277

Cell Phone:  (925) 451-4277

Email:  robrasmussen@geoecimaging.com
Fax:

OEC - Vizient (XR0942)

Part Number Qty  Product Description st Price ~ Net Price
S7005TE 1 OEC Elite™ CFD 31 cm Digital Mobile Ergo C- $242,700.00 $185,665.50
arm ESP {(Expanded Surgical Platform) with
OEC Touch
S7006AZ 1 Wireless DICOM, Touch, Without SIM, Point $3,000.00 $2,295.00

of Sale Usage, OEC Elite / 3D

Total Investment: $ 245,700.00 $187,960.50

GE CONFIDENTIAL

Page 70



@n
GE Healthcare

To: Kristina Harwood

Quotation

ISSUE PURCHASE ORDER/ REQUISITION TO:
GE Healthcare - OEC Medical Systems, Inc
Tax ID #94-2538512

GE Healthcare - OEC 384 Wright Brother Drive Salt Lake City, UT 84116

Payment remit to address: GE Healthcare OEC 2984 Collections Center DriveChicago, IL 60693

Quote Expiration Date:  01/30/2026

Supervisor of Medical Imaging Direct Inquiries To:  Rob Rasmussen

Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital

911 Sunset Dr

Hollister, CA95023-5606
Phone: 831-207-8985

13 Heatherwood

Quotation # 2011233496.3

12/01/2025
Page 2

TIPLADY IMAGING PARTNERS, INC.

Trabuco Canyon, CA,92679

Work Phone:  925-451-4277
Cell Phone: 1925} 451-4277

Email:  robrasmussen@geoecimaging.com

Fax:

OEC - Vizient (XR0942)

I{QH—Number Qty

S7005T€E

GE CONFIDENTIAL

1

Description ' ~ ListPrice
OEC Elite™ CFD 31 cm Digital Mobile Ergo C- $242,700.00
arm ESP (Expanded Surgical Platform) with OEC

Touch

OEC ELITE CFD:

ESP Software

31 cm CMOS Flat Panel Detector (CFD): High
image quality at low dose with a CMOS
crystalline structure flat panel detector; tri-mode
imaging capabilities at 31 cm, 21 cm, and 15
cm; easily removable grid; and integrated laser
aimer

Ergo C-arm: Ergonomic design to ease physical
demands of positioning a C-arm: low-profile X-
ray tube for large field of view; radial dial color
coded brakes; full length handles along C-arm;
manual adjustment of lateral rotation,

cephalad/ caudal tilt, wig-wag, and horizontal
motion; 152° orbital rotation {55° overscan and
97° underscan); SmartView 180°/180° flip-flop;

) __I\I_é_t_l_’_rice
$185,665.50

Page 71



Y
(( %6 ) GE Healthcare
P

Quotation # 2011233496.3

12/01/2025
Page 3

Part Number

Qty

Description

List Price

Net Price

lateral height: 39.0” {99 cm); 22,500 HU/min
housing cooling rate; cable pushers; low
resistance wheels; and motorized vertical lift

OEC ELITE CFD STANDARD PACKAGE INCLUDES:

Imaging: OEC Touch, a 15.6" {40 cm) intuitive
touchscreen operator control; Live Zoom up to
4x with no change in technique; Digital Pen;
squircle image retains 100% shape when
rotated; image annotation; measurement tools;
SmartMetal; AutoTrak Automatic Brightness
Stabilization (ABS); General-Purpose Dynamic
Range Management (GDRM); Minimal Difference
Spatiotemporal noise filter (MDST); noise filter
with on-screen indicator; automatic and manual
digital brightness and contrast control; negate
mode; save/auto-save feature; swap/auto-swap
feature; last image hold; 40,000 image storage;
preset imaging profiles: General, General HD,
Pediatric, Orthopedic, C-Spine, Spine and 9900;
and multi-functional footswitch and handheld
controls

Image Viewing: Incredible detail displayed with
32" (81 cm) 4K UHD color display with anti-glare
and touchscreen capabilities; Viewing versatility
with articulating monitor display for optimal
viewing with travel of 45” (114 cm) horizontal,
17" {43 cm) vertical, 27" (67 cm) forward, and 5°
up/ 5° down tilt

Workstation with Intuitive User Interface:
SmartConnect start up; ergonomically designed
handles and low friction wheels; multi-purpose
image directory; integrated DICOM interface;
room-in-use indicator interface; examination list
and customized patient information

Dose Management: Selectable modes can be
used alone or in combination and include
standard, HLF, pulse, low dose, digital cine pulse
and digital spot; on-screen PreView Collimator;
Smart Window; and radiation dose structured
report (RDSR) and X-ray dose summary

X-ray Generator and Power Management: 15

GE CONFIDENTIAL

Page 72



o
GE Healthcare
.~

Quotation # 2011233496.3

12/01/2025
Page 4

Part Number

Qty

Description List Price

Net Price

kW power from standard wall outlet; patented
generator battery buffer design; power
monitoring with on-screen display; controlled
shutdown process; accidental power loss
protection with a 20 second battery back-up
power to workstation and C-arm

Connectivity: Multiple ports including: ethernet,
room interface, video output, video input, USB

Security: Hardened Linux based operating
system; encrypted solid state drive; password
protection; blank screen function; deidentify
patient information

Warranty: One-year warranty

OEC Clinical Excellence: Up to 2 days of in-
service training by ARRT certified Clinical
Imaging Specialists (CIS) during warranty period;
entails up to 8 hours of training per day,
provided from 7am to 5pm, Monday through
Friday, excluding holidays; post-training skills
assessment; radiographers may be eligible for
CE credits approved by the ASRT; includes all CIS
travel expenses; additional on-line training
materials will be provided for future reference.
Any additional days for training and/or case
support are available for purchase.

S7006AZ

1

Wireless DICOM, Touch, Without SIM, Point of $3,000.00

Sale Usage, OEC Elite / 3D
Wireless DICOM

$2,295.00

GE CONFIDENTIAL

Total Investment: $245,700.00

$187,960.50

Page 73



Quotation # 2011233496.3
GE Healthcare Pl

Page 5

Customer Name & Address: Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital/ | 911 Sunset Or s Hollister, CA 95023-5606

This Agreement las defined below) is by and between Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital/ ("Customer™ and QEC Medical Systems, Inc, o GE
Heolthcare business ("QEC") for the sale and purchase of the Products and/or Services identified in this Quotation, together with any applicable
schedules referred to herein {"Quotation”). “Agreement” is defined as this Quotation and either: (i} the Governing Agreement identified below: or
i) if no Governing Agreement is identified, the GE Healthcare Terms and Conditions and Warranties that apply to the Products and/or Services
identified in this Quotation. In the event of conflict, the Quotation supersedes.

OEC 100% Untime Guarantee: During the warranty, if the Product fails to perform for a period in excess of 24 hours (excluding inoperability due
to user misuse, operator error, acts of God, planned maintenance, or other non-manufacturer defects), then OEC will extend the warranty by 1
month for each full day of downtime during the weekday period. The Product is deemed to have faited if it is out of service and unavailable for
imaging patients or diognosing imoges on the display console. Peripherat equipment does not foll under the 100% Uptime Guarantee.

GE Healthcare can withdraw this Quotation at any time before “Quotation Acceptonce”, which occurs when Customer either: (i} signs and
returns this Quotation or (i) provides evidence of Quotation acceptance satisfactory to GE Healthcare {"Quotation Acceptance”). On Quotation
Acceptonce, this Agreement is the complete and final agreement of the parties relating to the Products and/or Services identified in this
Quotation. There is no relionce on any terms other than those expressly stated or incorporated by reference in this Agreement and, except as
permitted in this Agreement. no attempt to modify will be binding unless agreed to in writing by the parties. Modifications may result in
additional fees and cannot be made without GE Healthcare's prior written consent.

Handwritten or electronic modifications on this Agreement {except an indication of the form of payment, Customer purchase order
number and signatures on the signature blocks below} are void.

*Terms of Oelivery: FOB DESTINATION

*8illing Terms: 100% billing at Ship Completion {(Fulfiliment) / Delivery
*Payment Terms: 45 DAYS NET

*Quotation Expiration Date: 01/30/2026

*Governing Agreement (GPO or SAA): OEC - Vizient (XR0942) (if none, Standard GE Healthcare Terms and Conditions Apply}

*Preferred Delivery Date: / /

*Will Accept Delivery os Early as: / / or [ ]ASAP

*Indicate Form of Poyment (if there is potential to finance with a lease transaction, by GE Healthcare Equipment Finance

{("GE HEF"} or otherwise, select lease}

Cash/Third Party Loon* GE HEF Lease GE HEF Loan
Third Party Lease (Please identify the finance company}:

*Please select Tox status of order: Exemnpt from Sales & Use Tax (Note: GEHC must have current Tax Exemption Certificate)
Subject to Sales & Use Tax

The parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by their authorized representative as of the fast signature date below:
Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospito) OEC Medical Systems, Inc., a GE Healthcore business

AL . ey

12/1/25

Autherized Customer Representotive Date Authorized Representative Date

Chad W. Kendell. VP_Surgeru Soles
Print Name and Title Print Name and Title

Customer Purchase Order #

GE CONFIDENTIAL

Page 74



Customer Information Form
8ill to Address:

Bill to Contact Name

Telephone

Facility Name

Address

City, State Zip

Customer Delivery Address

Delivery Contact Name

Telephone

Facility Name

Address

City, State Zip

Delivery Information

Does delivery require a lift gate truck? Yes
Does delivery require a small lift gate truck? Yes
Is loading dock available? Yes

Additional Shipping Information:;

No

No

No

***Mandatory Information if ordering Wireless Dicom
Network Contact Person:

Phone #: Email:

What Network will you beusing? [0 wired [ wireless

Method of Assigning IP: 0 oHcP (auto) [ Manual IP;

Gateway IP: Subnet Mask:

Primary DNS: Secondary DNS:

Enter a primary and secondary Domain Name Server if used at your site. Otherwise, leave bionk.

AE Title: Station Name:
GE CONFIDENTIAL

Page 75



GE Healthcare Terms & Conditions

1. Definitions. As identified in this Agreement, “Equipment” is hardware and embedded software that is licensed with the purchase of the
hardware provided to Customer in GE HealthCare's packaging and with its labeling; “Software” is software provided by GE HealthCare and/or
delivered to Customer in GE HealthCare’s packaging and with its labeling, and Documentation associated with the software; “Third Party
Software” and “Third Partv Eaulnment” are respectively software developed by a third party, and hardware and embedded software that is
licensed with the purchase of the hardware, that is delivered to Customer in the third party's packaging and with its labeling (collectively,  Third
Party Product”); “Product” is any Equipment, Software and Third Party Product; “Services” is Product support or professional services;
"Subscription,” is a limited-term, non-transferable license to access and use a Product, including any associated support Services as identified as
a Subscription by GE HealthCare; “Saa$ Offerings” are software-as-a-service offerings provided to Customer by GE HealthCare and identified as a
Saa$ Offering by GE HealthCare; “Third Party Offerings” are Products, Services and Saa$S Offerings sold by and identified by GE HealthCare as an
offering of a Third Party; *“Specifications” are GE HealthCare’s written specifications and manuals as of the date the Equipment shipped
{excluding Third Party Offerings); and “Documentation” is the online help functions, user instructions and manuals regarding the installation and
operation of the Product as made available by GE HealthCare to Customer.

2. Term and Termination. Software licenses, access to Saa$ Offerings, Services and/or Subscriptions will have individual term lengths
identified in the Quotation. If there is a material breach of this Agreement and/or the Quotation that is not cured by the breaching party within 60
days from receipt of written notice, the non-breaching party can terminate the respective Agreement or Quotation. Other than as set forth in this
Agreement, neither party can unilaterally terminate this Agreement or a Quotation. Any remaining undisputed, unpaid fees become immediately
due and payable on expiration or termination. Expiration or termination of this Agreement will have no effect on Quotations executed prior to the
date of expiration or termination.

3. Software License. Other than as identified in a Quotation, GE HealthCare grants Customer a non-exclusive, non-transferable, non-
sublicensable, perpetual license to use the Software for Customer’s internal business purposes only in the United States consistent with the terms
of this Agreement. Customer’s independent contractors (except GE HealthCare competitors) may use the Software, but Customer is responsible
for their compliance with this license, and additional license fees may apply. Customer cannot modify, reverse engineer, copy or create derivative
works of the Software, except for making 1 backup copy, and cannot remove or modify fabels or notices of proprietary rights of the Software or
Documentation.

4. Commercial Logistics

41 Qrder Cancellation and Madifications.

411 Cancellation. If Customer cancels an order prior to shipment without GE HealthCare’s written consent, Customer will be
responsible for all third-party expenses incurred by GE HealthCare prior to Customer’s order cancellation and GE HealthCare may charge: (i) a fee
of up to 10% of the Product price; and (ii) a fee for site evaluations performed prior to cancellation. GE HealthCare will retain, as a credit,
payments received up to the amount of the cancellation charge. Customer must pay applicable progress payments (other than final payment)
prior to final calibration, and GE HealthCare may delay calibration until those payments are received. if Customer does not schedule a delivery
date within 6 months after order entry, GE HealthCare may cancel on written notice. This section does not apply to Software or Subscriptions,
Saas Offerings, Third Party Offerings and/or related professional or instailation services; those orders are non-cancellable.

4.12 Used Equipment. Equipment identified as pre-owned, refurbished, remanufactured or demonstration Equipment is not new
and may have received reconditioning to meet Specifications (“Used Equipment”). Sale of Used Equipment is subject to availability. if it is no
longer available, GE HealthCare will attempt to identify other Used Equipment in its inventory that meets Customer's needs, and if substitute
Used Equipment is not acceptable, GE HealthCare will cancel the order and refund any deposit Customer paid for the Used Equipment.

42 Site Preparation. Customer is responsible for network and site preparation, including costs, in compliance with GE HealthCare's written
requirements and applicable laws. GE HealthCare may refuse to deliver or install if the site has not been properly prepared or there are other
impediments.

43 Transportation. Title and Risk of Lass. Unless otherwise identified in the Quotation, shipping terms are FOB Destination. Title and risk of
loss to Equipment passes to Customer on delivery to Customer’s designated delivery location.

44 Delivery. Returns and Installation. Delivery dates are approximate. Products may be delivered in installments. GE HealthCare may
invoice multiple instaliment deliveries on a consolidated basis, but this does not release Customer's obligation to pay for each instaliment
delivery. Delivery occurs: (i} for Product, on electronic or physical delivery to Customer; and (ii) for Services, on performance.

Products cannot be returned for refund or credit if they match the Quotation.

Delivery and installations will be performed from 8am to 5pm local time, Monday-Friday, excluding GE HealthCare holidays, and outside those
hours for an additional fee. Customer will: (i) install cable and assemble products not provided by GE HealthCare; (i) enable connectivity and
interoperability with products not provided by GE HealthCare; {iif) pay for construction and rigging costs; and (iv) obtain all licenses, permits and
approvals for installation, use and disposal of Products. For Equipment upgrades and revisions, Customer must return replaced components to
GE HealthCare at no charge.

45 in ion Tech Professi Services (“ITPS"). ITPS must be completed within 12 months of the later of the ITPS order date or
Product delivery. if not done within this time period, other than because of GE HealthCare's failure to perform, ITPS performance obligations
expire without refund. ITPS includes project management, HLT/HIS system integration, database conversion, network design and integration and
separately cataloged software installations.

48 Acceptance.

46.1 Equipment Acceptance. Beginning on completion of installation (not to exceed 30 days from shipment) or delivery (if
installation is not required), Customer will have 5 days to determine if the Equipment operates substantially in accordance with Specifications
(“Equipment Test Period”). If the Equipment fails to perform accordingly, Customer will provide to GE HealthCare: (i) written notice; (i) access to
the Equipment; and (iii) a reasonable time to bring the Equipment into compliance. After correction by GE HealthCare, Customer will have the
remainder of the Equipment Test Period or 3 days, whichever is greater, to continue testing. Equipment is accepted on the earlier of expiration of
the Equipment Test Period or the date the Equipment is first used for non-acceptance testing purposes.

462 Software Acceptance. Beginning on completion of Software implementation, Customer will have 30 days to determine if the
Software operates substantially in accordance with the Documentation (*Software Test Period"). If the Software fails to perform accordingly,
Customer will provide to GE HealthCare: (i) written notice; (ii) access to the Software; and (i) a reasonable time to bring the Software into
compliance. After correction by GE HealthCare, Customer will have the remainder of the Software Test Period or 5 days, whichever is greater, to

GE Healthcare Terms & Conditions (Rev 08.24) Page 7 of 15
GE Healthcare Confidential & Proprietary

Page 76



GE Healthcare Terms & Conditions

continue testing. Software is accepted on the first to occur of: (a) expiration of the Software Test Period; (b) the date Software is first used to
process actual data; or {c) the “Go-Live Date” as defined in the Quotation.

463 Subscription Acceptance. Products provided pursuant to a Subscription are accepted 5 days after GE HealthCare provides
Customer access to the Products.
4.7 Third Party Praducts and Services. If an order includes Third Party Offerings, then regarding those Third Party Offerings: {i) GE

HealthCare is acquiring them on Customer’s behalf, acting as Customer’s agent; (ii} GE HealthCare provides no warranties or indemnification,
express or implied; {iii) Customer is responsible for all claims resulting from or related to their acquisition or use; and (iv) Customer shall comply
with third party terms and conditions for the use of the Third Party Offerings; (iv) the applicable third party shall be a beneficiary of this
Agreement; (v} except as otherwise agreed, Third Party Offerings shall be deemed accepted (or commenced, as applicable) the later of either 5
days after delivery of the Third Party Offering or it being made available to Customer; (vi) the following provisions of these GE HealthCare terms
and conditions shall govern the mutual obligations between Customer and GE HealthCare regarding the order: Definitions, Commercial Logistics,
Security Interest and Payment, Trade-in Equipment, General Terms, Compliance - Generally, Security, Medical Diagnosis and Treatment,
Protected Health Information, Excluded Provider, Liability and Indemnity, Payment and Finance.

48 Mobile Equipment. GE HealthCare will assemble Equipment it has approved for mobile use at the vehicle location identified by
Customer. Customer will comply with the vehicle manufacturer’s planning requirements and arrange for delivery of the vehicle. Equipment
placed in a mobile environment must be used for medical, billing, or other non-entertainment use by bona fide medical professionals authorized
to use and prescribe such use. Customer will ensure Equipment that GE HealthCare has approved for mobile use is adequately instatled in
accordance with GE HealthCare’s applicable installation instructions.

49 Audit. GE HealthCare may audit Customer's use of Software, Subscription or Saa$ Offering to verify Customer’s compliance with this
Agreement up to 12 months following termination or expiration of the applicable Quotation. Customer will provide reasonable assistance and
unrestricted access to the information. Customer must pay underpaid or unpaid fees discovered during the audit, and GE HealthCare's
reasonable audit costs, within 30 days of written notification of the amounts owed. If Customer does not pay, or the audit reveals that Customer
is not in compliance, GE HealthCare may terminate Customer’s Software license, Subscription or Saa$ Offering.

4.10 Broduyct Inflation. For GE HealthCare imaging Products only {to exclude ultrasound and life care solutions Products), due to the
potential long cycle time from Product order to Product delivery, GE HealthCare may increase Product Total Quote Net Selling Price by an amount
equal to the increase in the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics Consumer Price Index ("CPI") from the date of Product order to the date of notice prior
to Product delivery, by providing at least 4 weeks prior notice from the requested delivery date.

S. Security Interest and Payment.

5.1 Security Interest. Customer grants GE HealthCare a purchase money security interest in all Praducts in the Quotation until full payment
is received, and Customer will perform all acts and execute all documents necessary to perfect GE HealthCare's security interest.

52 Eailure to Pay. If, after Product delivery, or Saa$ Offering availability, Customer is more than 45 days past due on undisputed payments,
GE HealthCare may, on 10 days’ prior written notice, disable, revake access to and/or remove the Products or Saa$ Offering.

53 Lease. If Customer leases a Product, Customer continues to be responsible for payment obligations under this Agreement.

6. Trade-in Equipment. Trade-in equipment identified in a Quotation will be subject to separate trade-in terms and conditions.

1. Subscriptions. The following terms apply to all Subscriptions.

71 Commencement. Unless otherwise indicated in this Agreement or the Quotation, the Subscription commences on the date GE
HealthCare provides Customer access to the Products.

7.2 Renewal / Non-Renewal, The Subscription term renews automatically for the same duration as the initial term of the Subscription

unless otherwise identified in the Quotation. Except as otherwise identified in this Agreement or a Quotation, GE HealthCare may increase prices
annually by no more than the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (U.S. City Average, December to December) plus 2%, upon 90 days’
prior written notice. Subscriptions are not canceliable; however, either party may opt to not renew the Subscription after the initial Subscription
term or any subsequent renewal term by providing at least 60 days’ prior written notice to the other party prior to renewal.

1.3 Subscription Equipment. Title to Equipment provided via Subscription ("Subscriotion Equipment”) remains with GE HealthCare.
Customer will not place, or permit the placement of, liens, security interests, or other encumbrances on Subscription Equipment. Customer shall
not repair or service Subscription Equipment, or allow others to do so, without the prior written consent of GE HealthCare.

1.4 Support Services. Unless otherwise noted in the Quotation, as part of the Subscription fees, GE HealthCare will provide support Services
as described in the Subscription Products Terms and Conditions.

75 Upgrades/software releases. Included in the Subscription fees if Customer does not owe any undisputed payments, GE HealthCare will
provide upgrades/software releases if and when they become available and to the extent they are provided to all GE HealthCare customers with a
Subscription for the Products, at mutually agreed upon delivery and installation dates. Upgrades/software releases do not include: (i) any
optional or separately licensable features; (i) any Products not covered by the Subscription; or (iii) any virtual environment required to host an
upgraded Product. GE HealthCare shall have no abligation to provide upgrades/software releases if Products are not maintained within the
current major retease version or the immediately prior major release version.

7.6 Access Controls. Customer must: (i) ensure users maintain individually-assigned confidential user credentials and controt mechanisms
to access the Subscription; and (i) take reasonable steps to prevent unauthorized access to Products.
1.7 Post-Termination. Upon termination or expiration of the Subscription: (i) Customer must immediately discontinue use of the Products

and return Subscription Equipment to GE HealthCare in proper operating condition; (i) Customer must destroy its copies of Software and
Documentation; (iii) Customer must remove its data from Subscription Equipment; (iv) GE HealthCare is not responsible for and may destroy
Customer-provided information, images or data; and (v} GE HealthCare will remove Customer’s access.

78 Professional Services. For Services not covered under this Agreement or required due to Customer not meeting its responsibilities under
the Agreement, applicable additional professional Services and fees will be required: (i) identified in the Quotation; and {ii) subject to GE
HealthCare’s then-current pricing.

8. Saas$ Offerings. The following terms apply to Saa$S Offerings.

8.1 Commencement. Uniess otherwise indicated in this Agreement or the Quotation, the SaaS Offering commences on the date GE
HealthCare provides Customer with access to the Saa$ Offerings.

8.2 n f in

GE Healthcare Terms & Conditions (Rev 08.24) Page 8 of 15

GE Healthcare Confidential & Proprictary

Page 77



GE Healthcare Terms & Conditions

821 Subject to the terms of this Agreement, GE HealthCare grants Customer non-exclusive, non-transferable, right to access, and
use, the Saa$ Offering being provided under this Agreement. The Saa$S Offering is solely for use by Customer's Authorized Users (defined below)
and for internal business only. Customer's use is limited to the term and volume or use metrics as detailed in the Quotation. GE HealthCare
reserves all rights in the Saa$ Offering, including the technical and operational data and information.

822 The Saa$S Offering may only be used by Customer’s employees, consultants, contractors, and agents (i} who are authorized by
Customer to access and use the SaaS Offering under the rights granted to Customer pursuant to this Agreement and (ii) for whom access to the
Saa$ Offering has been purchased hereunder (“Authorized Users”). Customer is responsible and liable for all uses of the SaaS Offering and
Documentation resulting from access provided by Customer, directly or indirectly, whether such access or use is permitted by or in violation of
this Agreement. Further, Customer is responsible and liable for all acts and omissions by Authorized Users. Customer is responsible for providing
any necessary notices to Authorized Users and obtaining any legally required consents from Authorized Users regarding their use of the SaaS
Offering and for maintaining the confidentiality of usernames, passwords and account information. Customer and its Authorized Users must not
use the Saas Offering in any way not in accordance with the Agreement and the Documentation.

823 Customer shall have the sole responsibility for any data submitted, posted, or otherwise transmitted by an Authorized User
through the SaaS Offering, including but not limited to the data's accuracy, confidentiality, quality, integrity, legality, reliability, security,
appropriateness, IP rights, and privacy consents. Customer shall have sole responsibility for any security vulnerabitities, and the consequences of
such vulnerabilities, arising from Customer Data or Authorized User’s access to the Saa$ Offering.

8.24 If Customer becomes aware that any Customer Data or any use by an Authorized User violates the Agreement, Customer shall
promptly remove or suspend use of that Customer Data and suspend the Authorized User's access to the SaaS Offering. If Customer believes its
access has been compromised, Customer shall notify GE HealthCare as soon as possible but no later than 5 business days. Customer shall have
sole responsibility for any security vulnerabilities or incidents, and the consequences of such vulnerabilities or incidents, arising from Customer
Data or any use of the Saa$S Offering and Documentation resulting from access provided by Customer, directly or indirectly, whether such access
or use is permitted by or in violation of this Agreement. Customer shall notify GE HealthCare and reasonably cooperate with GE HealthCare to
confirm and resolve any comprise to Customer’s account or the Saa$ Offering.

8.25 GE HealthCare reserves the right to upgrade or modify the Saa$S Offering, including without limitation GE HealthCare’s
technology, software, security, configurations, features, related content and materials, and third party content, at any time.

83 Security. GE HealthCare shall maintain a written information security program (the “Program”) consistent with GE HealthCare’s
Commitment to Data Privacy and Security and applicable data protection laws that inctudes policies, procedures, and safeguards designed to
protect Customer data and personal data from unauthorized or unlawful access, use, or disclosure or other compromise.

8.4 Renewal / Non-Renewal. Unless otherwise noted in the Quotation, the Saa$S Offering term renews automatically for the same duration
as the initial term. Except as otherwise identified in this Agreement or a Quotation, GE HealthCare may increase prices annually by no more than
the Consumer Price index (“CP}"} for All Urban Consumers (U.S. City Average, December to December) plus 2%, upon 90 days’ prior written notice.
Saas$ Offerings are not cancellable; however, either party may opt to not renew a Saa$ Offering after the initial term or any subsequent renewal
term by providing at least 60 days’ prior written notice to the other party prior to renewal. Customer shall be obligated to pay the fees for any
active term regardless of whether Customer access the Saa$S Offering during the applicable term.

8.5 ices.

85.1 Unless otherwise noted in the Quotation, as part of the SaaS Offering reoccurring fee, GE HealthCare will use commercially
reasonable efforts to maintain the SaaS Offering in a manner which minimizes Errors and service interruptions. “Error” means any SaaS Offering
problem that: (i) materially interferes with Customer’s use of the SaaS Offering; and (ii) results from a failure of the Saa$S Offering to materially
conform to the Documentation. Customer will promptly inform GE HealthCare of any issue of which Customer becomes aware. GE HealthCare
will provide phone and email support during standard business hours, excluding GE HealthCare holidays, for problem solving, Error resolution
and general help.

8.5.2 Access for Offering and Support. To enable GE HealthCare to provide Customer with the Saa$ Offering and related support,
Customer grants GE HealthCare the right to use, process and transmit, in accordance with this Agreement and any relevant privacy agreements,
Customer’s Data and applications during the Term plus any additional post-expiration period. Customer is responsible for its connection to the
SaaS$ Offering.

8.6 Account Suspension. GE HealthCare may suspend Customer's access to or use of the Saa$ Offering if Customer or its Authorized Users
violate any provision of this Agreement, or if in GE HealthCare’s reasonable judgment, the Saa$ Offering or any component thereof are reasonably
likely to suffer a significant threat to security or functionality. GE HealthCare will use reasonable efforts to provide advance notice and to re-
establish the affected Saa$S Offering. GE HealthCare may terminate the Saa$ Offering if any cause of suspension is not cured within 60 days. Any

suspension or termination by GE HealthCare under this paragraph shall not excuse Customer from its obligation to make payment(s} under this
Agreement.

8.7 Post Termination. Uniess otherwise noted in the Quotation or this Agreement, upon termination or expiration of the Saa$s Offering(s}: (i)
Customer must immediately discontinue all use and access of the SaaS Offering; (i) Customer must destroy all GE HealthCare proprietary and
confidential information, such as its copies of Documentation; (jii) GE HealthCare is not responsible for and may destroy Customer Data; (iv) GE
HealthCare will remove Customer’s access; and (v) Customer shall immediately pay GE HealthCare all amounts due hereunder. Customer is
responsible for ensuring Customer has all necessary copies of Customer Data prior to the termination date. Customer will be responsible for
paying for any Services required to migrate Customer Data to a replacement solution.

9. General Terms.

9.1 Confidentiality. Each party will treat this Agreement and the other party's proprietary information as confidential, meaning it will not
use or disclose the information to third parties unless permitted in this Agreement or required by law. Customers are not prohibited from
discussing patient safety issues in appropriate venues.

9.2 Governing Law. The law of the state where the Product is installed, Service is provided, Subscription is accessed, or for SaaS Offerings
the state in which Customer’s operations are located as indicated in the Quotation, wilt govern this Agreement.

9.3 Eorce Majeure. Performance time for non-monetary obligations will be reasonably extended for delays beyond a party’s control,

GE Healthcare Terms & Conditions (Rev 08.24) Page 9 of 15
GE Healthcare Confidential & Proprietary

Page 78



GE Healthcare Terms & Conditions

9.4 Assignment; Use of Subcontractors. Rights and obligations under this Agreement cannot be assigned without the other party's prior
written consent, unless: (i} it is to an entity (except to a GE HealthCare competitor) that (a) is an affiliate or parent of the party or (b} acquires
substantially all of the stock or assets of such party’s applicable business, Product line, or Service thereof; and (ii) the assignee agrees in writing to
be bound by this Agreement, including payment of outstanding fees. GE HealthCare may hire subcontractors to perform work under this
Agreement but will remain responsible for its obligations.

95 Waiver: Survival. If any provision of this Agreement is not enforced, it is not a waiver of that provision or of a party's right to later enforce
it. Terms in this Agreement related to intellectual property, compliance, data rights and terms that by their nature are intended to survive will
survive the Agreement’s expiration or termination.

9.6 Intellectual Property. GE HealthCare owns all rights to the intellectual property in GE HealthCare’s Products, Saa$ Offerings, Services,
Documentation, Specifications, and statements of work related to a Quotation or otherwise. Customer may provide GE HealthCare with feedback
related to Products, Services, Saas Offerings, and related Documentation, and GE HealthCare may use it in an unrestricted manner.

10. Compliance.

10.1 Generally. Each party will comply with applicable taws and regulations. Customer is only purchasing, licensing or accessing Products or
Saa$ Offerings for its own medical, billing and/or non-entertainment use in the United States, or for the purposes of renting or leasing the
Products for medical, billing and/or non-entertainment purposes through a mabile system or modular building where Customer maintains title to
the Products GE HealthCare will not deliver, install, provide access, service or train if it discovers Products or SaaS Offerings have been or are
intended to be used contrary to this Agreement. This Agreement is subject to GE HealthCare’s ongoing credit review and approval. Customer is
aware of its legal obligations for cost reporting, including 42 C.F.R. § 1001.952(g) and (h), and will request from GE HealthCare any information
beyond the invoice needed to fulfill Customer’s cost reporting obligations. GE HealthCare will provide safety-related updates for Equipment and
Software required by applicable laws and regulations at no additional charge.

10.2 Security. GE HealthCare is not responsible for: (i) Customer’s passwords or password management (i) securing Customer's network;
(iii) preventing unauthorized access to Customer’s netwark or the Product; (iv) backup management; (v) data integrity; (vi) recovery of lost,
corrupted or damaged data, images, software or equipment; {vii) third party operating systems, unless specifically provided in the Quotation; or
{vill) providing or validating antivirus or related IT safeguards untess sold to Customer by GE HealthCare. NEITHER PARTY WILL BE LIABLE TO THE
OTHER PARTY FOR DAMAGES CAUSED BY UNAUTHORIZED ACCESS TO THE NETWORK OR PRODUCTS REGARDLESS OF A PARTY'S COMPLIANT
SECURITY MEASURES.

10.3 Environmental Health and Safetv (“EHS"™, GE HealthCare personnel may stop work without penalty due to safety concerns. Customer
must: (i) comply with GE HealthCare’s EHS requirements; (i) provide a safe environment for GE HealthCare personnel; (iii) tell GE HealthCare
about chemicals or hazardous materials that might come in contact with Products or GE HealthCare personnel; (iv) perform decommissioning or
disposal at Customer facilities; {v) obtain and maintain necessary permits; (vi) thoroughly clean Products before Service; (vii) provide radioactive
materials required for testing Products; and (viii) dispose of waste related to Products and installations.

10.4 Parts and Tubes. GE HealthCare: (i) recommends the use of parts it has validated for use with the Product; (i) is not responsible for the
quality of parts supplied by third parties to Customer; and (jii) cannot assure Product functionality or performance when non-vatidated parts are
used. Certain Products are designed to recognize GE HealthCare-supplied tubes and report the presence of a non-GE HealthCare tube; GE
HealthCare is not responsible for the use of, or effects from, non-GE HealthCare supplied tubes.

10.5 Training: Recordings. GE HealthCare's training does not guarantee that: (i) Customer trainees are fully trained on Product or Saa$
Offering use, maintenance or operation; or (ji) training will satisfy any licensure or accreditation. Customer must ensure its trainees are fully
qualified in the use and operation of the Product or Saa$S Offering. Unless otherwise identified in the training catalog, Customer will complete
training within 12 months of: (a) the date of Product delivery for a Product purchase or date of availability of SaaS Offering; (b) the respective start
date for Services or Subscription for purchase of Service or Subscription; or {c) the date training is ordered for training-only purchases. If not
completed within this time period, other than because of GE HealthCare’s fault, training expires without refund. Training will be invoiced and
payment due pursuant to the billing terms listed in the Quotation. Customer’s recording of GE HealthCare training sessions and other
conversations with GE HealthCare is prohibited.
10.6 Medical Diagnosis and Treatment. All clinical and medical treatment, diagnostic and/or billing decisions are Customer's responsibility.
10.7 Connectivity. If a Product or Saa$ Offering has remote access capability: (i) Customer will provide GE HealthCare with, and maintain, a
GE HealthCare-validated remote access connection to service the Product or SaaS Offering; or (i) GE HealthCare reserves the right to charge
Customer for onsite support at GE HealthCare's then-current billing rate. This remote access and collection of machine data (e.g., temperature,
helium level) will continue after the end of this Agreement unless Customer requests in writing that GE HealthCare disable it.
10.8 Use of Data.

10.8.1 Prot Health Information. If GE HealthCare creates, receives, maintains, transmits or otherwise has access to Protected
Health Information (as defined in 45 C.F.R. § 160.103) (“PHI”), GE HealthCare may use and disclose the PHI only as permitted by law and by the
Business Associate Agreement. Before returning any Product to GE HealthCare, Customer must ensure that all PHI stored in it is deleted.

10.82  Data Rights. GE HealthCare may collect, prepare derivatives from and otherwise use non-PHI data related to Products and/or
Services for such things as training, demonstration, research, development, benchmarking, continuous improvement and facilitating the
provision of its products, software and services. GE HealthCare will own all intellectual property and other rights that could resuit from this
collection, preparation and use. The non-PHi data will not be used to identify Customer or sold by GE HealthCare without Customer’s consent.
109 Customer Policies. GE HealthCare will use reasonable efforts to respect Customer-provided policies that apply to GE HealthCare and do
not materially contradict GE HealthCare policies. Failure to respect Customer policies is not a material breach unless it is willful and adversely
affects GE HealthCare's ability to perform its obligations.
10.10  Insyrance. GE HealthCare will maintain coverage in accordance with its standard certificate of insurance.
1011 Excluded Provider. To its knowledge, neither GE HealthCare nor its employees performing Services under this Agreement have been
excluded from participation in a Federal Healthcare Program. if an employee performing Services under this Agreement is excluded, GE
HealthCare will replace that employee within a reasonable time; if GE HealthCare is excluded, Customer may terminate this Agreement upon
written notice to GE HealthCare.
11. Disputes and Arbitration

GE Healthcare Terms & Conditions (Rev 08.24) Page 10 of 15
GE Healthcare Confidential & Proprietary

Page 79



GE Healthcare Terms & Conditions

1.1 Binding Arbitration. Other than collection matters and actions seeking injunctive relief to prevent or cease a violation of intellectual
property rights related to Products or Services, the parties agree to submit all disputes arising under or relating to this Agreement to the American
Arbitration Association (“AAA") office closest to the largest metropotitan area of the location where the Product is instailed or the Service is
provided for binding arbitration conducted in accordance with AAA’s then-current Commercial Arbitration Rules. Costs, including arbitrator fees
and expenses, wilt be shared equally, and each party will bear its own attorneys’ fees. The arbitrator will have authority to award damages only to
the extent available under this Agreement. Nothing in this section shall altow either party to arbitrate claims of any third-party not a party to this
Agreement. The parties further agree to keep confidential: {i) the fact that any arbitration occurred, (i) the results of any arbitration, (iii) all
materials used, or created for use, in the arbitration, and {iv) all other documents produced by another party in the arbitration and not otherwise
in the public domain.

12. Liability and indemnity.

121 Limitation of Liability. GE HEALTHCARE'S LIABILITY FOR DIRECT DAMAGES TO CUSTOMER UNDER THIS AGREEMENT WILL NOT EXCEED:
(1) FOR PRODUCTS, THE PRICE FOR THE PRODUCT THAT IS THE BASIS FOR THE CLAIM; OR {If}) FOR SERVICE, SAAS OFFERINGS OR SUBSCRIPTIONS,
THE AMOUNT OF SERVICE OR SUBSCRIPTION FEES FOR THE 12 MONTHS PRECEDING THE ACTION THAT IS THE BASIS FOR THE CLAIM. THIS
LIMITATION WILL NOT APPLY TO GE HEALTHCARE'S DUTIES TO INDEMNIFY CUSTOMER UNDER THIS AGREEMENT.

12.2 Exclusion of Damages. NEITHER PARTY WILL HAVE ANY OBLIGATION FOR: {I) CONSEQUENTIAL, PUNITIVE, INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT OR
REPUTATIONAL DAMAGES; (Il) PROFIT, DATA OR REVENUE LOSS; OR (ll) CAPITAL, REPLACEMENT OR INCREASED OPERATING COSTS.

123 IP_Indemnification. GE HealthCare will indemnify, defend and hold Customer harmless from third-party claims for infringement of
United States intellectual property rights arising from Customer’s use of the Equipment, Saa$ Offering or Software in accordance with the
Specifications, Documentation and/or license.

12.4 General Indemnification.

12.4.1 GE HealthCare will indemnify, defend and hold Customer harmless for losses which Customer becomes legally obligated to pay
arising from third party claims brought against Customer for bodily injury or damage to real or tangible personal property to the extent the
damage was caused by GE HealthCare’s: (i} design or manufacturing defect of Products; (i) negligent failure to warn, negligent installation or
negligent Services; or {jii} material breach of this Agreement.

12.4.2 Customer will indemnify, defend and hold GE HealthCare harmless for losses which GE HealthCare becomes legally obligated to
pay arising from third party claims brought against GE HealthCare for bodily injury or damage to real or tangible personal property to the extent
the damage was caused by Customer’s: (i) medical diagnosis or treatment decisions; (i) misuse or negligent use of the Product or Saa$ Offering;
(iii) improper storage of the Product (iv) modification of the Product; or (v} material breach of this Agreement.

125 Indemnification Procedure. For all indemnities under this Agreement: (i) the indemnified party must give the other party written notice
before claiming indemnification; (i) the indemnifying party will control the defense; (iii) the indemnified party may retain counsel at its own
expense; and (iv) the indemnifying party is not responsible for any settlement without its written consent.

13. Payment and Finance.

131 Late Payment. Customer must raise payment disputes before the payment due date. For any undisputed late payment, GE HealthCare
may: (i) suspend performance under this Agreement until all past due amounts are paid; (ii) charge interest at a rate no more than the maximum
rate permitted by applicable law; and (lii) use unapplied funds due to Customer to offset any of Customer’s outstanding balance. !f GE HealthCare
suspends performance, any downtime will not be included in the calculation of any uptime or availability commitment. 1f Customer fails to pay
when due: (a) GE HealthCare may revoke its credit and designate Customer to be on credit hold; and (b) all subsequent shipments and Services
must be paid in full on receipt.

13.2 Taxes. Prices do notinclude applicable taxes, which are Customer’s responsibility.

133 Customer Pavment Obligation. If installation or acceptance is delayed more than 90 days because of any reason for which Customer or
its subcontractor is responsible, GE HealthCare will provide written notice and bill the remaining balance due on the order, and Customer must
pay according to the payment terms listed on the Quotation.

134 Qverages. Products or SaaS Offerings shall be subject to any usage or volume metrics specified in Quotation. If Customer exceeds any
usage or volume metric, GE HealthCare reserves the right to charge for excess usage at then current rates. Customer will be responsible for
payment of any such overage fees and agrees that GE HeaithCare may prospectively adjust future billing to reflect increased usage or volume.

14, Notices. Notices will be in writing and considered delivered when received if sent by certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt
requested, by overnight mail, or by fax. Notice to Customer will be directed to the address on this Agreement, and notice to GE HealthCare to
General Counsel, 9900 W Innovation Dr., Wauwatosa, Wl 53226.

15. Subscription Products Support Terms and Conditions.

151 Overview. GE HealthCare will, in accordance with the terms and conditions of this section, maintain, support and update Products
provided via Subscription.

152  Scope.

1521  Software Support and Maintenance. GE HealthCare will use reasonable efforts to provide Error Correction (defined below) for
verifiable and reproducible Errors (defined below) within a reasonable time after: (a) Customer reports the Error to GE HealthCare; or (b) detection
by GE HealthCare. Updates (defined below), if released, will be provided at no additional cost as a part of this maintenance commitment. New
functionality must be purchased separately, unless otherwise agreed.

15.2.2  Egquipment Maintenance. Preventative maintenance service may be required periodically during normal business hours of 8:00
a.m. to 5:00 p.m. (local time} on mutually agreed dates. Customer will make the Equipment available for preventative maintenance upon GE
HealthCare request. Additional services to be performed, including specific additional terms thereof, shall be specified in the Quotation or
alternate schedules.

15.2.3  Definitions. “Error” means any Software-related problem that: (i) materially interferes with Customer’s use of the Software;
and (i) results from a failure of the Software to materially conform to the Documentation. “Error Correction” means: {a) modification of the
Software that corrects an Error by bringing the Software into material conformity with the Documentation; or (b) a procedure that avoids the
material adverse effect of the nonconformity. “Update” means a change that provides Error Corrections and/or enhances functionality of the

GE Healthcare Terms & Condilions (Rev 08.24) Page 11 of 15
GE Healthcare Confidential & Proprietary

Page 80



GE Healthcare Terms & Conditions

Software version licensed by Customer. An Update does not involve major changes or provide significant, new functionality or applications, or
changes to the software architecture or file structure. Updates retain the same license as the original Software.

1524 Hotline Support. GE HealthCare will provide phone and email support during standard business hours, excluding GE
HealthCare holidays, for problem solving, Error resolution and general help.

15.2.5 Remaote Access Support. GE HealthCare may access Software remotely via Customer’s network and GE HealthCare-supplied
secure tunnelling software to monitor Software parameters to help prevent and detect Errors. Customer will reasonably cooperate with GE
HealthCare to establish remote connections. Certain modules require remote access in order to obtain support.

15.2.6  Warranty. GE HealthCare warrants that its Services will be performed by trained individuals in a professional, workman-like
manner. GE HealthCare witl re-perform non-conforming Services as long as Customer provides prompt written notice to GE HealthCare. NO
OTHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF NON-INFRINGEMENT, MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A
PARTICULAR PURPOSE, WILL APPLY. SERVICE MANUALS AND DOCUMENTATION ARE PROVIDED “AS I1S". GE HEALTHCARE DOES NOT GUARANTEE
PRODUCTS WILL OPERATE WITHOUT ERROR OR INTERRUPTION.

15.2.7  Exclusions. GE HealthCare has no obligation to Customer for: (i) use of Products in combination with software, hardware, or
services not recommended in writing by GE HealthCare; (ii) use in a manner or environment for which GE HealthCare did not design or license the
Products, or in violation of GE HealthCare’s recommendations or instructions; {iii} interface configuration {often referred to as HIS, PACS or EMR
interfaces necessary due to changing vendors or versions); (iv) reorganization of Customer data; (v} consulting or software engineering and
programming; {vi} support of Products outside the scope of the foregoing maintenance commitments; {vii) failure to use or install, or permit GE
HealthCare to use or install, Error Corrections or Updates; (viii} failure to maintain Products within the current major release version or the
immediately prior major release version; {ix) defects in products or services not made and provided by GE HealthCare; {x) any cause external to
the Products or beyond GE HealthCare’s control; (xi) failure of Customer’s network; (xii} replacement of disposable or consumable items; (xiii)
additional equipment or upgrades in connection with Products; and (xiv) migration of Software to different hardware or operating systems.

16. ViewPoint Software Maintenance Terms and Conditions.

16.1 GE HealthCare will maintain, support and update ViewPoint Software licensed by Customer (“ViewPoint Software”) and HIS interface
software installed in the United States covered by a Software Maintenance Agreement (“SMA”) consistent with the Subscription Products Support
Terms and Conditions.

16.2 Software Maintenance Agreement Term. The following applies to ViewPoint software and HIS interface software only: The SMA term
and start date is identified in the Quotation and its related Schedule A. Either party may terminate the SMA without cause after the first

anniversary by providing at least 90 days’ prior written notice to the other party. SMA payments are due within 30 days after date of GE
HealthCare's invoice.

GE Heslthcare Terms & Conditions (Rev 08.24) Page 12 of 15
GE Healthcare Confidential & Proprietary

Page 81



GE Healthcare Warranty Statement

1. Warranty.

1.1. Equipment. For non-customized Equipment purchased from GE HealthCare or its authorized distributors, unless otherwise identified in
the Quotation, GE HealthCare warrants that Equipment will be free from defects in title, and, for 1 year from Equipment Acceptance, it will: {i) be
free from defects in material and workmanship under normal use and service; and {ii} perform substantially in accordance with the Specifications.
The warranty covers parts and labor and only applies to end-users that purchase Equipment from GE HealthCare or its authorized distributors.

1.2. Software For Software licensed from GE HealthCare, GE HealthCare warrants that: {i} it has the right to license or sublicense Software to
Customer; (i} it has not inserted Disabling Code into Software; (iii} it will use efforts consistent with industry standards to remove viruses from
Software before delivery; and (iv) unless otherwise identified in the Quotation, for 90 days from Software Acceptance, Software will perform
substantially in accordance with the Documentation. “Disabling Code” is code designed to interfere with the normal operation of Software, but
code that prohibits use outside of the license scope is not Disabling Code.

1.3.  Services. GE HealthCare warrants that its Service will be performed by trained individuals in a professional, workman-like manner.

1.4, Used Equipment. Certain Used Equipment is provided with GE HealthCare's standard warranty for the duration identified in the
Quotation, but in no event more than 1 year. If no warranty is identified, the Used Equipment is provided “AS 1S” and is not warranted by GE
HealthCare.

1.5. Accessories and Supolies. Warranties for accessories and supplies are at www.gehealthcare com/accessories.

1.6.  Ihird Party Product. Third Party Product is covered by the third party’s warranty and not GE HealthCare's warranties.
1.7.  Subscription Products. Unless otherwise specified, Products provided via Subscription do not include a warranty.
1.8.  Saa$ Qfferings. Unless otherwise specified, Saa$ Offerings do notinclude a warranty.

2. Remedies. If Customer promptly notifies GE HealthCare of its claim during the warranty and makes the Product available, GE HealthCare
will: (i) at its option, repair, adjust or replace the non-conforming Equipment or components; (ii) at its option, correct the non-conformity or
replace the Software; and/or {iii) re-perform non-conforming Service. Warranty service will be performed from 8am to 5pm local time, Monday-
Friday, excluding GE HealthCare holidays, and outside those hours at GE HealthCare’s then-current service rates and subject to personnel
availability. GE HealthCare may require warranty repairs to be performed via a secure, remote connection or at an authorized service center. If GE
HealthCare replaces Equipment or a component, the original becomes GE HealthCare property and Customer will return the original to GE
HealthCare within 5 days after the replacement is provided to Customer. Customer cannot stockpile replacement parts. Prior to returning
Equipment to GE HealthCare, Customer will: (a) obtain a return to manufacturer autharization; and (b} back up and remove all information stored
on the Equipment (stored data may be removed during repair). Customer is responsible for damage during shipment to GE HealthCare. The

warranty for a Product or component provided to correct a warranty failure is the unexpired term of the warranty for the repaired or replaced
Product.

GE HealthCare may provide a loaner unit during extended periods of Product service or for GE HealthCare Product training purposes. if a loaner
unit is provided: (i) it is for Customer’s temporary use at the location identified in the Quotation; {ii) it will be returned to GE HealthCare within §
days after the Product is returned to Customer, and if it is not, GE HealthCare may repossess it or invoice Customer for its full list price; (iii} it, and
all programs and information pertaining to it, remain GE HealthCare property; (iv) risk of loss is with Customer during its possession; {v) Customer
will maintain and return it in proper condition, normal wear and tear excepted, in accordance with GE HealthCare's instructions; {vi) it will not be
repaired except by GE HealthCare; (vii) GE HealthCare will be given reasonable access to it; {vili) Customer is not paying for its use, and Customer
wilt ensure charges or claims submitted to a government heaithcare program or patient are submitted accordingly; and (ix) prior ta returning it to
GE HealthCare, Customer will delete all information, including PHI, from it and its accessories, in compliance with industry standards and
instructions provided by GE HealthCare.

NO OTHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF NON-INFRINGEMENT, MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR
A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, WILL APPLY. SERVICE MANUALS AND DOCUMENTATION ARE PROVIDED “AS IS". GE HEALTHCARE DOES NOT
GUARANTEE PRODUCTS WILL OPERATE WITHOUT ERROR OR INTERRUPTION.

3. Limitations. GE HealthCare has no obligation to Customer for warranty claims if Customer uses the Product: (a} for non-medical or
entertainment use or outside the United States; (b) in combination with software, hardware, or services not recommended in writing by GE
HealthCare; and(c) in a manner or environment for which GE HealthCare did not design or license it, or in violation of GE HealthCare's
recommendations or instructions. GE HealthCare has no obligation to Customer for warranty claims for damages or deficiencies outside GE
HealthCare's reasonable control.

In addition, these warranties do not cover: (i) defects or deficiencies from improper storage or handling, maintenance or use that does not
conform to Specifications and/or Documentation, inadequate backup or virus protection, cyber-attacks, failure to maintain power quality,
grounding, temperature, and humidity within Specifications and/or Documentation, or other misuse or abuse; (ii) repairs due to power anomalies
or any cause external to the Products or beyond GE HealthCare’s control; {iii) payment or reimbursement of facility costs arising from repair or
replacement of the Products or parts; (iv) planned maintenance {unless applicable to Equipment), adjustment, alignment, or calibration; (v)
network and antenna installations not performed by GE HealthCare or its subcontractors; (vi) lost or stolen Products; (vii) Products with serial
numbers altered, defaced or removed; {viii) modification of Product not approved in writing by GE HealthCare (ix) Products immersed in liquid; (x)
for Mobile Equipment, defects or deficiencies from mobile use outside of normal transportation wear and tear (excluding OEC regarding
transportation wear and tear) and (xi) replacement of disposable or consumable items.
4, Exceptions to Standard Warranty.
Partial System Equipment Upgrades for CT, MR, X-Ray, 1GS, PET (Scanners, Cyclotrons and Chemistry Labs) and Nuclear systems: 6
months (only applies to the upgraded components unless the parties otherwise agree to modify the coverage of the upgraded and existing
components in an existing service agreement. Optima XR240amx partial upgrades are warranted for 1 year on the wireless detector. This
exception does not apply to the Artist Evo 1.5T and Premier Evo 3T upgrades which will have a fuli system one year warranty.
Cyclotron and Radiopharmacy: Warranty starts on the earlier of (i} 3 months after the date GE HealthCare completes mechanical installation, or
(i) the date Product testing is successfully completed.
MR Systems: Warranty does not cover: (i} a defect or deficiency from failure of water chillers supplied or serviced by Customer, and (i) for MR
Warranty Statement (Rev 07.24) Page 13 of 1S
GE Healthcare Confidential & Proprictary

Page 82



GE Healthcare Warranty Statement

systems with LHe/LN or shield cooler configured superconducting magnets (except for MR Systems with LCC magnets), any cryogen supply,
cryogenic service or service to the magnet, cryostat, coldhead, shield cooler compressor or shim coils unless the need for supply or service is
caused by a defect in material or workmanship covered by this warranty.

Proteus XR/a, Definium and Precision 500D X-Ray Systems: Warranty does not cover collimator bulbs.

Performix 160A (MX160) Tubes: 3 years

X-Ray High Voltage Rectifiers and TV Camera Pick-Up Tubes: 6 months

X-Ray Wireless Digital Detectors: In addition to the standard warranty, GE HealthCare will provide coverage for detector damage due to
accidental dropping or mishandling. If accidental damage occurs, GE HealthCare will provide Customer with 1 replacement detector during
warranty at no additional charge. If subsequent accidental damage occurs during warranty, each additional replacement will be provided for
$30,000 per replacement. This additional coverage excludes damage caused by any use that does not conform to original equipment
manufacturer ("QEM") guidelines, use that causes fluid invasion, holes, deep scratches or the detector case to crack, and damage caused by
abuse, theft, loss, fire, power failures or surges. If the warranty is voided by these conditions, repair or replacement is Customer's responsibility.
GE Lunar Bone Mineral Densitometry and Metabolic Health: Warranty includes 1 annual PM. Direct warranty claims to Probo Medical, LLC
(together, with its affiliates Alpha Source, LLC) at 1-866-907-9745,

OEC New or Exchange Service Parts: 120 days

OEC Tubes and Image Intensifiers: 1 year

HealthNet Lan, Advantage Review — Remote Products: 3 months

LOGIQ e, Venue 50, Venue Go, Versana Active and related transducers purchased with them: 5 years

LOGIQ V1, LOGIQ V2, Vivid iq, Vscan and Vscan Extend and related transducers purchased with them: 3 years

Except the following have a 1 year warranty:

Transducers: TEE Probes,

Carts: Venue 50 Docking Cart, Venue Go Cart, Venue Go mounting cradle, LOGIQ e Isolation Cart, LOGIQ e Docking Cart, LOGIQ V1/V2 Cart and

Vivid 1Q cart.

Other: Batteries (internal & external), and printers and peripherals, TEE cleaning & storage system, ICECord Connector and printers.
Warranty covers defective parts and components and includes: (i} repair at GE HealthCare facilities, (i} a loaner unit or probe replacement
shipped for next business day delivery for requests received by 3pm Central Time, (iii) phone support from 7am to 7pm Central Time, Monday-
Friday, excluding GE HeaithCare holidays. For an additional charge, GE HealthCare may provide field support/service, planned maintenance,
and/or coverage for damage due to accidental dropping or mishandling.

LOGIQ P9 R2.5 and newer and, Versana Premier, Versana Balance, Venue and related transducers purchased with them: 5 years
LOGIQ P10: S years

LOGIQ Fortis and related transducers purchased with them: 2 years

Except the following have a 1 year warranty:

Other Accessories: Batteries (internal & external} and printers and peripherals, TEE cleaning & storage system

Transducers: TEE Probes
Warranty Includes: (i} repair at Product location by a qualified service technician Monday-Friday 8am to Spm local time, excluding GE HealthCare
holidays, and (i} phone support from 7am to 7pm Central Time, Monday-Friday, excluding GE HealthCare holidays. For an additional charge, GE
HealthCare may provide planned maintenance and/or coverage for damage due to accidental dropping or mishandling.

Voluson P8 BT18 and newer, Voluson Signature 18, Voluson Signature 20, Voluson SWIFT, Voluson S8 Touch and Voluson S10 Expert,
LOGIQ F8 2016 and newer, LOGIQ V5, Vivid T8 and Vivid T9 and related transducers purchased with them: 3 years
Except the following have a 1 year warranty:

Other: Batteries (internat & external) and printers and peripherals, TEE cleaning & storage system

Transducers: TEE Probes
Warranty Includes: (i) repair at Product location by a qualified service technician Monday-Friday 8am to 5pm local time, excluding GE HealthCare
holidays, and (ii) phone support from 7am to 7pm Central Time, Monday-Friday, excluding GE HealthCare holidays. For an additional charge, GE
HealthCare may provide planned maintenance and/or coverage for damage due to accidental dropping or mishandling.

Voluson Expert 18, Voluson Expert 20, and Voluson Expert 22: Console Warranty - 5 years; Probe Warranty - Years 0 - 3 - all probes purchased
with console, Years 4 - 5 - 1 probe per system, per year.

EMG6C Probe - 1 year

Warranty Includes: (i} repair at Product location by a qualified service technician Monday-Friday 8am to Spm local time, excluding GE HealthCare
holidays, and (i) phone support from 7am to 7pm Central Time, Monday-Friday, excluding GE HealthCare holidays. For an additional charge, GE
HealthCare may provide planned maintenance and/or coverage for damage due to accidentat dropping or mishandling.

Ultrasound Partial System Equipment Upgrades: 3 months (only appilies to the upgraded components). Customer will not be credited the
value of the warranty against pre-existing warranties or service agreements.

Veterinary Use: Notwithstanding anything herein, any Product validated and sold by GE HealthCare for specific use in the veterinary market shall
have a one (1) year warranty.

Batteries: 3 months, except for x-ray nickel cadmium or lead acid batteries and ultrasound batteries, which are warranted for 1 year
CARESCAPE Monitors B450, B650, B850, Canvas 1000, and Canvas Smart display: 3 years parts, 1 year labor (excluding displays, which are
standard 1 year parts and labor). Phone support from 7am to 5pm Central Time, Monday-Friday, excluding GE HealthCare holidays.

CARESCAPE ONE : 3 year parts and phone support from 7am to 5pm Central Time, Monday-Friday, excluding GE HealthCare holidays, 1 year tabor
{excluding displays, which are standard 1 year parts and labor).

Micromodules: 3 year parts and phone support from 7am to 5pm Central Time, Monday-Friday, excluding GE Healthcare holidays,{i) repair
services performed at GE HealthCare Repair Operations Center.

B40 Monitors: 2 years parts, 1 year labor (excluding displays, which are standard)

B105 B125, and B155 Patient Monitors: 3 years with: (i) repair services performed at GE HealthCare Repair Operations Center, (ii) phone
support from 7am to Spm Central Time, Monday-Friday, excluding GE HealthCare holidays; and (iii) a loaner Product (subject to availability;
shipping charges included).

Warranty Statement (Rev 07.24) Page 14 of 15
GE Healtt Confidential & P

prietary

Page 83



GE Healthcare Warranty Statement

Novii Wireless Patch System- Interface and Pods: 1 year starting 40 days after shipment with: (i) exchange services performed at GE HealthCare
Repair Operations Center; and (ii} phone support from 7am to S5pm Central Time, Monday-Friday, excluding GE HealthCare holidays. Customer
may elect to purchase coverage for Pod damage due to accidental dropping or mishandling. This coverage excludes patches and cables, which
are considered Product accessories, and are warranted pursuant to Section 1.5 above.

MAC 5, MAC 7, MAC 2000 and MAC 3500: 3 years (i) repair services performed at GE HealthCare Repair Operations Center, (ii} phone support from
7am to Spm Central Time, Monday-Friday, excluding GE HealthCare holidays

CARESCAPE V100 and VC150 Vital Signs Monitors: 2 years

SEER 1000: 2 years (i} repair services performed at GE HealthCare Repair Operations Center, (ii) phone support from 7am to 5pm Central Time,
Monday-Friday, excluding GE HealthCare holidays

Exergen: 4 years

Microenvironment and Phototherapy consumable components: 1 month

Corometrics’ Fetal Monitoring: Warranty includes: (i) warranty starting on the earlier of (a) if GE HealthCare or Customer installs, 5 days after
installation or (b) 40 days after shipment; and (ji) 2 years parts, 1 year labor

Corometrics’ Nautilus Transducers: 2 years

Lullaby Phototherapy System: 3 years on lamp assembly

Blood pressure cuffs and related adaptors and air hoses: 1 month

Anesthesia Monitor Mounting Solutions: If purchased directly from GE HealthCare, it will be warranted as a GE HealthCare Product

Tec 850 Vaporizers: 3 years

Tec 6 Plus Vaporizers: 2 years

CARESCAPE Gateway: 1year

CARESCAPE Bridge: 1year

Vscan Air and Vscan Air Vet Warranty: 3 years with the exception of the battery and peripherals which are covered for 1 year. Warranty covers
defective parts and components and includes: (i) a replacement unit, and (ii) phone support from 7am to 7pm Central Time, Monday-Friday,
excluding GE HealthCare holidays. For an additional charge, GE HealthCare may provide additional battery and/or coverage for damage due to
accidental dropping or mishandling

Portrait VSM: 2 years

Warranty Statement (Rev 07 24) Page 15 0f 15
GE Healthcare Confidential & Proprictary

Page 84



Resolution No. 2026-08

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT MODIFYING THE NATIONAL UNION OF
HEALTHCARE WORKERS UNIT AT SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

WHEREAS, the San Benito Health Care District, a California Local Health Care District
(“District”), is governed by the Health Care District Law (Health & Safety Code sections 32000
et seq.);

WHEREAS, the District Board of Directors (“Board”) approved Ordinance 2004-06
Regarding Employee Election of Labor Organizations (“Ordinance 2004-06") in accordance with
Government Code section 3507(a);

WHEREAS, the Ordinance 2004-06 authorizes the Board to assess the appropriateness

of a bargaining unit requested by an employee organization and to determine the appropriate unit
based on specified criteria;

WHEREAS, on January 6, 2026, the National Union of Healthcare Workers (“NUHW”)
submitted a written request to modify the existing bargaining unit it represents to include an
additional classification for Laboratory Clerks within the Laboratory Department;

WHEREAS, upon receipt of a request to modify an existing and recognized unit of
employees, the Board, pursuant to California Government Code Section 3507.1 and Ordinance
2004-06, has the responsibility to determine whether the modification to include a new
classification of employees would result in an appropriate unit of employees;

WHEREAS, on January 22, 2025, the Board held a public hearing to review the
proposed modification to NUHW, and consider the relevant criteria set forth in Section 2 of
Ordinance 2004-06;

WHEREAS, the Board determined the proposed classification meets the criteria set forth
in Section 2 of Ordinance 2004-06;

WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code 3507.1(c), NUHW has requested recognition
to represent employees in certain specified classifications pending the results of a secret ballot
election;

WHEREAS, the District, pursuant to Government Code 3507.1(c) and Ordinance 2004-
06, has agreed to recognize NUHW representing certain recognition to represent employees in
certain specified classifications pending the results of a secret ballot election, which will be
overseen by State Mediation-Conciliation Service; and

4919-6124-5832, v. 1 Page 85



WHEREAS, this Resolution is exempt from review under the California Environmental
Quality Act (Public Resources Code section 21000 ef seq.) (“CEQA”) pursuant to 14 Cal. Code
of Regulations, section 15061(b)(3), because it can be seen with certainty that there is no
possibility that modifying a bargaining unit may have a significant effect on the environment.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED by the San Benito
Health Care District Board of Directors as follows:

SECTION 1. The District Board of Directors hereby finds and determines that the
foregoing recitals are true and correct.

SECTION 2. The Board, based upon the request filed by NUHW, finds and determines
that NUHW is the appropriate bargaining unit for the following classification of Laboratory
Clerks.

SECTION 3. The Board directs District Administration to take any and all actions,
including executing relevant documents, to carry out the intent of this Resolution in accordance
with Ordinance 2004-06.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 22nd day of January, 2026 by the following vote:
AYES:

NOES:
ABSTENTIONS:

ABSENT:

William Johnson, President

Attested:
Nick Gabriel, Secretary

4919-6124-5832, v. 1 Page 86





